



The Entrepreneur's and Investor's Building Blocks for Resilient and Scalable Start-ups

MICHAEL DOYLE
CEO OF THE 13D PROTOCOL

The Entrepreneur's and Investor's

Building Blocks for Resilient and Scalable Start-ups

Volume 1

Michael Doyle

CEO: i3D Protocol by Invluencer Ltd

Copyright © 2023 Michael Doyle

All rights reserved.

CONTENTS

"Oţ	penAI: Powering the future of start-up success"	1
Par	t 1	4
I	ntroduction	5
A	A Brief History of Start-up Funding	7
V	Why Founders start companies?	10
V	What is a Start-up?	11
V	Why is Start-up Funding so important?	14
I	Life cycle of funding for Start-ups	15
F	Family and Friends: The Riskiest Stage of Investment	16
7	Venture Capital: When does it start investing in a Start-up?	18
F	Recommended Reading:	20
Par	t 2: Plan before Action	22
F	Planning for Success	23
(Cross Cutting factors	26
(Challenges and Uncertainties	27
N	Matching Founders to Investors	28
Т	Thesis of an Investor	29
Par	t 3: The Psychology of Start-up Investing	34
V	What should Founders look for in Investors?	35
V	Why Bad Investment Decisions take place?	36
	Solving the problem of lack of information or data when investing in early start-up	
Ε	Emotion in the investment decision making process	38
F	Removing Emotion from the Investment decision-making process	39

	process	40
	Techniques that can be used to try to remove cognitive biases from investment decisions	43
	Recommended Reading	46
	Core Sections for Analysis	49
P	art 4: Exploring the Vision & IDEA	54
	Does the Idea or Product solve a real-world problem?	55
	Is the Idea or Product innovative?	59
	Is there a clear and attainable Revenue Stream?	61
	Is there a big enough market for this Idea or Product?	62
	Is the Idea technically achievable?	63
	Bonus: Here is a checklist of factors that you can use when assessing the technical feasibility of an idea for a start-up:	_
	Is there a simple User Experience?	66
	Will the product or service satisfy customers unmet needs?	69
	What is the Technology Readiness Level?	72
	Can the Company Pivot?	76
	Does the Idea or Product warrant decentralization?	81
	Conclusion	84
P	art 5: Exploring the TEAM	86
	The best composition of a team in an early start-up company	88
	Soft skills needed by a team in an early start-up	90
	What makes a great team for a successful company?	90
	Red flags for teams in early start-ups	91
	Core competencies needed in a Team	93
	Does the Team have a clear solution to the problem?	95
	Does the Team have successful track records with reputable companies or organizations?	96

	Does the Team have strong domain knowledge?	98
	Does the Team have good 'subject matter' diversity?	. 100
	Does the Team have good academic or a base of intellectual qualifications?	. 101
	Does the Team have entrepreneurial skills?	. 103
	Meeting the Team before investing	. 106
	Recommended Reading	. 108
P	art 6: Exploring the MARKET	. 111
	Learning from Product Market Fit failures:	. 117
	Learning from Product Market Fit successes	. 118
	Is the Target Market clearly identified as a growth sector?	. 120
	Has Product Market Fit been clearly identified?	. 122
	Has the Total Available Market been clearly identified?	. 125
	Total Serviceable Market (TSM)	. 127
	Clearly Identify Customer User Profiles	. 130
	Identifiable Roadmap	. 132
	What is the Product Adoption Level?	. 134
	Sales Cycles are Important!	. 137
	Product or Service Feedback analysis	. 138
	Social network or media presence	. 139
P	art 7: Exploring the COMPETITION	. 144
	Competition is clearly identified	. 146
	Question 2: Value and Innovation: Does the Company offer a bette solution than the competition?	
	Unique Selling Points (USP's)	. 149
	IP/MOAT protection that is defensible	. 152
	Barriers to Entry	. 156
	Is a 'Buyout' a viable exit strategy?	. 159

Is there sufficient Funding to compete? 1	61
Part 8: Exploring the FINANCES	65
A strong Financial Team/CFO	67
A well-crafted Business AND Financial-Plan1	70
Audited Financial Reports?1	71
Data on Price Value and Innovation?1	72
A Monetizable Product	76
Indicating Scalability and Sustainability? 1	77
A Realistic Revenue Growth Rate	79
Financial Runway identified all Matching Expenses	80
Development Costs: high or low?	83
Customer Capture Transaction and/or Customer Acquisition Costs 1	85
Use of Funds	88
Confidence Funding1	91
Funds in Escrow	93
Tokenomics versus Community?	96
Vesting Period for Team and VC?	99
Part 9: Exploring ESG	.03
Part 10: Some Gems to Consider	10
Investors: Ways to de-risk investing in start-ups	11
Founders: Challenges and Uncertainties	12
Exit Strategies and Liquidity2	13
Token Technology2	15
Funding Options for Founders	16
Scalable and Defensible Models	17
Network Effects	18
Bad Actors	21

Conclusions	223
Important Terminology	226
Key Performance Indicators	230
Appendixes	233
Appendix 1: The State of the pre-seed start-up sector for the years 2017 – 2021	
Appendix 2: Predictions for the future of Start-ups	237

"OpenAI: Powering the future of start-up success"

The i3D Protocol was conceived and developed to address the problems Founders and Investors experience in the poor data environment that exists in the riskiest end of investing – very Early Stage or Alpha start-up investing.

The development premise of the Protocol is to use a combination of AI and algorithms backed by anonymous Crowd Sourced *sentiment analysis* to create an ecosystem using Intelligent Distributed Due Diligence – i3D. This ecosystem relies on well researched factors that affect start-up success or failure and seeks to score and rank potential start-ups against these factors.

The factors and content generated by the i3D Protocol are the result of thousands of hours of deep level research into company failures and success.

Future-Proofing Start-ups: The Entrepreneur's and Investor's Building Blocks for Resilient and Scalable Start-ups is our attempt to reflect this research and the requirements Founders and Investors should look for when developing a start-up into a future success.

The methodology used to create this work included a validation of the deep level research conducted by the i3D Protocol against the AI power of ChatGPT by OpenAI. Every factor we had identified was questioned in ChatGPT with the responses recorded. Follow up 'requests' were made to elaborate or generate new information. Besides Development edits and Proof reading, every response was checked by a human to confirm the validity of it.

ChatGPT is a large language model developed by OpenAI, which

uses machine learning techniques to generate natural-sounding text. As a language model, ChatGPT continues to evolve and improve as more data is fed into it and as the underlying machine learning algorithms are refined.

In the future, ChatGPT and other language models like it are likely to become even more powerful and useful. The advancements in the field of natural language processing such as neural networks architectures, unsupervised learning and pre-training are likely to improve the capabilities of the model and make it more versatile.

One potential application of ChatGPT and similar models is in the field of natural language understanding, which involves the ability of computers to understand human language and respond in a natural and appropriate way. This could enable ChatGPT to be used in a wide range of applications, such as customer service chatbots, language translation, and text summarization.

Another potential application is in the field of generative models, which involves using machine learning to generate new, original text. This could enable ChatGPT to be used for a wide range of creative applications, such as writing or composing music.

ChatGPT and similar natural language processing models can be used to analyse a large amount of data and identify patterns and trends related to successful start-ups. Here are a few examples of how this might be done:

Sentiment Analysis: By analysing large amounts of text data, such as social media posts, news articles, and customer reviews, ChatGPT can be used to identify patterns in the way people talk about different start-ups. This can be used to identify start-ups that are generating a lot of positive buzz and could be more likely to be successful.

Language Generation: ChatGPT can be used to generate text that

mimics the language and style of successful start-ups. This can be used to identify common themes, messaging, and communication

strategies that successful start-ups use.

Text classification: ChatGPT can be used to classify text into different categories, such as positive, negative, or neutral, to identify

patterns in the way that people talk about different start-ups. This

could be used to identify start-ups that are generating a lot of

positive buzz and could be more likely to be successful.

Text summarization: ChatGPT can be used to summarize large

amounts of text data, making it easier to identify patterns and trends related to successful start-ups. This could be used to identify

common themes or strategies that successful start-ups use, such as a

focus on innovation, or a strong team.

Overall, using ChatGPT to analyse large amounts of data related to

start-ups can provide valuable insights into what makes a start-up

successful and help identify promising start-ups that are likely to be

successful in the future.

Michael Doyle

CEO: i3D Protocol by Invluencer Ltd

3

Part 1

In Part 1 we examine some of the basic components in the Start-up sector. These components provide a core understanding of the space that Founders and Investors in early start-ups find themselves.

"All humans are entrepreneurs, not because they should start companies, but because the will to create is encoded in human DNA, and creation is the essence of entrepreneurship." - Reid Hoffman, co-founder of LinkedIn

Introduction

One of the most important things said about developing a start-up is that "You don't learn to walk by following rules. You learn by doing, and by falling over." This quote, often attributed to Sir Richard Branson, emphasizes the importance of acting and being willing to make mistakes in the process of starting a business. It reminds entrepreneurs that there is no set formula for success and that they must be willing to experiment and take risks.

One quote that alludes to the possibility of mitigating risks and increasing the potential for success in a start-up is: "Fail fast, fail often, but always fail forward." Often attributed to John C. Maxwell, it suggests that entrepreneurs should embrace failure as a learning opportunity and use it to move forward and make progress. The idea is that instead of fearing failure and avoiding risks, entrepreneurs should actively seek out opportunities to fail, learn from their mistakes, and use that knowledge to improve their chances of success. This mindset is also known as "Fail fast, fail cheap" and it encourages people to take risks and iterate quickly, this way they can learn from their mistakes and improve their chances of success.

However, while the expression "fail fast, fail cheap, has validity, so does the expression "Fail to plan, plan to fail" which serves as a reminder that careful planning is an essential part of achieving success in any endeavour. It suggests that those who neglect to plan are likely to encounter obstacles and roadblocks that could have been avoided with proper planning. This quote emphasizes the importance of setting clear goals, creating a detailed strategy, and anticipating potential challenges to increase the chances of success. It's a common phrase used in business and project management to remind people that proper planning is crucial to achieve goals and objectives, also it implies that if you don't have a plan, you're more likely to fail.

The origin of the quote "Fail to plan, plan to fail" is not clear, and it is uncertain who first coined the phrase. It is a common phrase and it's been used in various fields, such as business, project management, and personal development, and it's likely that it's been used by multiple people in different contexts.

Planning is certainly an important aspect to consider when starting a company, but it is not the only thing to consider. It's a part of the bigger picture of a successful start-up.

In addition to planning, there are other important factors to consider when starting a company, such as:

- Finding a viable business idea
- Conducting market research and identifying a target market
- Building a team with the necessary skills and experience
- Securing funding and financial resources
- Developing a marketing and sales strategy
- Creating a solid business model
- Continuously testing and iterating on the product or service
- Building a strong and positive company culture

All these factors are crucial and interrelated and it's important to balance them out to increase the chances of success. Planning is an important part of this process, but it is not the only thing that matters. A well-planned start-up with a solid business plan is a good start but it's not a guarantee of success, entrepreneurs need to adapt, learn, and pivot when necessary.

These are all things that a Founder must consider when beginning, and during, their Start-up journey.

A Brief History of Start-up Funding

"Your work is going to fill a large part of your life, and the only way to be truly satisfied is to do what you believe is great work. And the only way to do great work is to love what you do. If you haven't found it yet, keep looking. Don't settle. As with all matters of the heart, you'll know when you find it." - Steve Jobs, Co-Founder of Apple Inc.

Investors have been supporting early-stage start-ups for centuries, although the specific practices and terminology have evolved over time.

One of the earliest forms of investing in early-stage companies was through partnerships. In the 18th and 19th centuries, wealthy individuals (Angel Investors) would often invest in a business venture by becoming a partner in the company. This allowed them to share in the profits of the business, but also exposed them to the risks of the venture.

In the early 20th century, venture capital as we know it today began to take shape. Venture capital firms were created to provide funding to young companies with high growth potential. These firms were typically composed of wealthy individuals or institutional investors who were willing to take on higher risk in exchange for the potential for higher returns.

In the post-World War II era, venture capital became more institutionalized, with firms such as American Research and Development Corporation (ARDC) and J.H. Whitney & Company established in 1946. ARDC and J.H Whitney are both considered the first venture capital firms.

During the 1970s and 1980s, venture capital experienced significant growth, with the number of firms and the amount of capital under

management both increasing significantly. This was due in part to the success of venture-backed companies such as Apple and Intel, which helped to establish *venture capital as a legitimate and potentially profitable asset class*.

In recent years, the growth of technology and the internet has led to an explosion in the number of early-stage companies and a corresponding increase in the amount of venture capital being invested in these companies. Today, Angel Investing, Crowdfunding, and Venture Capital are a major source of funding for early-stage companies in a wide range of industries, including technology, biotech, and renewable energy.

Overall, the history of investors supporting early-stage companies is a long one, dating back centuries. The practices and terminology have evolved over time, but the basic idea of providing funding to young companies with high growth potential has remained constant.

Crowdfunding, the practice of raising money from many people, typically through the internet, is a relatively new phenomenon. It's history can be traced back to the late 1990s and early 2000s when some of the first crowdfunding platforms were created.

One of the earliest examples of crowdfunding was the ArtistShare platform, which was launched in 2003. The platform allowed fans to fund the recording and production of music albums in exchange for rewards such as access to exclusive content and opportunities to interact with the artists.

In the following years, more crowdfunding platforms were created to serve a variety of creative projects, from independent films to video games. Kickstarter, one of the most well-known crowdfunding platforms, was launched in 2009 and quickly became a popular way for entrepreneurs and creatives to raise money for their projects.

Crowdfunding began to gain mainstream attention in 2012 when the JOBS Act, also known as the Jumpstart Our Business Start-ups Act, was signed into law by President Obama. The JOBS Act included provisions that allowed companies to raise money through crowdfunding, opening the possibility for early-stage companies to raise capital from many small investors through crowdfunding platforms.

Today, crowdfunding is a well-established method of raising capital for early-stage companies. There are various other platforms such as Indiegogo, GoFundMe, Seedrs, CrowdSmart, and many more. Crowdfunding has become a popular way for entrepreneurs to test their ideas, validate their market and raise funds, without having to rely on traditional sources of funding such as venture capital or angel investors. It has also given more opportunities for people to invest in early-stage companies and be part of the entrepreneurial ecosystem.

Why Founders start companies?

"I wanted to create something that was easy to use, where people could share and connect with others in real-time, and that's how Twitter was born." - Jack Dorsey, Co-Founder of Twitter.

There are many reasons why founders may decide to leave their jobs and start their own companies. Some of the most common reasons include:

- Passion for the industry or idea: Many founders are driven by a passion for a particular industry or idea, and they want to be a part of creating something new and innovative.
- Desire for autonomy and control gives founders the autonomy and control they may not have had in their previous job. They can make their own decisions, set their own goals, and shape the direction of the company.
- *Opportunity to make a difference* allows them to make a positive impact on the world and solve a problem they care about.
- *Potential for higher earnings:* can also provide the potential for higher earnings than what they would make as an employee.
- Achieving a long-term goal: For some entrepreneurs, this is a long-term goal they have had for a long time. They may have been working for a long time to gain the knowledge, experience, and resources to do this.
- Frustration with the current job: Some founders may leave their jobs due to frustration with the company's culture, lack of growth opportunities, or a lack of alignment with their values.
- Flexibility: can provide founders with more flexibility in terms of their work schedule and location, which can be especially important for those who want to balance work with family or other personal responsibilities.
- Sense of accomplishment: this can be a challenging and demanding process, but it can also be incredibly rewarding.

Many founders are driven by a sense of accomplishment and the desire to create something that they can be proud of.

- Learning opportunities: a great learning opportunity for founders, as they will be exposed to a wide range of new skills and experiences.
- *Potential for growth:* can also provide the potential for rapid growth and scalability, which can be especially attractive for founders who want to build something big and impactful.
- *Personal development:* can be a great personal development opportunity, as it can help entrepreneurs to develop new skills, gain confidence, and learn more about themselves.

What is a Start-up?

Even though it has been used throughout history, the term "start-up" was popularized in the late 1970s and early 1980s by entrepreneurs and venture capitalists in Silicon Valley, California. It was used to describe the new and rapidly growing companies in the technology and software industry, which were often started by individuals or small teams with innovative ideas and a lot of ambition. Steve Blank, a serial entrepreneur and author, is credited with popularizing the term further with his book The Start-up Owner's Manual: The Step-By-Step Guide for Building a Great Company.

The term Start-up is broadly used to refer to any new business venture, regardless of industry.

The start-up phase is typically characterized by a high level of uncertainty and risk, as the business is still in the process of developing its product or service, building its customer base, and establishing itself in the market. Start-ups are often small, with a lean structure and limited resources, but they have the potential to grow rapidly and become successful companies.

The "start-up" has been popularized in the last 15 years because of the rise of technology companies like Google, Facebook, Airbnb, and Uber, which have grown quickly and become some of the most valuable companies in the world.

Investing in early start-ups can be an exciting and rewarding endeavour, but it can also be a risky one. Before investing, it is important to ask several key questions to ensure that your investment is sound. This can help to mitigate risk, maximize potential rewards, and provide a greater sense of security. Asking the right questions provides insight into the business, its founders, the industry, and the potential for success.

We will explore some of the key questions to ask before investing in early start-ups as there are many factors that can contribute to its success, and importantly, cross-cutting and general factors that often define a great early-stage start-up including:

- A *clear and compelling value proposition* that addresses a significant pain point or unmet need in the market.
- A Strong and experienced team that has the skills, knowledge, and vision to execute the business plan and drive the company forward.
- *Traction and momentum* such as revenue, customers, partnerships, or other indicators that show that the company is moving in the right direction.
- A *scalable and defensible business model* that can support the company's growth and protect its market position.
- A well-defined and ambitious growth plan that outlines the steps the company will take to scale its operations and achieve its goals.
- A *solid and realistic financial plan* that outlines the company's revenue streams, costs, and milestones.

- A *focus on customers* by regularly gathering feedback, analysing the user's needs and habits, and making sure that the product or service solves a real problem for the target audience.
- A *flexible and adaptive mindset* that can pivot or adapt to changes in the market and customer needs, as well as to identify new opportunities.

It's important to note that no start-up will have all these factors perfectly in place.

Early start-ups also face a variety of *challenges and uncertainties*, and it very important for both Founders and Investors to be aware of these, including:

- *Product development*: Developing a product or service that meets the needs of the target market can be a significant challenge, especially in the early stages when resources are limited and there is little feedback from customers.
- Market validation: Identifying and validating a target market and understanding customer needs is crucial for the success of a start-up, but it can also be challenging and uncertain, especially in new or untested markets.
- *Fundraising* and securing it is a major challenge for start-ups, as investors are often hesitant to take risks on untested or unproven business models.
- *Competition*, both from established companies and from other companies in the same space. This can make it difficult to gain market share or to maintain profitability.
- *Hiring and retaining talent*: Attracting and retaining the right team members can be a major challenge for start-ups, as they often have limited resources and may not be able to offer the same level of compensation and benefits as larger, established companies.
- Scaling up operations, sales, and production to meet growing demand can be a major challenge, especially in the early stages.

- Compliance with laws and regulations can be a significant challenge, especially in highly regulated industries, such as healthcare or finance.
- *Time constraints:* there are often limited time frames to achieve success and may have to make quick decisions with limited data.
- *Cash flow:* In the early stages, they may not have steady revenue, which can make it difficult to meet short-term commitments

Why is Start-up Funding so important?

Start-up funding is a crucial component of economic development as it provides the resources necessary for new businesses to grow and create jobs. Without access to funding, many start-ups would not be able to develop their products or services, hire employees, or expand their operations. As a result, economic growth and job creation would be hindered.

One of the most important roles of funding is to provide capital for businesses in the early stages of development. Start-ups often require significant amounts of capital to develop their products or services, conduct market research, and build a customer base. Without access to funding, many of them would not be able to take these crucial steps, which would limit their ability to generate revenue and create jobs.

Start-up funding also plays a critical role in fostering innovation. By providing resources to entrepreneurs and small businesses, the funding allows them to experiment with new ideas and technologies. This can lead to the development of new products and services that can disrupt existing markets and create new ones. This is especially important in today's economy, where innovation is key to staying competitive and driving economic growth.

Additionally, start-up funding plays a crucial role in creating jobs and stimulating economic growth. As these start-ups grow and

become successful, they often hire additional employees, which can lead to this increased economic activity and job creation. The funding also helps to attract and retain talented entrepreneurs in a specific region, which can lead to the development of a thriving entrepreneurial ecosystem that can drive economic development.

Furthermore, Start-up funding can also have a positive impact on the economy by providing a source of new businesses and entrepreneurs. These companies are important drivers of economic growth as they create new markets, new products, and new jobs. They also help to increase competition and innovation, which can lead to increased productivity, efficiency, and overall economic growth.

In conclusion, start-up funding is an essential component of economic development as it provides the resources necessary for new businesses to grow and create jobs. It plays a critical role in fostering innovation, creating jobs, and stimulating economic

Life cycle of funding for Start-ups

The stages of funding for start-ups can vary depending on the company and the industry, but there are several key stages that are typically considered. These stages include:

- *Pre-seed funding:* This is the earliest stage of funding for a startup, typically used to validate the business idea and develop a minimum viable product (MVP). This funding is often provided by the founder(s) themselves, friends, and family.
- Seed funding: Seed funding is used to help a start-up build a team, develop a product, and generate initial traction. Seed funding is typically provided by angel investors, seed funds, and incubators.

- Series A funding: Series A funding is typically used to help a start-up scale its business and expand its operations. At this stage, the company should have a MVP, early traction, and a clear go-to-market strategy. Series A funding is typically provided by venture capital firms.
- Series B funding: Series B funding is typically used to help a start-up continue to scale its business and may also be used to help the company prepare for an initial public offering (IPO) or acquisition. Series B funding is also typically provided by venture capital firms, along with private equity firms.
- Series C funding and beyond: Series C funding is typically used to help a company continue to grow and scale and may also be used to prepare for an IPO or acquisition. This stage of funding is often provided by venture capital firms, private equity firms, and institutional investors.

It's worth noting that these stages are not set in stone, and there can be some variations depending on the company and the industry. Some start-ups might require multiple rounds of funding before reaching a later stage, and some could go straight to Series B or C with a strong team, traction, and a clear path to profitability.

It's also important to mention that crowdfunding, grants, and debt financing are at the forefront of other ways of financing for startups, but these are not considered as traditional funding rounds.

Family and Friends: The Riskiest Stage of Investment

"I always tell founders to raise as much money as possible from friends and family in the early stages. Not only will they be more forgiving of your mistakes, but they'll also be more likely to help you in the future." - Mark Cuban, entrepreneur, and investor.

Family and friends are often the first people entrepreneurs turn to

when seeking investment for their start-up. There are several reasons why they may choose to invest in a start-up, including a belief in the entrepreneur and the potential for a strong return on investment.

First and foremost, family and friends may choose to invest in a start-up because they believe in the entrepreneur. They may have known the entrepreneur for a long time and have seen their drive, determination, and passion for the business. They may also have confidence in the entrepreneur's ability to turn the business into a success. This belief and trust in the entrepreneur can be a powerful motivator for family and friends to invest in the start-up.

Another reason why family and friends may choose to invest in a start-up is the potential for a strong return on investment. Start-ups have the potential to grow quickly and generate significant profits, which can be attractive to investors. In addition, investing in a start-up can be a way for family and friends to be a part of something exciting and innovative. They may feel a sense of pride in being involved in the early stages of a successful business and may also appreciate the opportunity to be part of the entrepreneur's journey.

Moreover, family and friends may also invest to support the entrepreneur in their endeavours. They may be emotionally invested in the entrepreneur's success and want to do everything they can to help them achieve their goals. This can be especially true when the entrepreneur is a close family member or friend, as they may feel a sense of responsibility to help them succeed. This can be a powerful motivator for family and friends to invest in a start-up.

Moreover, family and friends may also invest in a start-up to diversify their investment portfolio. Investing in start-ups can be a way to spread risk across a variety of investments and potentially generate higher returns. Family and friends may also find the process of investing in a start-up to be an exciting and rewarding experience, which can be a powerful motivator for them to invest in

a start-up.

Furthermore, family and friends may also invest in a start-up because they believe in the idea or product. They may see potential for the product to change the industry and have a positive impact on society. They may also see potential for the product to gain wide acceptance and generate significant profits. This can be a powerful motivator for family and friends to invest in a start-up.

In conclusion, family and friends may choose to invest in a start-up for a variety of reasons, including belief in the entrepreneur, potential for a strong return on investment, and a desire to support the entrepreneur in their endeavours. Investing in a start-up can be an exciting and rewarding experience for family and friends, and it can also be a way for them to be a part of something innovative and meaningful.

Venture Capital: When does it start investing in a Start-up?

"We don't invest in companies; we invest in people. We look for teams that have the ability to adapt and iterate, as well as the drive and determination to see their vision through. We want to be in at the earliest stage, when the company is just an idea, and the team is just forming. That's when we can have the most impact and help shape the direction of the company." - Marc Andreessen, Co-Founder of Andreessen Horowitz

Despite the quote above, Venture Capital (VC) firms typically consider investing in start-ups at later stages of the company's life cycle, such as the growth or expansion stage. The timing of their investments has more to do with their definition of an early start-up. This is typically when a company has already validated its business model and has a clear path to revenue and profitability.

VC firms typically invest in start-ups that have already raised seed or angel funding and have a minimum viable product (MVP) or a product in the market. This allows them to assess the traction and market acceptance of the product, and the potential for scaling the business.

There are a few key factors that make pre-seed rounds unattractive to VC firms.

First, pre-seed companies are often still in the process of validating their business model and may not have a clear path to revenue or profitability. Without a clear understanding of the market and revenue potential, it can be difficult for VC firms to assess the potential return on investment.

Second, pre-seed start-ups often have a limited track record and may not have a clear understanding of their target market or a proven product or service. This lack of traction and validation can make it difficult for VC firms to assess the potential for success.

Third, pre-seed rounds often require a large amount of capital to get the company off the ground, and this can be a significant risk for VC firms. They may not be willing to invest such a large amount of money in a start-up that is still in the early stages of development and may not have a clear path to profitability.

Finally, pre-seed rounds often require a large degree of mentorship, guidance, and support, which is not typically provided by venture capital firms. VC firms tend to focus on later stage investments, where they can provide more value to the company with their industry expertise, networks, and resources to help the company scale.

In summary, venture capital firms generally do not invest in preseed rounds because they are considered too early stage and risky. Pre-seed companies often lack a clear path to revenue or profitability, a track record, and a clear understanding of the target market, which can make it difficult for VC firms to assess the potential return on investment. Additionally, pre-seed rounds often require a large amount of capital and a high degree of mentorship and support, which is not typically provided by venture capital firms.

Recommended Reading:

"The Four Steps to the Epiphany" is a book by entrepreneur and author Steve Blank that outlines his methodology for building successful start-ups. The key points of the book include:

Customer development: Blank emphasizes the importance of understanding and validating customer needs before building a product or service. He encourages start-ups to get out of the building and talk to potential customers to gain a deep understanding of their needs and pain points.

Lean start-up: Blank advocates for a lean, iterative approach to building start-ups, emphasizing the need to quickly test and validate assumptions about customers, markets, and business models. He encourages start-ups to focus on building a minimum viable product and then iterating based on customer feedback.

Business model: Blank argues that the business model is the most important part of a start-up. He emphasizes the importance of identifying a repeatable and scalable business model that will allow the start-up to grow and become profitable.

Team: Blank stresses the importance of building a strong team that can execute on the business model. He encourages start-ups to focus on finding the right people with the right skills and experience to help grow the business.

The four steps: The book is divided into four steps: customer discovery, customer validation, customer creation, and company building. Blank argues that start-ups need to go through each step to be successful.

Overall, the book focuses on using customer development and a lean start-up approach to validate a scalable business model, with the right team and resources, before fully investing in the company building.

Part 2: Plan before Action

Investing in start-ups can be a high-risk, high-reward opportunity. High risk because they are early-stage companies that often have limited financial resources, unproven business models, and uncertain futures.

However, investing in start-ups can also provide investors with the opportunity for substantial returns if the start-up becomes successful. Start-ups that can scale and grow can generate substantial returns for their investors, and it can also enable investors to get in on the ground floor of exciting and innovative companies.

It's worth noting that most start-ups fail, and the chances of losing all the invested money is high, but the ones that do succeed can generate substantial returns for their investors. It is also important to diversify your portfolio and not to invest more than you can afford to lose.

Ultimately, whether investing in start-ups is worth it depends on an investor's risk tolerance, investment goals, and overall financial situation. Before investing in a start-up, it's essential to conduct thorough research and analysis to understand the start-up's potential for success and the risks associated with the investment.

Before investing in any early start-up, it is important to ask several key questions to ensure that your investment is sound. This can help to mitigate risk, maximize potential rewards, and provide a greater sense of security. Asking the right questions provides insight into the business, its founders, the industry, and the potential for success. In this book, we will explore some of the key questions to ask before investing in early start-ups.

Planning for Success

"A goal without a plan is just a wish." - Antoine de Saint-Exupéry

Antoine de Saint-Exupéry was a French writer, poet, and aviator. He is best known for his novella "The Little Prince," which has been translated into over 300 languages and sold over 140 million copies worldwide. He was also a pioneering aviator, and his works often reflect his experiences in the aviation industry. Saint-Exupéry disappeared on a reconnaissance mission during World War II and is believed to have died in a plane crash.

A start-up that is in the pre-seed stage can start immediately from Day 1 (Idea) to take several steps to prepare itself to attract later stages of funding (Exit). The Chapters following will dive deeper into core components to prepare yourself, however it is worthwhile putting into play the following:

- Developing a solid business plan: A well-written business plan that clearly outlines the company's goals, target market, revenue model, and growth strategy can help attract investors and demonstrate the company's potential for success.
- Building a minimum viable product (MVP): Developing an MVP can help a start-up validate its business model and generate initial traction. It also helps to have a prototype or a working version of the product to showcase to potential investors.
- Building a strong team: Having a strong team in place with relevant industry experience and a track record of success can help attract investors. A good team can help to execute the business plan and scale the business.
- *Generating early traction:* Generating early traction can help to demonstrate the company's potential for success and attract investors. This could include early customers, partnerships, or pilot projects.
- *Networking:* Networking with other entrepreneurs, investors, and industry experts can help a start-up to build relationships and learn more about the industry. It can also help to raise awareness of the company and attract potential investors.

- Researching and targeting the right investors: Identifying and targeting the right investors is crucial to the fundraising process.
 Start-ups should research the investors' portfolio, interests, and focus areas, and tailor their pitch to match their interests.
- Developing a clear go-to-market strategy: A clear go-to-market strategy can help a start-up to attract investors by demonstrating how the company plans to generate revenue and scale its business.
- Showcasing the potential for a significant return on investment: Investors are looking for companies that have the potential to generate significant returns on their investment. Start-ups should showcase their potential for growth and scalability to attract later stage investors.

By taking these steps, a start-up can demonstrate its potential for success and attract later stage investors. However, it's worth noting that fundraising is a process that takes time and effort, and the success rate is usually low. Entrepreneurs should be prepared for rejection and be persistent in their efforts to secure funding.

This book provides a comprehensive guide to questions that must be asked when developing and/or investing in early-stage start-ups.

- Founders and Investors will be better prepared as they examine multiple approaches to founding and investing and dive into some not often asked questions that must be considered.
- It covers the fundamentals of decision-making requirements, as well as the benefits and risks of investing in early-stage startups.
- It provides an overview of the requirements of the angel investing and venture capital landscape and offers tips on how to identify and evaluate potential investments.
- Founders will gain knowledge on what Investors will be looking to conduct their due diligence on before investing in your company.

• Investors will gain the knowledge and skills necessary to make informed decisions on early-stage investments.

Cross Cutting factors

"I definitely see a correlation between how many things a company gets right and how fast a company grows." - Garrett Camp, cofounder of Uber

There are many factors that can contribute to the success of an early-stage start-up. As you will note as you progress through this book there are some cross-cutting and general factors that appear again and again. The cross-cutting factors that often define a great early-stage start-up include:

- A clear and compelling value proposition: A great early-stage start-up has a clear and compelling value proposition that addresses a significant pain point or unmet need in the market.
- Strong and experienced team: A great early-stage start-up has a strong and experienced team that has the skills, knowledge, and vision to execute the business plan and drive the company forward.
- *Traction and momentum:* A great early-stage start-up has traction and momentum, such as revenue, customers, partnerships, or other indicators that show that the company is moving in the right direction.
- A scalable and defensible business model: A great early-stage start-up has a scalable and defensible business model that can support the company's growth and protect its market position.
- A well-defined and ambitious growth plan: A great early-stage start-up has a well-defined and ambitious growth plan that outlines the steps the company will take to scale its operations and achieve its goals.

- A solid and realistic financial plan: A great early-stage start-up has a solid and realistic financial plan that outlines the company's revenue streams, costs, and milestones.
- A focus on customer: A great early-stage start-up has a focus on the customer, by regularly gathering feedback, analysing the user's needs and habits, and making sure that the product or service solves a real problem for the target audience.
- A flexible and adaptive mindset: A great early-stage start-up has a flexible and adaptive mindset, that can pivot or adapt to changes in the market and customer needs, as well as to identify new opportunities.

It's important to note that no start-up will have all these factors perfectly in place

Challenges and Uncertainties

Early start-ups also face a variety of challenges and uncertainties, and it very important for both Founders and Investors to be aware of these.

Some of the challenges and uncertainties include:

- *Product development:* Developing a product or service that meets the needs of the target market can be a significant challenge, especially in the early stages when resources are limited and there is little feedback from customers.
- *Market validation:* Identifying and validating a target market and understanding customer needs is crucial for the success of a start-up, but it can also be challenging and uncertain, especially in new or untested markets.
- *Fundraising:* Securing funding is a major challenge for start-ups, as investors are often hesitant to take risks on untested or unproven business models.

- *Competition:* Start-ups often face intense competition, both from established companies and from other start-ups in the same space. This can make it difficult to gain market share or to maintain profitability.
- *Hiring and retaining talent:* Attracting and retaining the right team members can be a major challenge for start-ups, as they often have limited resources and may not be able to offer the same level of compensation and benefits as larger, established companies.
- *Scaling:* Scaling a start-up's operations, sales, and production to meet growing demand can be a major challenge, especially in the early stages.
- Regulations and legal issues: Compliance with laws and regulations can be a significant challenge for start-ups, especially in highly regulated industries, such as healthcare or finance.
- *Time constraints:* Start-ups often have a limited time frame to achieve success and may have to make quick decisions with limited data.
- *Uncertain future:* The future of any start-up is uncertain and can be difficult to predict, as the market conditions, customer preferences and technology are all factors that change rapidly.
- *Cash flow:* In the early stages, a start-up may not have steady revenue, which can make it difficult to meet short-term commitments

Matching Founders to Investors

An investor in an early-stage start-up is not simply someone with money that is prepared to invest in a start-up. The definitions are much broader and within the categorisation of them there are also subcategories defining the type of investment thesis they may adhere to.

- Solo Angel Investors: These are individuals who invest their own personal funds into a start-up. They may have a specific industry or business model that they are interested in investing in.
- Angel Investor Groups: These are groups of individuals who pool their money together to invest in start-ups. They may have a specific industry or business model that they are interested in investing in.
- *Super Angels:* These are high net-worth individuals who have a strong track record of investing in successful start-ups. They may have a specific industry or business model that they are interested in investing in.
- Seed Funds: These are investment funds that focus on investing in early-stage start-ups. They may have a specific industry or business model that they are interested in investing in.
- Crowdfunding Platforms: These are platforms that allow individuals to invest small amounts of money into start-ups in exchange for equity or rewards.
- Family Offices: These are investment firms that manage the financial assets of wealthy families. They may invest in start-ups as part of their portfolio diversification strategy.
- Strategic Investors: These are investors who invest in start-ups to gain access to new technologies or business models that can help their own business.
- *Institutional Investors:* These are investment firms that invest in start-ups as part of their portfolio diversification strategy.

Thesis of an Investor

Within the categorization of types of investors, there also exists a thesis by which those investors select their investing strategy. Broadly there are three theses: Momentum Investors, Value Investors, and Alternate Investors

Momentum investors are characterized by a reliance on instinct and vision. A momentum investor in early start-ups is an investor who focuses on companies that are experiencing rapid growth or have a strong track record of success. These investors typically invest in start-ups that have already proven their business model and have a strong customer base, as opposed to early-stage companies that are still in the development phase. They look for companies that have momentum in terms of revenue, user growth, or other key metrics, and are likely to continue growing in the future. These investors are often more willing to take on higher levels of risk than other types of investors, as they believe that the potential for high returns outweighs the potential for loss.

Momentum investors typically look for the following characteristics in a start-up:

- Proven business model: They want to see that the start-up has a clear and effective business model that has been validated by early adopters or customers.
- Strong growth: They are looking for companies that have demonstrated rapid growth in terms of revenue, user base, or other key metrics.
- Traction: They want to see that the company has already attracted a significant number of customers or users and that it has a loyal customer base.
- Scalability: They look for start-ups that have a clear path to scaling their business and increasing revenue.
- Strong management team: They want to invest in start-ups with a strong and experienced management team that has a proven track record of success.
- Competitive advantage: They look for start-ups that have a unique product or service offering that sets them apart from competitors in their market.

• Exit potential: They also consider the potential of the start-up to be acquired or go public, as this will provide them with a high return on their investment.

Value investors invest in companies that come to the table with solid financials. A value investor in early start-ups is an investor who focuses on finding undervalued companies that have strong fundamentals and long-term growth potential. These investors typically invest in start-ups that are in the early stages of development, but have a clear and viable business model, solid management team, and the potential for significant growth. They look for companies that are trading at a lower price than their intrinsic value, and believe that with time, the market will realize the true value of the company and the stock price will increase.

Value investors in early start-ups tend to focus on the company's underlying financials, such as cash flow, revenue, and earnings, as well as its industry trends and the management team. They also tend to be more patient investors, as they understand that it may take time for the company to reach its full potential. They are also more cautious and risk-averse than momentum investors, as they believe that a company's long-term prospects are more important than short-term gains.

Value investors typically look for the following characteristics in an early start-up:

- Strong fundamentals: They look for companies with solid financials, such as cash flow, revenue, and earnings, that indicate the company's long-term potential for growth.
- Undervalued stock price: They believe that the company's stock price is trading at a lower price than its intrinsic value, and that with time, the market will realize the true value of the company.
- Viable business model: They want to see that the start-up has a clear and effective business model that has been validated by early adopters or customers.

- Strong management team: They want to invest in start-ups with a strong and experienced management team that has a proven track record of success.
- Long-term growth potential: They are looking for companies that have the potential for significant growth in the long-term, rather than short-term gains.
- Competitive advantage: They look for start-ups that have a unique product or service offering that sets them apart from competitors in their market.
- Potential for profitability: They are looking for start-ups that have potential to generate profits in the future.
- A robust industry: They also look for companies that operate in an industry that is likely to be profitable in the future.

Finally, Alternative Investors want to do more than make an investment; they want to send a message.

An alternative investor in early start-ups is an investor who looks for investment opportunities beyond traditional stocks, bonds, and real estate. These investors typically invest in a wide range of assets, such as private equity, venture capital, hedge funds, and real assets. They are more likely to invest in early-stage start-ups that are not yet publicly traded and may have higher levels of risk than traditional investments.

Alternative investors in early start-ups typically focus on finding start-ups that have unique business models, disruptive technologies, or innovative solutions, and that can provide high returns on investment. These investors are willing to take on higher levels of risk than traditional investors, as they believe that the potential for high returns outweighs the potential for loss. They also tend to be more patient and long-term oriented than traditional investors, as they understand that it may take time for the start-up to reach its full potential.

Alternative investors typically look for the following characteristics

in an early start-up:

- Unique business model or disruptive technology: They look for start-ups that have a unique or innovative business model or technology that sets them apart from competitors.
- High potential for growth: They are looking for companies that have the potential for significant growth in the long-term.
- Strong management team: They want to invest in start-ups with a strong and experienced management team that has a proven track record of success.
- Potential for high returns on investment: They are willing to take on higher levels of risk to achieve higher returns on investment.
- Strong industry trends: They look for start-ups that operate in industries that are likely to be profitable in the future.
- Scalability: They look for start-ups that have a clear path to scaling their business and increasing revenue.
- Potential for exits: They also consider the potential of the startup to be acquired or go public, as this will provide them with a high return on their investment.
- Uniqueness: They look for companies that bring something new to the table, like a new technology, new market or a new business model.
- Early-stage start-ups: They are more willing to invest in earlystage start-ups that are not yet publicly traded and may have higher levels of risk than traditional investments.

Part 3: The Psychology of Startup Investing

What should Founders look for in Investors?

Founders should look for investors that align with the company's mission, vision, values, and goals. Here are some key things that Founders should consider when looking for investors:

- Alignment of interests: Founders should look for investors who share their vision and are aligned with their long-term goals for the company.
- Experience and expertise: Investors with experience in the industry and a proven track record of success can provide valuable guidance and mentorship to the start-up.
- Network and Connections: Investors with a strong network and connections in the industry can help the start-up to gain access to new markets, customers, and partners.
- Capital and resources: Investors should be able to provide the start-up with the capital and resources it needs to grow and scale.
- Active involvement: Founders should look for investors who are willing to actively involve themselves in the company and provide valuable support and guidance.
- Flexibility: Investors should be flexible and open to the company's needs, whether it's working on a specific project, or adapting to a change in the plan.
- Fit and personality: Founders should look for investors who they feel comfortable working with and who they can trust to act in the best interest of the company.
- Valuation expectations: Investors should understand the startup's financials and be willing to invest at a fair valuation that aligns with the company's growth prospects.

Why Bad Investment Decisions take place?

If a founder does a good sales pitch, or FOMO kicks in, etc., an investor can be swayed into making a bad decision. While we like to think that Founders are generally honourable, history is unfortunately littered with bad actors in the start-up sector.

There are several causes of bad investment decision making, including:

- Lack of information or knowledge about the investment: Without sufficient information or understanding of an investment, it can be difficult to make an informed decision.
- Emotion: Fear, greed, and other emotions can influence investment decisions and lead to impulsive or irrational choices.
- Overconfidence: Some investors may overestimate their own abilities or the quality of their investment choices, leading them to take excessive risks or ignore warning signs.
- Confirmation bias: Investors may selectively seek out information that confirms their existing beliefs or hypotheses, rather than objectively evaluating all available information.
- Herding: Investors may make decisions based on the actions of others, rather than their own independent research and analysis.
- Behavioural biases: cognitive biases such as availability bias, framing effect, and sunk cost fallacy can lead to suboptimal investment decisions.
- Poor diversification: Failing to diversify an investment portfolio can expose an investor to undue risk.
- Lack of a long-term perspective: Some investors may focus too heavily on short-term performance or market fluctuations, rather than considering the long-term potential of an investment.

Case Study:

A company that was unable to remove cognitive biases such as availability bias, framing effect, and sunk cost fallacy that led to

Future-Proofing Start-ups

suboptimal investment decisions is the oil and gas company, ExxonMobil.

In the early 2000s, ExxonMobil, one of the largest oil and gas companies in the world, faced a decision on whether to invest in renewable energy sources such as wind and solar power, or to continue to focus on fossil fuels.

One of the cognitive biases that affected ExxonMobil's decision-making was availability bias. The company had a long history of success in the fossil fuel industry, and its management may have been overly influenced by past successes and the available information about fossil fuels, rather than looking at the potential for renewable energy.

Another cognitive bias that affected ExxonMobil's decision-making was framing effect. The company may have perceived the investment in renewable energy as a cost, rather than an opportunity, leading them to continue to focus on fossil fuels.

Sunk cost fallacy also played a role in ExxonMobil's decisionmaking, as the company had already invested heavily in fossil fuel infrastructure and may have been reluctant to shift resources away from it

As a result of these biases, ExxonMobil failed to invest in renewable energy sources in a significant way, and the company has lagged its competitors in the transition to cleaner energy. The company's lack of investment in renewable energy is a contributing factor to its lagging stock performance in comparison to competitors, who have successfully diversified their energy portfolio.

In summary, ExxonMobil's inability to remove cognitive biases such as availability bias, framing effect, and sunk cost fallacy led the company to make suboptimal investment decisions, by not investing in renewable energy sources, which put the company at a disadvantage in the long-term.

Solving the problem of lack of information or data when investing in an early start-up

While not hard and fast rules, there are general ways that an investor would use to reduce the risk of poor data:

- 1. Reach out to the start-up's management team: Try to get in touch with the founders or key members of the management team. Ask them about their business model, target market, and financial projections. They may also be able to provide you with additional information or data.
- 2. Network with other investors: Talk to other investors who have experience investing in early-stage start-ups. They may have insights and information that can help you make a more informed decision.
- 3. Attend industry events: Attend industry events, such as conferences or start-up pitches, to learn more about the start-up ecosystem and to meet other investors and entrepreneurs.
- 4. Conduct your own research: Use online resources, such as industry reports or market research, to learn more about the start-up's target market and competition.
- 5. Seek out third-party opinions: Talk to industry experts, analysts, or consultants who may have knowledge or experience in the start-up's industry. They can provide valuable insights and perspective on the company's potential for growth.
- 6. Be prepared to take on a higher level of risk: It's important to note that investing in an early-stage start-up is inherently riskier than investing in an established company. Be prepared to take on a higher level of risk, in return for the potential for higher returns.

Emotion in the investment decision making process

Emotion can be a major obstacle in the investment decision-making process, leading to impulsive and sometimes irrational decisions.

One way to remove emotion from the process is to follow a systematic and disciplined investment strategy. This can involve creating a written investment plan that outlines your goals, risk tolerance, and investment strategy, and sticking to it even during periods of market volatility. Additionally, you can also use techniques such as asset allocation, diversification, and dollar-cost averaging to help reduce the impact of emotions on your investment decisions.

Another way is to use quantitative or fundamental analysis tools that are based on objective data and historical performance instead of intuition or gut feeling. Or working with a financial advisor who can provide guidance and help keep emotions in check.

It's also important to be aware of your own emotional triggers and biases, and to take steps to manage them. This can involve seeking out education and information on common cognitive biases, such as the recency bias and the disposition effect, and learning to recognize when they may be affecting your investment decisions.

Removing Emotion from the Investment decision-making process

- Develop a clear investment strategy: Establish a set of criteria that you will use to evaluate potential investments.
 This will help you to stay focused on the facts and avoid being swayed by emotions.
- Gather and analyse data: Research the company, its products or services, its market, and its competitors. Use this information to create a detailed investment case and to identify potential risks and opportunities.
- Seek out multiple perspectives: Discuss the potential investment with colleagues, mentors, or other investors. This can help you to gain a more balanced perspective and to identify any blind spots in your own analysis.

- Avoid chasing trends: Just because a certain industry or company is currently hot does not mean that it is a good investment. Avoid getting caught up in hype or fear of missing out and stick to your investment strategy.
- Take a long-term perspective: Remember that investing in a start-up is a long-term game. Avoid making short-term decisions based on emotions, and instead focus on the potential for long-term growth.
- Be ready to walk away: If a potential investment does not meet your criteria or if you are uncomfortable with the level of risk, be prepared to walk away. Don't let emotions cloud your judgement and make a bad investment.

Removing Cognitive Bias from the Investment decisionmaking process

Cognitive biases refer to systematic patterns of deviation from norm or rationality in judgment, whereby inferences about other people and situations may be drawn in an illogical fashion. These biases are often a result of the brain's attempt to simplify information processing. Cognitive biases can have a powerful influence on the decisions and judgments that people make. A wide range of cognitive biases have been identified and studied, including the anchoring bias, availability heuristic, and confirmation bias.

Cognitive biases can have a significant impact on investment decisions, as they can lead investors to make judgments and decisions that deviate from rational or logical thinking. Some examples of cognitive biases that can affect investment decisions include:

 Anchoring bias: This bias refers to the tendency to rely too heavily on the first piece of information encountered when making decisions. In investing, this can lead to an undue attachment to an initial stock price or valuation, making it difficult to adjust to new information.

- Confirmation bias: This bias refers to the tendency to seek out and give more weight to information that confirms pre-existing beliefs or hypotheses. In investing, this can lead to a tendency to selectively seek out information that confirms an investment thesis, while ignoring or discounting information that contradicts it.
- Herding bias: This bias refers to the tendency for people to imitate the actions of others, especially in times of uncertainty. In investing, this can lead to a tendency to follow the "herd" mentality of buying or selling a stock based on what others are doing, rather than on the fundamentals of the company.
- Overconfidence bias: This bias refers to the tendency for people to overestimate their own abilities, and to overestimate the accuracy of their predictions. In investing, this can lead to an overestimation of one's ability to predict market movements or the performance of specific stocks, which can lead to overtrading and poor performance.

These are just some examples of cognitive biases that can affect investment decisions. It's important to be aware of these biases and to try to counteract them using techniques such as mental contrasting, or checklists to make investment decisions.

Case Study:

A company that was able to remove cognitive bias and make a hugely valuable investment in a start-up is Founders Fund, a venture capital firm founded by Peter Thiel, Ken Howery, Luke Nosek, and Brian O'Malley in 2005.

Founders Fund is known for its unique approach to venture capital investing, which emphasizes a focus on science and technology start-ups with the potential for massive growth. The firm has a reputation for making bold investments in companies that are

Future-Proofing Start-ups

considered "out of the box" and have the potential to change the world.

One of the key factors in Founders Fund's success is its ability to remove cognitive bias and make investments based on data and analysis rather than intuition or gut feelings. The firm has a rigorous due diligence process that includes deep research and analysis of the company's technology, market, and team. This process is designed to minimize the influence of cognitive biases and ensure that investments are based on sound data and analysis.

Another important aspect of Founders Fund's investment strategy is its focus on long-term value creation. The firm takes a patient approach to investing and works closely with its portfolio companies to help them achieve their full potential.

One example of a successful investment by Founders Fund is the company, SpaceX. Founded by Elon Musk in 2002, SpaceX is a private American aerospace manufacturer and space transportation services company. The company designs, manufactures, and launches advanced rockets and spacecraft. In 2011, Founders Fund invested \$1.5 million in SpaceX for a 3% ownership stake. As of 2021, SpaceX's valuation is over \$74 billion, and it has become one of the most valuable private companies in the world.

In summary, Founders Fund's approach to venture capital investing, which emphasizes a focus on data and analysis, a rigorous due diligence process, and a patient approach to building long-term value, has allowed the firm to make highly valuable investments in start-ups, such as SpaceX, that have the potential to change the world.

Techniques that can be used to try to remove cognitive biases from investment decisions

- Mental contrasting: This technique involves first visualizing a
 desired outcome, and then identifying the potential obstacles
 that could prevent that outcome from happening. By mentally
 contrasting the positive outcome with the potential obstacles,
 individuals can increase their motivation to overcome those
 obstacles, while also developing a more realistic understanding
 of the situation.
- Checklists: Creating a checklist of factors to consider when making an investment decision can help to ensure that all relevant information is considered, while also reducing the influence of cognitive biases.
- Seek multiple perspectives and diversity of thought: A single person has limited perspective and information, thus involving people with diverse background and perspective can add new dimensions and increase the quality of decision making.
- Deliberate practice: Just like other skills, decision making skills require deliberate practice. Investors can practice using scenarios, experiments, and historical events to improve their decision-making abilities.
- Seek objective, quantitative data: subjective data are often clouded by biases and emotions, thus using objective, quantitative data can provide a more neutral basis for making investment decisions.
- Review historical decisions: By reviewing past decisions, one can evaluate the decision-making process and look for instances of bias.
- Working with a financial advisor, who can help provide additional perspective and guidance, can also be beneficial. Additionally, seeking guidance from professional organizations or groups can also help to reduce the influence of cognitive biases.

It's important to note that eliminating cognitive biases may be impossible, but the goal should be to minimize their impact as much as possible. Additionally, it's important to remember that it's a process, not a one-time event, biases can be reduced but they may always exist, so one should be vigilant and keep working on them.

There are many examples of cognitive biases leading to bad investments, here are a few:

- Herding bias: During the dot-com bubble of the late 1990s, many investors were caught up in the "herd mentality" of buying technology stocks without fully considering the fundamentals of the companies. This led to a significant overvaluation of many technology companies, and a subsequent crash when the bubble burst.
- Confirmation bias: During the housing bubble of the mid-2000s, many investors and analysts were overly optimistic about the housing market, and selectively sought out data and information that confirmed their bullish views. They ignored or discounted negative information, such as rising defaults and delinquencies in the subprime market, which ultimately led to the financial crisis of 2008.
- Anchoring bias: The anchoring bias can also be seen in the form
 of an excessive focus on historical prices of investments, or an
 overreliance on market averages as benchmark for evaluating
 investment performance. This can lead investors to hold on to
 underperforming investments for too long, or to overvalue an
 investment based on historical prices without considering the
 current market conditions.
- Overconfidence bias: Investors who overestimate their own abilities, or the accuracy of their predictions, can engage in overtrading, buying, and selling securities too frequently, which can lead to poor performance, additional costs, and taxes.
- Representativeness bias: It's also a form of stereotype thinking.
 Representativeness bias can lead investors to assume that past performance is indicative of future results, and to overvalue

investments that have performed well in the past, without considering other important factors such as economic conditions and changes in the industry.

These are just a few examples of how cognitive biases can lead to bad investments. It's important to be aware of these biases and to try to counteract them using techniques such as mental contrasting, or checklists to make investment decisions. And, to diversify your portfolio and not put all your eggs in one basket, it'll help you to reduce the impact of any bad decision made due to cognitive biases.

Case Study:

A company that was unable to remove cognitive bias and made a costly investment in a sector is the investment bank, Lehman Brothers.

In the mid-2000s, Lehman Brothers was one of the largest investment banks in the world, with a market capitalization of over \$60 billion. However, the bank made several costly investments in the U.S housing market that were heavily influenced by cognitive biases.

One of the main cognitive biases that affected Lehman Brothers' decision-making was overconfidence. The bank's management, along with many other market participants, believed that the housing market would continue to grow indefinitely and that the value of housing would never decrease. This led them to invest heavily in risky mortgage-backed securities, which were tied to the housing market.

Another cognitive bias that affected Lehman Brothers' decisionmaking was herd mentality. Many market participants were investing in the housing market, and Lehman Brothers felt pressure to follow suit, to not miss out on the potential profits.

As a result of these biases, Lehman Brothers' investments in the housing market were heavily exposed to the housing market crash

of 2008. This led to the bank's bankruptcy, which was the largest in U.S history. The bankruptcy resulted in a loss of jobs for thousands of employees, as well as significant losses for shareholders and investors.

In summary, Lehman Brothers' inability to remove cognitive bias and make sound investment decisions based on data and analysis led to costly investments in the housing market and ultimately to the bank's bankruptcy during the financial crisis of 2008.

Recommended Reading

"Noise: A Flaw in Human Judgment" by Daniel Kahneman provides a detailed examination of the concept of noise in decision making, and how it can impact start-ups.

The book emphasizes the importance of understanding and mitigating noise in judgment, as it can lead to poor decision making and unrealistic expectations of future performance. The author argues that overconfidence is a common bias among entrepreneurs and investors, which can lead to poor decision making and unrealistic expectations of future performance.

The book also highlights the importance of being aware of cognitive biases such as anchoring, confirmation bias, sunk cost fallacy, availability bias, and framing effect which can lead to irrational decisions.

The book also suggests that decision-making strategies such as scenario planning, pre-mortems, and the use of decision-making heuristics can help to mitigate the effects of noise in judgment and cognitive biases. Scenario planning, for example, can help decision makers to consider alternative scenarios and prepare for different outcomes. Pre-mortems, on the other hand, can help decision makers

to identify potential problems before they occur. The use of decision-making heuristics can also help decision makers to make more rational decisions by providing a framework for making decisions in uncertain situations.

In conclusion, "Noise: A Flaw in Human Judgment" by Daniel Kahneman is an important book for entrepreneurs, investors, and decision makers in start-ups, as it provides valuable insights into the concept of noise in decision making and how it can impact start-ups. The book also provides practical strategies for mitigating the effects of noise and cognitive biases, which can help decision makers to make more rational and informed decisions.

"Superforecasting: The Art and Science of Prediction" is a book by Philip E. Tetlock and Dan Gardner that examines the concept of "Superforecasting" and its application to decision making in various fields, including start-ups. The book highlights several key points related to start-ups, including:

The importance of forecasting: The book emphasizes the importance of forecasting in decision making, particularly in the start-up world where the future is uncertain.

The concept of "Superforecasting": The book introduces the concept of "Superforecasting," which refers to the ability to make accurate predictions about future events. The book argues that Superforecasting can be learned and improved with practice.

The role of cognitive biases: The book highlights the role of cognitive biases in forecasting, such as overconfidence, and the importance of recognizing and mitigating these biases to improve forecasting accuracy.

The value of diverse perspectives: The book argues that diversity of

Future-Proofing Start-ups

perspectives is essential for Superforecasting, as it helps to reduce the influence of cognitive biases and increases the chances of finding the best solution.

The importance of calibration: The book emphasizes the importance of calibration, which refers to the ability to accurately estimate the probability of an event occurring.

The use of structured methods: The book suggests that the use of structured methods such as scenario planning, Bayesian reasoning, and the use of base rates can help to improve forecasting accuracy.

Core Sections for Analysis

Every investment decision should examine core components, many of which are cross cutting as stated earlier. Where there seems repetition, this is not an error, but serves to emphasis that these components are 'CORE' to the successful development of a Startup.

Core components include:

Part 4: Idea or Product: an idea refers to the initial concept or proposal for a new product, service, or business model. It is the seed from which the start-up grows and is the foundation upon which the company is built. A start-up idea can come from various sources, it can be a solution to a problem that the founder(s) has experienced, an opportunity to fill a gap in the market, or a new technology that can be leveraged to create a new product or service.

An idea is the first step in creating a start-up, but it is important to note that a good idea alone is not enough to guarantee success. The idea must be validated by researching the market and customer needs, testing the concept and the business model, and building a team that can execute the plan.

Part 5: Team: the team refers to the group of individuals who are responsible for building, launching, and growing the business. This typically includes the founders or co-founders, as well as key employees such as executives, managers, and other staff members.

The team is responsible for a wide range of tasks, including developing the product or service, building the business model, raising capital, recruiting, and managing employees, and driving growth.

The team dynamic is crucial to the success of a start-up. A strong

team is made up of individuals with diverse skill sets, experiences, and a shared vision for the company. The team should be able to work together effectively, communicate openly and be able to handle pressure and uncertainty.

A good team can execute the business strategy, make decisions quickly, and adapt to changes. The team should be able to work together effectively, communicate openly and be able to handle pressure and uncertainty. A good team culture is also essential, with a positive and supportive environment, where everyone feels valued and encouraged to bring their best work.

Part 6: Product market fit refers to the point at which a start-up's product or service meets the needs and desires of its target market in a way that generates sustainable growth and profitability. In other words, it's the point when a start-up's product or service is so well-aligned with the needs and wants of the target market, that it creates a strong demand for it.

Achieving product market fit is crucial for a start-up's success because without it, a start-up may have difficulty generating revenue and attracting customers.

To achieve product market fit, start-ups often go through a process of customer development, where they validate their assumptions about their target market, their problem, and their solution. This process can involve talking to potential customers, conducting market research, and testing different versions of their product or service to see which features and benefits resonate most with their target market.

Once a start-up has achieved product market fit, it can begin to focus on scaling its operations and growing its business.

It's important to note that product market fit is not a one-time event, it is a continuous process, as the market and the customer's needs

are constantly changing, and a start-up must adapt to those changes to maintain its competitiveness.

Part 8: Competition refers to other businesses or organizations that offer similar products or services to the same target market. Competition can come from established companies that have been in the market for a long time, or from new start-ups that are also trying to gain a foothold in the market.

Competition can be direct or indirect. Direct competition refers to other businesses that offer the same or similar products or services, while indirect competition refers to businesses that offer different but complementary products or services.

Start-ups need to be aware of their competition to understand the market they are operating in, and to develop strategies to differentiate themselves. Some ways start-ups can differentiate themselves from their competition include offering a unique value proposition, targeting a niche market, or providing better customer service.

Knowing the competition helps start-ups to understand the strengths and weaknesses of the products or services they are offering, and to find ways to improve them. It also helps start-ups to understand the pricing strategies of the competition, which is an important factor in determining their own pricing strategy.

Overall, competition is an important aspect of the start-up ecosystem. It helps to create a healthy market, and forces start-ups to innovate and improve their products or services to stand out and succeed.

Part 9: Financials refers to the financial statements and data that provide information about the financial performance and health of the company.

There are several key financial statements that are typically used to evaluate a start-up's financials:

- *Income statement:* Also known as the profit and loss statement, the income statement shows a company's revenues and expenses over a period, such as a month or a year. It is used to calculate the company's net income (or net loss) and is an indicator of the company's financial performance.
- Balance sheet: The balance sheet is a snapshot of a company's financial position at a specific point in time. It shows the company's assets, liabilities, and equity. It is used to evaluate the company's liquidity, or its ability to pay its bills, and its solvency, or its ability to meet its long-term obligations.
- Cash flow statement: The cash flow statement shows how a
 company manages its cash, including cash from operations,
 investing and financing activities. It also can provide
 information about a company's ability to generate cash in the
 future.
- *Projected financials:* These financials are the financial statements that are projected for the future. They are based on the company's business plan and assumptions about the future growth and performance of the company. They are commonly used to evaluate the company's potential for success and to secure funding.

All these financial statements are important for evaluating a startup's financial health and performance, and they are often used by investors and other stakeholders to determine whether to invest in the company.

Part 10: Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG). These are three areas that are important factors in evaluating the sustainability and long-term potential of a business.

Environmental factors refer to a company's impact on the environment, such as its carbon footprint, energy consumption, and

Future-Proofing Start-ups

waste management practices. *Social factors* refer to a company's impact on society, including issues such as labour practices, diversity and inclusion, and community engagement. *Governance factors* refer to a company's management and operations, including issues such as transparency, accountability, and ethical behaviour.

Many investors and stakeholders are increasingly considering ESG factors when evaluating start-ups. They believe that companies that prioritize environmental and social responsibility, and have strong governance practices, are likely to be more sustainable and have better long-term prospects.

ESG considerations can also be a part of a start-up's own strategy, it can help them to identify potential risks and opportunities and create a more resilient and sustainable business. It can also help to attract and retain employees, customers and investors who are interested in investing in companies that align with their values.

Overall, ESG factors are becoming increasingly important in the start-up ecosystem as they can affect a company's potential to grow, as well as its reputation, and its ability to attract and retain customers, employees, and investors.

The chapters following go into more detail for each component.

Part 4: Exploring the Vision & IDEA

Components of a Start-up with Key Factors to consider about the Idea or Product before investing

"Whatever you do, be different—that was the advice my mother gave me, and I can't think of better advice for an entrepreneur. If you're different, you will stand out." - Anita Roddick, founder of The Body Shop

An analysis of the idea or vision of a start-up is important before investing because it helps to evaluate the potential for the business to succeed in the long-term.

This analysis

- assesses the market potential: A strong idea or vision can demonstrate the start-up's understanding of its target market and competition, and its ability to create a unique value proposition that can attract and retain customers.
- evaluates the scalability: A good idea or vision has the potential to grow and scale, which is critical for a start-up to succeed in the long-term. An investor wants to see that the start-up has a plan for scaling the business and reaching its potential market.
- *identifies the team's ability to execute:* A start-up's idea or vision is only valuable if the team can execute it. An investor will want to see that the start-up has the right team, skills, and experience to bring the idea or vision to life.
- *measures the profitability:* A good idea or vision should also demonstrate a clear path to profitability. An investor wants to see that the start-up has a viable business model that can generate revenue and sustain the company in the long-term.

In summary, a thorough analysis of the idea or vision of a start-up is critical to understanding the start-up's potential for success, and it helps an investor to identify the risks and opportunities associated with investing in the start-up.

Does the Idea or Product solve a real-world problem?

The proposed or existing Idea or Product should solve a real-world problem or pain point which the start-up should clearly articulate as a Value Proposition

Determining whether an idea or product proposed by a start-up solves a real-world problem is an important step in evaluating the business opportunity. Here are a few steps that can be taken to decide if the proposed idea or product solves a real-world problem:

- Conduct customer research: Gather information from potential customers about their pain points, current solutions, and unmet needs. This can be done through surveys, interviews, focus groups, or other research methods.
- Identify and define the problem: Analyse the research data to clearly define the problem that the proposed idea or product aims to solve. Understand the underlying causes of the problem, the impact of the problem on the target market, and the current solutions available.
- Assess the problem's severity: Assess the severity of the problem
 by evaluating its impact on the customers, if it causes significant
 pain, discomfort or if the solution is critical for the customer's
 business or personal life.
- Evaluate the proposed solution: Compare the proposed solution to the problem and assess how well it addresses the problem and if it provides a unique value proposition. Look for ways that the solution is superior to current solutions or fills a gap in the market.
- Test the solution with customers: Test the proposed solution with a small group of potential customers to get feedback on the solution, how well it addresses the problem and how they perceive the value of the proposed solution
- Monitor customer feedback: Keep track of customer feedback once the product or service is launched and adjust as necessary to ensure that the solution continues to address the problem effectively.

By conducting customer research, identifying, and defining the problem, assessing its severity, and evaluating the proposed solution against that problem, it's possible to determine whether the proposed idea or product solves a real-world problem and provides a unique

value proposition.

A unique value proposition (UVP) is a statement that defines the unique benefit that a product or service will provide to its customers. Here are a few examples of companies that have a strong unique value proposition:

- 1. Amazon's UVP: "Earth's most customer-centric company, where customers can find and discover anything they might want to buy online, and endeavours to offer its customers the lowest possible prices."
- 2. Tesla's UVP: "Creating the most advanced electric cars and building renewable energy products, making sustainable energy accessible to everyone."
- 3. Zappos' UVP: "Offering the world's best selection of shoes and providing the best possible customer service and customer experience."
- 4. Dropbox's UVP: "An easy and secure way to store and share files online"
- 5. Patagonia's UVP: "We're in business to save our home planet."
- 6. Mailchimp's UVP: "All-in-one marketing platform for small businesses"
- 7. Netflix's UVP: "Unlimited ad-free streaming of TV shows and movies"

These examples illustrate how companies can create a unique value proposition by differentiating themselves from the competition in terms of the benefits they offer to customers. By clearly communicating their unique value proposition, these companies can attract and retain customers and achieve a sustainable competitive advantage in the market.

Case Study:

One example of a less well-known company that had a vision that solved a real-world problem is Sanergy, a social enterprise that provides sanitation solutions in informal settlements in Africa.

Future-Proofing Start-ups

Sanergy's vision is to create a clean and healthy environment in Africa's informal settlements, where access to basic sanitation services is often limited. The company's primary goal is to build a network of small-scale, low-cost sanitation facilities that serve the needs of residents in these communities.

One of the main real-world problems that Sanergy's vision aims to solve is the issue of poor sanitation in informal settlements. Many people living in these communities lack access to basic sanitation services, which leads to poor hygiene, disease, and environmental pollution.

Sanergy addresses this problem by building and operating a network of small-scale, low-cost sanitation facilities in informal settlements. These facilities are designed to be affordable and accessible to residents, and they provide a safe and hygienic way for people to dispose of their waste.

Additionally, Sanergy's vision also aims to solve the problem of environmental pollution caused by poor sanitation. The company collects and converts the waste from its sanitation facilities into valuable by-products, such as organic fertilizer and biogas, which can be used for agriculture and energy production.

Sanergy has been successful in providing access to basic sanitation services in informal settlements and improving the quality of life of people living in these communities. As of 2021, the company operates in several informal settlements in Kenya, and it's considered as one of the most innovative companies in the sanitation and waste management sector.

In summary, Sanergy's vision of creating a clean and healthy environment in Africa's informal settlements by building and operating a network of small-scale, low-cost sanitation facilities has been successful in solving real-world problems such as poor sanitation, poor hygiene, and environmental pollution.

Is the Idea or Product innovative?

Innovation is the process of creating something new or doing something differently that adds value to the market. Great innovation has more chance of surviving development and adoption phases.

Determining how innovative a start-up's product or idea is can be challenging, but there are a few key factors that can be considered:

- Novelty: How unique or original is the product or idea? Does it introduce a new concept or technology to the market, or does it improve upon an existing one?
- Impact: What is the potential impact of the product or idea on the market and its users? Does it have the potential to disrupt an existing market or create a new one?
- Feasibility: How realistic is it for the start-up to bring this
 product or idea to market? Are there any technological or other
 constraints that could prevent it from being developed or
 implemented?
- User-centricity: How much does the product or idea focus on satisfying unmet needs and providing value to the end users?
- Business Model innovation: How the start-up is planning to monetize the innovation? How is the innovation going to be scaled to reach more users? Is the innovation going to lead to a sustainable business model?
- Market readiness: Is there a market for the product or idea? Is the market ready for this innovation? Are the users aware of this problem and are they willing to pay for the solution?
- Competitive landscape: How does the product or idea compare to existing products or ideas in the market? Are there any direct or indirect competitors?
- Timing: Is the start-up timing the release of the product or idea well? Are there any external factors, such as new technologies or market trends, that might affect the success of the product or idea?

By considering these factors, it's possible to get a sense of how innovative a start-up's product or idea is, in relation to the current market and the competition, as well as the potential impact and feasibility of the innovation.

One example of a start-up that created an innovative solution that changed the world is Uber.

Uber is a transportation network company, which was founded in 2009. The company developed a mobile application that connects passengers with drivers of vehicles for hire, and it has revolutionized the transportation industry.

The main problem that Uber's innovative solution aimed to solve was the lack of efficient and reliable transportation options in urban areas. Traditional taxi services were often slow to respond to customer requests, and the quality of service was inconsistent.

Uber's solution was to use technology to connect riders with drivers in real-time, using GPS to match the nearest available driver to the customer. This made the process of hailing a ride much faster and more efficient. Additionally, the company's rating system and cashless payment system also helped to improve the quality of service and the overall experience for riders.

Uber's innovative solution has been successful in revolutionizing the transportation industry. The company has grown rapidly and as of 2021, it operates in over 700 cities worldwide. Uber's success has also led to the emergence of new business models such as the sharing economy and on-demand services, which have changed the way we live and work.

In summary, Uber's innovative solution of using technology to connect riders with drivers in real-time, through a mobile app, has been successful in revolutionizing the transportation industry by providing a more efficient and reliable transportation option, and in turn, it has changed the way we live and work.

Is there a clear and attainable Revenue Stream?

The is when main sources of recurring revenue (or fees) and timelines over which they will be generated should be identified.

When analysing a start-up company, there are several key factors to consider when identifying clear and attainable revenue streams.

Here are a few:

- Business Model: Start by understanding the company's business model and how it plans to generate revenue. Is it through product sales, subscriptions, advertising, or some other method? Understanding the business model can help to identify potential revenue streams.
- *Target Market:* Identifying the company's target market and understanding their needs, preferences, and willingness to pay for the product or service. The size of the target market and the potential for growth can also be important indicators of the company's potential revenue.
- Competitive Landscape: Analyse the company's competition and understand their strengths, weaknesses, and how they generate revenue. This will help to identify gaps in the market and potential opportunities for the start-up to generate revenue.
- *Distribution and Sales Channels:* Understand the company's distribution and sales channels, including how it plans to reach its target market and what channels it will use to sell its products or services.
- *Pricing Strategy:* Understand the company's pricing strategy, including how it plans to set prices and what factors will influence pricing decisions. It is important to understand if the pricing is sustainable, flexible, and competitive.
- Financial Projections: Look at the company's financial projections, including its revenue and profit forecasts. While projections are often speculative and should be viewed with caution, they can be useful in identifying potential revenue streams and understanding the company's financial goals.

- *Traction:* Look at the company's traction, by analysing the number of customers and revenue generated. This will give you an idea of the company's revenue-generating ability and revenue growth potential.
- *Scalability:* Analyse the scalability of the revenue streams. Will the revenue streams continue to grow as the company grows, or will they plateau? Companies with scalable revenue streams have a higher potential for growth and long-term success.

It's important to remember that no single factor alone can predict a start-up's success and these factors should be considered in combination with other factors, such as the team behind the start-up, as well as the external environment, like market conditions and trends.

Is there a big enough market for this Idea or Product?

Do you see a future growth market, or is there already substantial traction for what the company is offering?

Establishing the size of a market for an idea or product that a startup is building is a crucial step in evaluating the business opportunity and potential for growth. Here are a few steps that can be taken to establish the size of a market:

- Conduct market research: Conduct both primary and secondary research to gather information about the market, including size, growth, trends, and competitors. Primary research can include surveys, interviews, and focus groups with potential customers, while secondary research can include industry reports, market analysis, and data from government or trade organizations.
- Define the target market: Clearly define the target market for the idea or product, including demographic information such as age, gender, income level, and geographic location. Defining the target market will help to narrow down the size of the overall market and focus on the segment that is most likely to be interested in the idea or product.

- Analyse the addressable market: Analyse the addressable market, which is the portion of the total market that is realistically attainable for the start-up. Factors that will affect the addressable market include the company's resources, distribution channels, and competition.
- Estimate the market potential: Once the addressable market has been established, estimate the market potential by determining the potential demand for the idea or product, considering the current market size, expected growth rate and other relevant factors.
- *Validate through customer research:* validate the market research through customer research. This process can help you to identify the need for the idea, willingness to pay and the size of the customer base.
- Monitor the market: Keep an eye on the market and adapt your strategy accordingly. It's important to monitor the size of the market, changes in the market, such as new entrants, and any relevant legislation or regulations that could impact the market.

It's important to note that market size can be difficult to estimate, particularly for new or emerging markets. Additionally, the size of the market can change rapidly in response to economic, technological, or other factors. However, by using a combination of primary and secondary research, market analysis, and customer research, it is possible to create a comprehensive picture of the market and make informed decisions about the size and potential of the market for the start-up.

Is the Idea technically achievable?

This indicates whether the idea is simply an 'idea', is technically possible or a working solution to solving the problem.

"I have not failed. I've just found 10,000 ways that won't work." - Thomas Edison

When evaluating the technical feasibility of an idea for a start-up, there are several key factors to consider:

- Feasibility of the technology: Analyse the idea's technological requirements and assess if the technology needed to support the idea is currently available or if it will need to be developed. If the technology is currently available, investigate if it's robust, reliable, and proven. If the technology needs to be developed, investigate if it's scientifically possible, economically viable, and if the required resources are available.
- Resource requirements: Understand the technical resources that will be required to build and maintain the idea, including hardware, software, and staffing. Assess if the necessary resources are available and if the company has the capability to acquire them.
- Development time: Estimate the amount of time that will be required to develop and implement the idea. If the development timeline is too long, the idea may not be feasible given the company's other obligations or industry developments.
- *Scalability:* Analyse the scalability of the idea, including whether it can support the expected growth in users, data, and transactions. Assess if the technology can scale up to meet the company's future needs.
- *Cost:* Analyse the costs involved in developing and implementing the idea, including hardware, software, and staffing costs. Assess if the costs are within the company's budget and if the idea has a viable business case.
- Legal and regulatory compliance: Make sure that the idea complies with all the relevant laws and regulations, such as data privacy, security, and intellectual property laws.
- *Team:* Assess the technical expertise of the team, including experience and qualifications. Look for individuals with relevant experience and domain expertise in the specific technology area.

It's important to remember that technology is always changing, so it's essential to stay informed about new developments.

Case Study:

A start-up that created an innovative solution that changed the world in the health sector is 23andMe.

23andMe is a personal genomics and biotechnology company that was founded in 2006. The company developed a DNA testing kit that allows consumers to learn about their genetic predispositions to certain diseases and conditions, as well as their ancestry.

The main problem that 23andMe's innovative solution aimed to solve was the lack of accessible and affordable genetic testing. Genetic testing is traditionally expensive and often requires a doctor's referral, which made it difficult for individuals to access this information.

23andMe's solution was to create a DNA testing kit that can be ordered directly by consumers and provides them with information about their genetic predispositions to certain diseases and conditions as well as their ancestry. This allows individuals to take a proactive approach to their health and make informed decisions about their health and lifestyle.

23andMe's innovative solution has been successful in revolutionizing the genetic testing industry. The company has grown rapidly and as of 2021, it has over 10 million customers worldwide. The company's success has also led to the emergence of new business models such as direct-to-consumer genetic testing, which have changed the way people access and use genetic information for personal health and wellness.

In summary, 23andMe's innovative solution of creating a DNA testing kit that can be ordered directly by consumers, providing them with information about their genetic predispositions to certain diseases and conditions

Bonus: Here is a checklist of factors that you can use when assessing the technical feasibility of an idea for a start-up:

- 1. Is the technology required to support the idea currently available and proven or it needs to be developed?
- 2. Are the necessary technical resources available or can they be acquired?
- 3. Can the development timeline be met within the company's other obligations and industry developments?
- 4. Is the idea scalable to support expected growth in users, data, and transactions?
- 5. Are the costs involved in developing and implementing the idea within the company's budget and does the idea have a viable business case?
- 6. Does the idea comply with all relevant laws and regulations?
- 7. Does the team have the necessary technical expertise, including experience and qualifications, relevant to the specific technology area?
- 8. Is there a clear, attainable, and sustainable revenue stream?
- 9. Has the idea been validated by customer research?
- 10. Are there any existing solutions that already solve the problem, how would the new idea differentiate itself?

Using a checklist like this can help you to systematically evaluate the technical feasibility of an idea, by considering all the relevant factors. It's important to remember that the evaluation should be done by a multidisciplinary team, including both technical and business experts, as well as external experts, if possible. This will help to provide a well-rounded perspective on the idea and increase the chances of success. It's also important to remember that technology is always changing, so it's essential to stay informed about new developments and re-evaluate the idea as needed.

Is there a simple User Experience?

This is a measure of the User Experience for a customer and whether there will be sustainable adoption of the product. A simple user experience (UX) is one that is easy to understand and navigate and requires minimal effort on the part of the user. Here are a few factors to consider when determining a simple UX for a product:

- Clarity and simplicity: A simple UX is clear and easy to understand, with minimal clutter and distraction. The user should be able to find the information they need quickly and easily.
- *Consistency:* The UX should be consistent throughout the product, with a consistent layout, navigation, and overall design. This helps to create a sense of familiarity and makes it easier for the user to understand and use the product.
- *Intuitiveness:* The UX should be intuitive, with a logical and straightforward flow that allows the user to accomplish their task with minimal effort.
- Accessibility: The UX should be accessible to all users, including those with disabilities, providing accessibility features such as larger text, high-contrast colour schemes, and alternative forms of navigation.
- Feedback: The product should provide clear and timely feedback to the user, such as confirming that a task has been completed or providing information about the status of a process.
- *Flexibility:* The product should be flexible, allowing the user to customize their experience and adapt it to their specific needs.
- *Mobile optimization:* If applicable, the product should have a responsive design, optimized for use on mobile devices, providing an easy and seamless experience for users on the go.
- *Error handling:* The product should provide clear and helpful error messages, providing guidance on how to resolve the issue, and preventing errors from happening again.

• *Testing:* The product should have been tested with real users, to identify and fix usability problems, validate design decisions, and ensure it meets users' needs and expectations.

By considering these factors, you can design a simple and effective UX that helps to increase user satisfaction and engagement with the product. A simple, intuitive, and seamless user experience not only helps users to complete their task

There are many examples of products and websites that have great user experience (UX). Here are a few examples:

- 1. Apple's iOS: Apple's iOS, the operating system that powers the iPhone and iPad, is known for its simple, intuitive, and consistent UX. The interface is clean and uncluttered, and the navigation is logical and straightforward.
- 2. Google search: Google's search engine has a simple, uncluttered interface and provides relevant results quickly and easily. The search bar is prominently placed, and the search results are well-organized, making it easy for users to find the information they need.
- 3. Basecamp: Basecamp is a project management tool with a simple and intuitive interface. The navigation is straightforward, and the layout is consistent throughout the application. It's designed to be simple and easy to use, making it accessible to people with a wide range of technical abilities.
- 4. Amazon: Amazon's website and mobile app provide a great user experience with a simple and intuitive interface. The navigation is easy to use and it's easy to find products and make purchases. Also, it's easy to track orders and access account information.
- 5. Duolingo: Duolingo is a language-learning app with a simple and engaging user experience. The interface is clean and uncluttered, and the navigation is intuitive. The app uses gamification techniques to make the learning process fun and interactive.

- 6. Uber: Uber's app is designed to make it easy for users to request a ride and track the status of their driver. The navigation is simple and straightforward, and the interface is intuitive and easy to use. The company regularly updates the app to improve user experience, making it simple and clear to understand.
- 7. Nike: The Nike website and mobile app have a simple and intuitive UX. The navigation is easy to use, and it's easy to find the products you're looking for. The company also offers a personalized shopping experience, providing tailored recommendations

Will the product or service satisfy customers unmet needs? Have the market and customer needs been thoroughly researched, defined, and considered in the product / service development and design?

"When you build technology it's not just a matter of "what." In most cases the success ends up determined by "how" you build it—which foundations you used, how simple and scalable it is." - Tobi Lütke, founder and CEO of Shopify

Determining whether customers' unmet needs will be satisfied by a product or service proposed by a start-up is an important step in evaluating the business opportunity.

Here are a few steps that can be taken to determine if customers' unmet needs will be satisfied:

- *Conduct customer research*: Gather information from potential customers about their needs, preferences, pain points, and current solutions. This can be done through surveys, interviews, focus groups, or other research methods.
- *Identify unmet needs*: Analyse the research data to identify areas where customers' needs are not being met. Look for patterns in

the data and try to understand the underlying reasons for these unmet needs.

- Evaluate the proposed product or service: Compare the proposed product or service to the unmet needs identified in the research. Assess how well the proposed solution addresses these needs and if it provides a unique value proposition.
- Test the product or service with customers: Test the proposed solution with a small group of potential customers to get feedback on the solution, how well it addresses their needs, and how they perceive the value of the proposed solution
- Validate the problem-solution fit: Assess whether the solution proposed by the start-up addresses a real pain point and if the proposed solution is a good fit for the problem, you can use techniques like the "Problem interview" or the "Value Proposition Canvas" to validate that.
- *Monitor customer feedback*: Keep track of customer feedback once the product or service is launched and adjust as necessary to ensure that the solution continues to meet their needs.

By conducting customer research, identifying unmet needs, and evaluating the proposed product or service against those needs, it's possible to determine whether customers' unmet needs will be satisfied. In addition, test with a small group of customers, validating the problem can be solved.

Conducting a *problem-solution fit* is an important step in evaluating the potential success of a product or service proposed by a start-up. Here are a few steps that can be taken to conduct a problem-solution fit:

- *Define the problem*: Clearly define the problem that the product or service is trying to solve. This includes understanding the underlying causes of the problem, the impact of the problem on the target market, and the current solutions available.
- Conduct customer research: Gather information from potential customers about the problem, their pain points, and their current

- solutions. This can be done through surveys, interviews, focus groups, or other research methods.
- *Identify unmet needs*: Analyse the research data to identify areas where customers' needs are not being met. Look for patterns in the data and try to understand the underlying reasons for these unmet needs.
- Evaluate the proposed solution: Compare the proposed product or service to the unmet needs identified in the research. Assess how well the proposed solution addresses these needs and if it provides a unique value proposition.
- Test the product or service with customers: Test the proposed solution with a small group of potential customers to get feedback on the solution, how well it addresses their needs, and how they perceive the value of the proposed solution.
- *Monitor customer feedback:* Keep track of customer feedback once the product or service is launched and adjust as necessary to ensure that the solution continues to meet their needs.
- *Measure the performance!*

The *Value Proposition Canvas* is a powerful tool for visualizing and communicating a product or service's unique value proposition. It helps businesses to understand and meet the needs of their target customers, create a compelling value proposition, and identify new opportunities for growth.

It is a two-part template that helps businesses to understand and create value for their customers. The canvas consists of two parts: the Customer Segments, and the Value Proposition.

- 1. *Customer Segments*: The first part of the Value Proposition Canvas is the customer segments. This section helps businesses to identify and segment their customers based on common characteristics, such as demographics, needs, and pain points.
- 2. *Value Proposition*: The second part of the Value Proposition Canvas is the value proposition. This section helps businesses to

understand and communicate the value that they are offering to their customers. It includes the following elements:

- *Unique value proposition*: A clear statement of the unique value that the product or service will deliver to customers.
- *Value proposition elements*: A list of the product or service's unique features and benefits that align with the identified customer needs and pain points.
- *Channels*: The channels through which the value proposition will be delivered to customers.
- *Relationships*: The type of relationship that the business will establish with customers.
- *Revenue streams*: The revenue streams that the business will generate from the value proposition.
- *Cost structure*: The costs associated with delivering the value proposition to customers.

What is the Technology Readiness Level?

Technology Readiness Levels (TRLs) is a method for assessing the maturity of a specific technology. It is a commonly used framework for evaluating the maturity of a technology and determining if it is ready for development and implementation. TRLs are used to evaluate different stages of technology development, from basic research to deployment in an operational environment.

Technology Readiness Levels provide an objective way of measuring the maturity of a technology and a common framework for assessing its readiness for further development and implementation. They are used in the development of new products and services, as well as in research and development activities, to manage the development process and identify areas that need more work before the technology is ready for commercialization or deployment.

Typically, TRLs are defined on a scale of 1 to 9, with 1 being basic research and 9 being the deployment of a fully operational system. The different levels on the scale are defined as follows:

- TRL 1: Basic principles observed
- TRL 2: Technology concept and/or application formulated
- TRL 3: Analytical and experimental critical function and/or characteristic proof-of-concept
- TRL 4: Component and/or breadboard validation in lab
- TRL 5: Component and/or breadboard validation in relevant environment
- TRL 6: System/subsystem model or prototype demonstration in a relevant environment
- TRL 7: System prototype demonstration in an operational environment
- TRL 8: Actual system completed and "flight qualified" through test and demonstration
- TRL 9: Actual system "flight proven" through successful mission operations

The best TRL for a product to consider when investing in a start-up developing the product depends on the stage of development, the investor's risk tolerance, and the specific requirements of the product or technology.

Products or technologies at a TRL 6-9 are more mature and ready for commercialization. These products have moved beyond laboratory demonstrations and have a working prototype in a relevant environment or an actual system that has been flight-proven through successful mission operations. These are often more attractive to investors as they have a higher probability of success.

On the other hand, products, or technologies at a TRL 1-5 are in the early stages of development and are at a higher risk for investors. However, early-stage start-ups with innovative technology that can generate a disruptive impact in their market can also be attractive to

investors.

Ultimately, the best TRL for a product to consider investing in a start-up will depend on the *investor's risk tolerance* and the specific requirements of the product or technology. Some investors may be willing to take on a higher level of risk in exchange for the potential for a higher return on investment, while others may prefer to invest in more mature products or technologies with a lower level of risk.

It's also important to keep in mind that a start-up or a product's TRL can be a good indicator of the maturity and development stage of the technology, but it should not be the only factor to consider when evaluating the potential of a start-up. Other important aspects to consider are the team, the market and the product-market fit.

There are several examples of investment funding for products or technologies at TRL 1-5. Here are a few examples:

- Seed Capital: Seed capital is often used to fund start-ups at the earliest stages of development, typically at TRL 1-3. Seed capital investors are often venture capital firms, angel investors, or incubators that provide funding for product development and early-stage start-ups.
- Government Funding: government funding can also be used to fund products or technologies at TRL 1-5. For example, in the US, the National Science Foundation's Small Business Innovation Research (SBIR) program provides funding for small businesses to conduct research and development on innovative technologies.
- Research Institutes and University spin-offs: Research institutes and universities also often have programs in place to support early-stage start-ups and spin-offs, and they also may fund products or technologies at TRL 1-5.
- *Incubators and accelerators*: Incubators and accelerators such as Y Combinator, Techstars, and 500 Start-ups, provide funding

- and mentorship to early-stage start-ups, and often invest in products or technologies at TRL 1-5.
- Family Offices: Family Offices are also known to invest in the early stage of the technology development, they may have a slightly higher risk tolerance compared to traditional venture capital firms, and they are also interested in a diversification strategy.

There are many start-up companies that were funded at the early stages of development when their products were at TRL 1-5. Here are a few examples:

- 1. Google: Google was founded in 1998, when the concept of search engines was still in its infancy. They were able to secure funding from angel investors and venture capital firms, even though the technology was at a very early stage of development.
- 2. SpaceX: SpaceX was founded in 2002 and they were able to secure funding from venture capital firms, angel investors, and private individuals. They were able to develop reusable rocket technology that was at TRL 1-5.
- 3. Uber: Uber was founded in 2009, when the concept of ridesharing was still in its early stages. They were able to secure funding from angel investors and venture capital firms, even though the technology was at a very early stage of development.
- 4. Airbnb: Airbnb was founded in 2008, when the concept of home-sharing was still new. They were able to secure funding from angel investors and venture capital firms, even though the technology was at a very early stage of development.
- 5. Tesla: Tesla was founded in 2003 and developed electric cars, battery energy storage from home to grid scale, and solar panel manufacturing. They were able to secure funding from venture capital firms and private investors, even though the technology was at a very early stage of development.
- 6. Facebook: Facebook was started as a college project at Harvard, it received funding from its co-founder, Mark Zuckerberg, as well as other investors while it was at TRL 1-3.

These examples show that even at the early stages of development, start-up companies can secure funding from various sources such as venture capital firms, angel investors and government funding. The companies mentioned had a unique technology and a vision that could disrupt an existing market, which helped them to attract funding. However, it's important to keep in mind that each start-up is unique, and the investment decision will depend on the specifics of the company and technology.

These examples also demonstrate that many successful start-up companies were funded while their products were at TRL 1-3. These companies were able to secure funding from investors who recognized the potential of their early-stage technology and were willing to take on the risks associated with investing in it. This highlights the importance of having a well-developed business plan and a talented team in place when seeking funding for early-stage technologies.

Can the Company Pivot?

Does the business idea/model have potential to successfully pivot to be used in other sectors to maintain its growth and compete? Changes to the business model or product offering might be needed, hypotheses might have to be tested and results will need to be measured to ensure sustained development.

The ability for a start-up to pivot in its roadmap while in early stages is very important. The start-up world is highly dynamic and uncertain, and it is essential for start-ups to be able to adapt and change their plans as they learn more about their customers, market, and industry. A successful start-up must be able to pivot its business strategy to take advantage of new opportunities and overcome obstacles.

Some of the key benefits of a start-up being able to pivot in its early stages include:

- *Increased chances of success*: By being able to pivot, a start-up can adjust its strategy and focus on areas where it has a better chance of success. This can help the start-up avoid wasting resources on unproven or unviable ideas.
- Faster time to market: Being able to pivot quickly can help a start-up bring its product or service to market more rapidly. This can be especially important in fast-moving industries where first-to-market advantage can be critical to success.
- Improved customer validation: Pivoting allows start-ups to validate their products or services with customers earlier on. It can also help start-ups to discover what their customers truly want or need, allowing them to adjust their strategy and product offering to better align with customer preferences.
- Reduced risk: Pivoting can help start-ups manage risk by allowing them to change direction or adjust their strategy in response to changing market conditions or customer feedback. It can help start-ups avoid potentially costly mistakes and missteps.
- *Better use of resources*: Pivoting allows start-ups to focus their resources on the most promising areas of their business, which can help them achieve better results with the same number of resources.

However, it is important to note that pivoting must be done strategically and not too frequently. A lot of pivots can lead to confusion and mistrust with investors, team members and stakeholders. Pivoting must be done in a way that keeps the core of the business intact, it must be based on data, not assumptions and it must be communicated clearly to all stakeholders.

Determining if a start-up's business idea or model has the potential to pivot or be used in other sectors is an important step in evaluating the long-term potential of the start-up. Here are a few steps that can

be taken to establish this potential:

- *Understand the core of the business:* Understand the key elements of the start-up's current business model such as its target market, revenue streams, and unique value proposition. This will help identify the key drivers of the start-up's success.
- Evaluate the scalability of the business: Consider if the current business model can be scaled up to serve a larger market or if it can be easily replicated in other geographies or markets. A business model that can be easily scaled or replicated has a greater potential for growth and success in other sectors.
- *Identify the value proposition's universality:* Understand if the value proposition of the business can be adapted to meet the needs of other industries. For example, a company that provides a software solution to optimize supply chain management, might be able to adapt that solution to meet the needs of manufacturing, logistics or healthcare companies.
- Analyse the competition and market trends: Research the competition and analyse the current market trends to identify potential growth opportunities. Look for untapped markets or niches that the start-up could potentially enter.
- Look for cross-industry applications: Evaluate if the technology or products developed by the start-up could be used in other industries or sectors. This can be achieved by identifying if the solution could solve a similar problem in other industry or looking for patent or IP opportunities
- Assess the team's background and experience: Look at the team's background and experience to determine if they have the skills and knowledge to pivot the business or enter new markets.
 A team with diverse backgrounds, experiences and skills has a better chance of successfully pivoting or expanding the business.

By considering these factors, it's possible to determine if a start-up's business idea or model has the potential to pivot or be used in other sectors. A start-up with a scalable business model, a universal value proposition, cross-industry applications, and a strong team, is more

likely to successfully pivot or expand in the future.

There are many examples of companies that have successfully pivoted to achieve greater success. Here are a few examples:

- 1. Twitter: Twitter started out as a podcasting platform called Odeo, but after the rise of iTunes, the founders realized that the market for podcasts was limited. They pivoted to a short-message platform that eventually became Twitter.
- 2. Instagram: Instagram was originally a location-based social network called Burbn. The company realized that the check-in feature of the app was not as popular as the photo sharing feature. So, they pivoted to focus on photo sharing, which led to the success of the now popular Instagram.
- 3. Groupon: Groupon was originally called The Point, and its original business model was to help people organize group action for a specific cause. They soon realized that their platform could be used for more commercial purposes and pivoted to the daily deals model that made them successful.
- 4. Spotify: Spotify started out as a peer-to-peer file sharing service, but soon realized that the market for P2P was becoming crowded, they pivoted to a streaming music service, which is the core of the business now.
- 5. Netflix: Netflix was originally a DVD rental-by-mail service. As the market for DVDs started to decline, the company pivoted to focus on streaming, which has become its main source of revenue.

These are just a few examples of companies that have successfully pivoted to achieve greater success. In each of these cases, the company was able to identify that their original business model was not working and adapt to new market opportunities or changing customer needs. A start-up's ability to pivot when necessary is important for long-term success, it shows flexibility, adaptability, and the ability to learn from market feedback.

There are also many examples of companies that have failed to

pivot when they needed to. Here are a few examples:

- 1. Kodak: Kodak was a leading player in the film and photography industry for many years, but the company failed to pivot to digital photography when the technology emerged in the late 1990s. As a result, Kodak struggled to remain competitive and filed for bankruptcy in 2012.
- 2. Blackberry: Blackberry was once a dominant player in the smartphone market, but the company failed to pivot when consumer preferences shifted towards touch-screen smartphones. Blackberry was slow to develop and market touch-screen devices and as a result, lost market share to companies like Apple and Samsung.
- 3. Blockbuster: Blockbuster was a dominant player in the video rental market for many years, but the company failed to pivot to digital streaming when the technology emerged. Blockbuster was slow to develop and market its own streaming service and as a result, lost market share to companies like Netflix.
- 4. Sears: Sears was a leading department store retailer for many years, but the company failed to pivot as consumer preferences shifted towards online shopping. Sears was slow to develop and market an online presence, and as a result, lost market share to companies like Amazon.
- 5. MySpace: MySpace was a leading social networking site for many years, but the company failed to pivot when consumer preferences shifted to Facebook. MySpace was slow to adapt to changes in the market, and as a result, lost market share to Facebook.

These examples demonstrate that companies that fail to pivot can struggle to remain competitive in the face of rapid technological change or shifts in consumer preferences. Failing to pivot at the right time can lead to a decline in market share and ultimately to bankruptcy. Companies that don't change and adapt to market changes are at risk of becoming irrelevant.

Does the Idea or Product warrant decentralization?

If it does not have a reason to use decentralized technology, people will not adopt it.

When evaluating whether an investment idea is suited to the use of decentralized technology, there are several key factors to consider:

- Decentralization: One of the key benefits of decentralized technology is that it enables the distribution of power and control among multiple actors. For this reason, investment ideas that would benefit from decentralization should have a high degree of transparency and trust.
- Transparency: Decentralized technology allows for an open and transparent process for transactions, it can track all actions, and all actors have access to the same information. Investment ideas that could benefit from this level of transparency are those that involve multiple parties or require a high degree of trust between parties.
- Efficiency: The use of decentralized technology can also help to increase efficiency by reducing intermediaries, streamlining processes, and eliminating the need for trusted intermediaries. Investment ideas that have multiple intermediaries and require a high degree of trust between parties can benefit from this efficiency.
- Security: Decentralized technology can enhance security, by spreading the power among multiple actors and reduce the risk of a single point of failure. Investment ideas that require a high level of security, such as those involving sensitive data or high value transactions, would benefit from this feature.
- Flexibility: Decentralized technology can also provide flexibility, by making it easy to build and change applications or programs. Investment ideas that require the ability to build and change applications quickly and easily would benefit from this feature.

• *Expected impact:* Evaluating the expected impact of the decentralized technology on the investment idea, including whether it will improve the performance, security, scalability and user experience.

It's important to note that not all investment ideas will be suited to the use of decentralized technology, so it's crucial to carefully evaluate the specific needs and requirements of the investment idea before deciding whether to use it. Additionally, it's important to stay informed about the latest developments in decentralized technology, including advances in blockchain and other distributed ledger technologies, to ensure that the best technology is being used to meet the investment idea's requirements.

There are many examples of decentralized technology being used in a wide range of industries and applications, here are a few:

- 1. Cryptocurrency: One of the most well-known examples of decentralized technology is cryptocurrency, such as Bitcoin and Ethereum, which use blockchain technology to enable decentralized, peer-to-peer transactions.
- 2. Supply Chain Management: Decentralized technology is being used to improve transparency and traceability in supply chain management. Blockchain technology can be used to create an immutable record of transactions and activities that can be accessed by all parties in the supply chain, providing a more transparent and efficient process.
- 3. Healthcare: Decentralized technology can be used to secure patient data and enable secure sharing of information among healthcare providers, while also enabling patients to control access to their own data.
- 4. Internet of Things (IoT): Decentralized technology can be used to create decentralized networks of connected devices, which can help to improve the security and scalability of the IoT.
- 5. Identity verification: Decentralized technology can be used to create digital identities that are portable, secure, and private,

- allowing users to control access to their personal information and transact online in a more secure and efficient way.
- 6. Gaming: Decentralized technology is used to create decentralized gaming platforms, which allows players to own, trade, and monetize in-game items and assets, without the need for a centralized authority.
- 7. Decentralized Finance (DeFi): Decentralized Finance (DeFi) is a new area where decentralized technology is being used to create a new financial system that allows users to access a wide range of financial services, including lending, borrowing, and trading, without the need for intermediaries.

These are just a few examples of decentralized technology in action, and new use cases are being discovered and developed constantly. Decentralized technology has the potential to revolutionize many industries, by providing new levels of transparency, security, and efficiency.

There are also many companies that have successfully used decentralized technology in various ways, here are a few examples:

- 1. Bitcoin: The first and most well-known decentralized technology is Bitcoin, a digital currency that uses blockchain technology to enable decentralized, peer-to-peer transactions. Bitcoin is a decentralized payment system, allowing users to transact without the need for intermediaries.
- 2. Ethereum: Ethereum is a decentralized platform that enables the creation of smart contracts and decentralized applications (dApps). It has a public blockchain and its own programming language to develop decentralized applications.
- 3. Ripple: Ripple is a decentralized platform that uses blockchain technology to enable fast and secure cross-border payments. Its solutions can be used to move money in any currency, to any place, at low cost.
- 4. ChainGuardian: is an example of company that specializes in providing blockchain-based solutions for supply chain

- management, helping businesses increase transparency and traceability in their supply chains.
- 5. Factom: is a company that provides blockchain-based solutions for secure record-keeping, with a focus on the healthcare and mortgage industries.
- 6. Filecoin: is a decentralized storage platform that allows individuals and businesses to rent out their spare storage space to other users.
- 7. CryptoKitties: is a decentralized application (dApp) built on the Ethereum blockchain, where users can buy, sell, and breed digital cats.
- 8. These are just a few examples of companies that have successfully used decentralized technology. As the technology continues to evolve, more and more companies are expected to adopt and utilize decentralized technology to enhance the security, scalability, and transparency in their products and services.

Conclusion

When analysing the potential of a start-up before deciding to invest in it, it is important to consider a wide range of factors. These factors can include the start-up's problem-solution fit, market size and potential, unique value proposition, business model, team, traction, technical feasibility, and intellectual property. A thorough analysis of these factors can give investors a good understanding of the start-up's potential for success and allow them to make more informed investment decisions.

It is also important to note that no single factor can guarantee success, and that a thorough evaluation of a start-up should be based on a combination of factors rather than one. Additionally, even a start-up that looks promising on paper may be subject to external

Future-Proofing Start-ups

factors such as market disruptions or competitive changes.

Ultimately, investing in start-ups is inherently risky and there is no guarantee of success. But with a thorough analysis of the start-up's potential, investors can try to mitigate the risk, increase the chances of success, and make more informed investment decisions.

Also, as an investor, it's important to have a clear investment thesis and have a good understanding of the specific industry and market in which the start-up operates. By doing so, investors can better evaluate the start-up's potential and make more informed investment decisions. And after the investment, it's important to keep monitoring the start-up's progress, help them to achieve the milestones, and be open to the fact that the start-up may need to pivot their strategy to achieve success.

Part 5: Exploring the TEAM

Components of a Start-up with Key Factors to consider before investing in a Team enabling the vision

"When I invest in a start-up, I look for a strong team with a clear vision and a unique value proposition. I also look for a scalable business model and a clear path to revenue. But most importantly, I look for a team that is willing to listen to feedback and adapt their approach as necessary." - Ron Conway, Super Angel Investor known for investments in companies such as Google, PayPal, and Twitter.

Analysis of a team is important before investing in an early start-up because it gives investors a better understanding of the people behind the venture and their ability to execute the plan. It allows investors to assess the team's track record, skills, and experience, and how well they work together. This helps investors determine the team's likelihood of success and whether the start-up is worth investing in.

It's important to note that in an early-stage start-up, team members will often wear multiple hats, and roles can be shared or overlapped. Additionally, depending on the stage of the start-up, certain roles may not be needed yet, for example, a dedicated legal or human resources team may not be necessary, until the start-up gets to a certain size. It's important to have the right set of skills and knowledge to grow and scale the start-up, but also to be mindful of the resources and budget available.

It's also essential to have a team with a balance of skills, experience, and personalities that can work well together and be committed to the vision and mission of the start-up.

The key or essential roles that should be filled to make an early startup a success will depend on the specific industry, market, and problem the start-up is addressing. However, some common roles that are typically needed for a successful early-stage start-up include:

• *CEO or founder*: This person is responsible for providing the overall vision, direction, and leadership for the start-up. They should have a strong understanding of the market, customers, and industry, as well as the skills and experience to build and lead a successful team.

"As a CEO, I am finding that I have to become a learning CEO. I have to go to school all the time because I am learning new

skills that I need to run this company and I am realising that I am not equipped to just coast. I have to constantly renew my skills." - Indra Nooyi, former CEO of Pepsi

- CTO or CPO: This person is responsible for the technical aspects of the start-up, such as product development, technology strategy, and engineering. They should have a deep understanding of the technology and resources required to bring the product or service to market.
- *CFO:* This person is responsible for the financial aspects of the start-up, such as budgeting, financial planning, and fundraising. They should have experience in financial management and a strong understanding of business and investment strategies.
- Sales and Business Development: These roles are responsible for driving revenue and finding new business opportunities. They should have experience and expertise in the sales process, with a good understanding of the target market and customers.
- *Marketing and Communications:* These roles are responsible for building the company's brand and messaging, generating demand and interest, and increasing awareness of the product or service.
- *Operations:* This role is responsible for managing day-to-day operations, including logistics, inventory, and supply chain management, to ensure that the business runs smoothly.
- Legal and Compliance: This role is responsible for ensuring that the start-up is compliant with all relevant laws and regulations.
- *Human Resources:* This role is responsible for managing and developing the company's human capital, hiring, training, and retention of employees.

The best composition of a team in an early start-up company

The best composition of a team in an early start-up company will

vary depending on the specific industry, market, and problem the start-up is addressing. However, some general principles for a well-rounded team composition in an early-stage start-up include:

- A balance of technical and business skills: A good start-up team will have a balance of technical and business skills, including expertise in areas such as product development, marketing, sales, and finance. This will help to ensure that the team can both develop and deliver a viable product and create a sustainable business model.
- Relevant domain knowledge: A team with deep domain knowledge and relevant industry experience can be a significant advantage, as they will have a better understanding of the market and customer needs, as well as a good understanding of the regulatory environment, industry standards and opportunities.
- Entrepreneurial mindset: The team should have a mix of individuals with an entrepreneurial mindset who are passionate, persistent, adaptable and have a track record of delivering on projects. They should also have a good sense of ownership and accountability.
- Diverse skillsets and backgrounds: A diverse team that has a
 mix of skills, perspectives and experiences can lead to more
 creative thinking and better problem-solving. In addition,
 diverse team members are more likely to come up with unique
 solutions and find untapped opportunities.
- Complementary personalities: While diversity is important, it's
 also important to have a team with complementary personalities,
 with a mix of risk-takers and more cautious team members, and
 those who are more focused on the long term and those focused
 on the short term.
- *Good chemistry:* A team that works well together, with good communication, trust, and mutual respect, can be more productive and efficient than a team with great skills but poor chemistry.

It's worth noting that the composition of a team in an early start-up

can evolve over time as the company grows and takes on new challenges, it's important to be flexible and open to change the team if needed. Also, a strong leadership is also a key component of a successful early-stage start-up team. It is crucial that the team has a leader who can inspire and guide the team, provide vision and direction, and help the team navigate the challenges and opportunities of starting a business

Soft skills needed by a team in an early start-up

The soft skills needed by a team in an early start-up include communication, collaboration, problem-solving, decision-making, creative thinking, adaptability, and emotional intelligence. Communication is needed to ensure everyone is on the same page and that ideas are properly communicated. Collaboration is needed to work together as a team and share ideas. Problem-solving and decision-making are essential to navigate obstacles and make quick decisions. Creative thinking is needed to come up with new solutions to problems. Adaptability enables the team to respond to changing circumstances. Finally, emotional intelligence is needed to understand and manage emotions within the team.

What makes a great team for a successful company?

A great team for a successful company is one with diverse skills, experience, and perspectives. It should also have strong communication and collaboration skills, a shared vision and goal, and an ability to adapt to change. The team should have a culture of trust and respect and be able to work together to achieve common objectives. Finally, a successful team should be made up of individuals who are passionate about the company's mission and are willing to work hard to achieve it.

Red flags for teams in early start-ups

Red flags for teams in early start-ups include a lack of experience, lack of diverse skills, lack of communication and collaboration, lack of a shared vision and goal, lack of trust and respect, and lack of passion for the mission. If the team has any of these traits, it could be an indication that the start-up may not be successful. Additionally, if the team is not well-versed in the industry, they may struggle to understand the market and develop an effective strategy.

Red flags include:

- Lack of experience or relevant expertise in the industry or market the start-up is entering.
- Lack of clear roles and responsibilities among team members.
- Lack of a clear, achievable business plan or strategy.
- Poor communication and collaboration among team members.
- Limited diversity of thought or background among team members.
- Constant changes in strategy and direction, indicating a lack of clear vision.
- High turnover of team members, indicating a lack of commitment or poor morale.
- Lack of a clear, measurable system for monitoring progress and performance.
- Inadequate funding or cash reserves.
- No execution capacity, the team is good in talking but not delivering.

These are just a few examples, and not all these red flags would apply to every start-up. It is important to remember that early-stage start-ups are inherently risky, and any team or company that can navigate these risks successfully is likely to have certain strengths and advantages.

Case Study:

One example of a start-up where red flags about the team were ignored leading to a failure is the company, Theranos.

Theranos was a health technology company that was founded in 2003 with the goal of revolutionizing the medical testing industry by developing a device that could conduct multiple diagnostic tests using just a few drops of blood. The company raised over \$700 million in funding from investors, and at its peak, it was valued at over \$9 billion.

However, red flags about the company and its leadership team were ignored, which ultimately led to the downfall of the start-up. One of the main red flags was the lack of transparency and secrecy surrounding the company's technology. The company was unwilling to share information about its technology with outside experts, which raised suspicions about its validity.

Another red flag was the company's leadership team, particularly the CEO Elizabeth Holmes. Despite her lack of medical or scientific background, Holmes was the driving force behind the company, and her charismatic personality and aggressive promotion of the company's technology helped to attract investors and customers. However, her lack of relevant experience and the company's lack of transparency raised concerns about her qualifications and integrity.

In 2015, an investigation by the Wall Street Journal exposed that the company's technology was unreliable and inaccurate, and that it was using traditional lab equipment to conduct tests, not the revolutionary technology that it had claimed. This led to a series of investigations and legal actions, and the company ultimately shut down in 2018.

In summary, red flags about the company's technology, and the leadership team, particularly the CEO Elizabeth Holmes, were

ignored, which ultimately led to the downfall of the start-up, Theranos. The lack of transparency and secrecy surrounding the company's technology, and the CEO's lack of relevant experience, raised suspicions and concerns which were not addressed, resulting in the failure of the start-up.

Core competencies needed in a Team

"Management is about human beings. Its task is to make people capable of joint performance, to make their strengths effective and their weaknesses irrelevant." - Peter Drucker

The core competencies needed in a team to make a company successful include communication, collaboration, problem-solving, decision-making, creative thinking, adaptability, and emotional intelligence. Additionally, the team should have knowledge of the industry and the market, a shared vision and goal, and the ability to work together to achieve common objectives. Finally, the team should be passionate about the company's mission and be willing to work hard to achieve it.

There are many start-up companies that have had great teams, but some examples include:

- 1. Google: The co-founders Larry Page and Sergey Brin met while they were Ph.D. students at Stanford University and have a great understanding of the technology, market and have an entrepreneurial mindset, they have grown the company into one of the world's most valuable and innovative companies.
- 2. Facebook: Mark Zuckerberg and his team built Facebook into one of the most popular and successful social networks in the world. They had a good balance of technical and business skills, as well as a deep understanding of the market and customer needs, which helped them to navigate the challenges and opportunities of starting a business.

- 3. Airbnb: The co-founders, Brian Chesky and Joe Gebbia met while they were students at the Rhode Island School of Design, and together with Nathan Blecharczyk, they have grown Airbnb into one of the most successful and disruptive companies in the sharing economy. They had a strong entrepreneurial mindset, a deep understanding of the market and a willingness to take risks, which helped them to capitalize on opportunities and overcome challenges.
- 4. Amazon: Jeff Bezos, the founder of Amazon had a clear vision of what he wanted to achieve with the company, and together with his team, they have built it into one of the most successful and influential companies in the world. They have a deep understanding of the market and customer needs, a strong entrepreneurial mindset and a willingness to take risks.
- 5. Spotify: The co-founders Daniel Ek and Martin Lorentzon have brought to the market an innovative service, a music streaming platform and have helped to reshape the way people consume music. With a strong technical and business skills, they have been able to navigate the challenges and opportunities of starting a business.

These are just a few examples of start-up companies that have had great teams, they all have a combination of strong leadership, vision, deep market knowledge, great communication skills and a deep passion for what they were building.

There have been many start-up companies that have struggled or failed due to various reasons, and team issues such as lack of experience, poor leadership, and communication can be a significant factor.

Here are some examples of start-up companies that have been reported to have had team issues or poor leadership:

1. WeWork: The co-founder Adam Neumann was forced to step down as CEO in 2019, following months of controversy and mounting losses at the company. The company has been criticized for poor corporate governance, lack of transparency and accountability, and a culture of mismanagement and excess.

- 2. Theranos: The medical testing start-up was founded by Elizabeth Holmes, and her partner Ramesh "Sunny" Balwani. In 2015, Wall Street Journal reported that the company's technology was inaccurate and unreliable. The company failed to fulfil its promise of cheap and effective blood testing and both founders faced legal and financial troubles.
- 3. Juicero: The start-up offered a high-priced, internet-connected juice press that was intended to make it easy for customers to make fresh juice at home. However, it was discovered that the juice packs could be squeezed by hand with the same results. The start-up was criticized for poor execution and a lack of transparency.
- 4. Zenefits: The start-up, an online platform for small businesses to purchase and manage health insurance, had a leadership crisis that led to the departure of its CEO and co-founder Parker Conrad. The company faced scrutiny for compliance violations and internal culture problems, as well as for its sales practices.
- 5. King Digital Entertainment: The mobile game developer behind the popular Candy Crush Saga game. The company struggled after going public in 2014 and faced criticism for poor leadership and a lack of innovation, which led to a decline in the popularity of its games and a decrease in revenue.

Does the Team have a clear solution to the problem?

There are several ways to establish if a team's vision is a clear solution to solving a problem:

• Conduct market research: A team's vision should be informed by a thorough understanding of the market and target customers. By conducting research, you can validate whether there is a genuine need for the problem the team is trying to solve and if the proposed solution is unique and compelling.

- Assess the solution's feasibility: Once the team has a clear understanding of the problem and target market, it should be able to explain how its solution will work and what technology, resources, and skills are required to bring it to fruition. By evaluating the feasibility of the solution, you can assess whether the team has a realistic plan to address the problem.
- Check for traction and progress: A clear vision should be backed by progress, the team should have a clear execution plan and milestones to achieve, with actual progress made to date. The team should be able to show how they have been testing the solution with customers, partners or early adopters, any traction made is a good indication that the vision is clear and solving a problem.
- Look for a clear value proposition: A clear vision should be able to articulate the value the solution brings to customers and the market; this should be easily communicable and understood.
- Review the team's composition: A strong team will have the diverse skills necessary to execute on their vision, from technical experts to business development, marketing and fundraising. The team should have a mix of skills and experiences, and team members should be able to demonstrate a track record of success and commitment to the project.

By evaluating the team's vision against these criteria, you should be able to get a better sense of whether it is a clear solution to a specific problem and whether the team has what it takes to execute on it. A lack of passion and vision can put long-term success in jeopardy

Does the Team have successful track records with reputable companies or organizations?

This is an indicator of capacity/capability in the team, for example training, entrepreneurial track record and work experience

Track record is important when analysing the team composition in

an early start-up because it provides evidence of a team member's past performance and ability to execute on a project. A track record can give you an idea of a team member's:

- Experience: Experience is often a good indicator of how well a team member will perform in a new role. By examining a team member's track record, you can gain a sense of the types of projects they have worked on, the roles they have held, and the industries in which they have experience.
- Success: A team member's past successes can give you an idea of how well they have performed in the past, and how well they will likely perform in the future. For instance, if a team member has been a part of successful projects, products or companies in the past, it's more likely they will be successful in the future too.
- Failure and learning: A team member's past failures can also provide important information, as they indicate how a team member handles challenges, and how they learn from mistakes. It is important that team members admit past failures and can explain what they learned from them.
- *Commitment*: A track record of previous projects or roles can give you a sense of how committed a team member is to their work. Someone who has held a variety of short-term roles or jumped from one project to another may not be as committed as someone who has held a role or project for a longer period.
- Adaptability: If a team member has a track record of working in different companies, industries, or on different types of projects, it could indicate that they are adaptable, flexible, and able to operate effectively in different environments.

A solid track record can provide valuable insights into a team member's capabilities, experience, and potential contributions to the start-up. It can help you better evaluate whether a team member has the necessary skills and expertise to be successful in their role, and whether they are a good fit for the start-up's culture and values.

Does the Team have strong domain knowledge?

Is the company building something squarely in sight of their domain of expertise and knowledge?

Domain knowledge is important when analysing the team of a startup because it represents a deep understanding of the industry, market, and customers that the start-up is operating in. Domain knowledge can help a team:

- *Identify and solve problems:* A team with deep domain knowledge will have a better understanding of the problems and pain points that customers and the market are facing and will be better positioned to develop solutions that are effective, efficient and valuable.
- Build competitive advantage: Domain knowledge allows teams
 to identify opportunities that others might miss, and to develop
 solutions that are differentiated and hard to replicate. A team
 with deep domain knowledge can build a competitive advantage
 that is difficult for others to replicate
- Connect with customers: A team with domain knowledge will be more effective in identifying and engaging with potential customers, partners, and other stakeholders. They will be able to understand their needs and preferences, and speak their language, which can be key for building lasting relationships and driving adoption.
- Operate more efficiently: A team with domain knowledge will be able to make better decisions, anticipate problems and opportunities, and manage risks more effectively. This can lead to more efficient operations, better resource allocation, and greater productivity.
- Navigate industry regulations and standards: In some sectors, specific regulations and standards need to be adhered to, domain knowledge can help a team navigate these effectively and efficiently.

- Attract funding and partners: A team with domain knowledge
 may be more likely to attract funding and partners, as they will
 be able to demonstrate a deeper understanding of the market and
 their customers and be better able to articulate how they plan to
 create value.
- Learn faster and improve quickly: A team with domain knowledge will be able to learn faster and improve quickly, as they already know the context and industry ecosystem, they will be able to learn from past experiences and experts in the field.

A team with deep domain knowledge can be a significant advantage for a start-up as they are better equipped to navigate industry challenges and create sustainable, valuable solutions.

Case Study:

An example of a start-up where the founding team's domain knowledge did not translate into success is the company, Aereo.

Aereo was a technology company that was founded in 2012, which aimed to provide a new way for consumers to access and watch television. The company developed a service that used small antennae to capture and stream over-the-air television signals to subscribers' internet-connected devices. The company's founders had significant domain knowledge and experience in the technology and media industry, and they raised over \$97 million in funding from investors.

However, despite the founding team's domain knowledge, the company failed to achieve commercial success. One of the main reasons for this was the legal challenges that the company faced from traditional television broadcasters who claimed that Aereo's service was a violation of their copyright. These legal challenges ultimately led to a Supreme Court ruling in 2014 that found Aereo's service to be illegal, which forced the company to shut down in the same year.

Another reason for the company's failure was the lack of a significant market for the service. Aereo's target market was consumers who wanted to watch television without a cable subscription, but the company struggled to attract many subscribers. The company's service also faced competition from other streaming services such as Netflix, Amazon Prime Video and Hulu, which offered a broader range of content at a lower cost.

In summary, the founding team's domain knowledge and experience in the technology and media industry did not translate into success for Aereo. The legal challenges from traditional television broadcasters and the lack of a significant market for the service, made it difficult for the company to attract subscribers and ultimately led to the company's failure.

Does the Team have good 'subject matter' diversity?

Team members with diverse skill sets are critical for successful development and deployment of a product and especially for an MVP.

Diverse skill sets are important in the team composition of an early start-up for several reasons:

- Problem-solving: A team with a diverse set of skills will be better equipped to tackle a wide range of problems and challenges. A mix of technical, business, and creative skills will allow the team to approach problems from multiple perspectives and develop more comprehensive solutions.
- Innovation: Diversity of skills can lead to more creative thinking, diverse team members with different experiences, perspectives and ways of thinking can generate new ideas and approaches.
- Adaptability: A team with diverse skills will be better equipped to adapt to changing market conditions and customer needs.

With a range of skills and expertise, a team can pivot more effectively and respond to new opportunities more quickly.

- Fundraising and partnerships: Diverse skills can help a team to build relationships with investors, partners and customers. A team that has both the technical and business skills can be better able to articulate the value of their product or service and build stronger partnerships.
- *Risk management:* A team with diverse skills can help identify and mitigate risks more effectively. Different team members will have different areas of expertise, and thus, different areas of focus and approach to risk management.
- *Inclusivity and cultural fit:* A team that is composed of diverse individuals with different skills, backgrounds and experiences is more likely to have a good cultural fit and create an inclusive environment where everyone feels valued and respected.
- Better decision-making: A team with diverse skillsets can lead to more effective decision-making, as different team members may have different perspectives and ways of thinking. This can make for more robust decisions and improve the chances of success.

While it's important to have a strong core team with the necessary skills to execute on a start-up's vision, having diversity of skills can help improve the chances of success. It is important to strive for a balance and a mix of skills to be able to tackle different types of problems, adapt to changing market conditions and capitalize on new opportunities.

Does the Team have good academic or a base of intellectual qualifications?

An indicator of academic & intellectual capital, and capacity/capability in the team demonstrates resilience within a

team. Academic or intellectual qualifications can be important for a team in an early start-up, but they are not the only or most important factor. Other factors such as relevant experience, domain knowledge, and diverse skill sets can also be crucial for a team's success.

- Relevant qualifications: A strong academic or intellectual background can be particularly valuable in certain industries or fields, such as technology or science, where specialized knowledge and technical expertise are required. Having team members with advanced degrees or certifications can provide a level of credibility and authority in their field.
- Intellectual rigor and critical thinking: A team that has a strong base of intellectual qualifications may have the ability to analyse and solve problems more effectively and make more informed decisions. They might also be more inclined to approach problems in a structured, rigorous, and critical way.
- *Networking and mentoring:* In some cases, team members with a strong academic or intellectual background may have access to a valuable network of contacts and mentors, which can be helpful for the start-up.
- Fundraising and partnerships: Having team members with relevant qualifications or recognition in the field may make it easier for the start-up to attract funding and partnerships, as it may signal to investors and partners that the team is competent, knowledgeable, and well-connected.

Academic or intellectual qualifications are not always necessary for success in a start-up, and sometimes, relevant experience and a deep understanding of the market and customer needs can be more important. A balance of theoretical knowledge and hands-on experience is important for an early start-up team. It's also essential to have team members who have a good balance of technical and business skills and can communicate the value of their product or service effectively.

Does the Team have entrepreneurial skills?

A lack of entrepreneurial skills within a team can jeopardize longterm success. Therefore, entrepreneurial skills are important in a team of a start-up for several reasons:

- Vision and leadership: Entrepreneurial skills such as visioning, goal setting, and leadership are essential for setting the direction and strategy of a start-up, and for motivating and inspiring the team to achieve them.
- Risk-taking: Start-ups are inherently risky ventures, and a team
 that is comfortable with risk and uncertainty will be better able
 to navigate the challenges and opportunities that arise.
 Entrepreneurial skills can help a team to identify, evaluate and
 accept risks.
- Adaptability and creativity: Entrepreneurial skills can help a team to be more adaptable and creative, and better able to pivot and respond to changing market conditions and customer needs.
- Resourcefulness: Start-ups often have limited resources, whether financial or human, entrepreneurial skills can help a team to be resourceful, to make the most of what they have and find creative solutions to problems.
- Persistence: Entrepreneurial skills can also help a team to be persistent and resilient, and to keep going even when faced with challenges and setbacks.
- Networking and sales: Entrepreneurial skills such as networking and sales are essential for building relationships with customers, partners, and investors, and for raising capital and securing partnerships.
- Execution: Entrepreneurial skills are important for a team to be able to execute, to turn ideas into action, to implement and deliver.

In summary, entrepreneurial skills are important for a team in a startup because they help the team to navigate the risks and uncertainty of starting a business, to be adaptable and creative, and to build and execute on a vision. A team that possesses entrepreneurial skills is more likely to be able to effectively identify and capitalize on opportunities, build a successful company, and create value.

Case Study:

One example of a start-up company team that had little educational qualifications but great entrepreneurial skills that led to success is the company, Virgin Group, founded by Richard Branson.

Virgin Group is a British multinational corporation venture capital conglomerate founded by business magnate Richard Branson. The company has over 400 companies in various industries, including: travel, telecommunications, healthcare, renewable energy, and more.

Richard Branson, the founder of Virgin Group, left school at the age of 16 and did not attend university. Despite this, he possessed great entrepreneurial skills and a strong business acumen. He started his first business, a magazine called Student, at the age of 16, and eventually went on to build a successful mail-order record business, which laid the foundation for the Virgin Group.

Branson's entrepreneurial skills and ability to spot opportunities in various industries helped him to build a diverse and successful portfolio of companies under the Virgin Group. His unconventional approach and willingness to take risks have been key to the company's success.

As of 2021, the Virgin Group is considered one of the most successful and diversified companies in the world, with a net worth of over \$5 billion.

In summary, Richard Branson, the founder of Virgin Group, had little educational qualifications, but his great entrepreneurial skills

Future-Proofing Start-ups

and strong business acumen helped him to build a successful and diversified portfolio of companies under the Virgin Group, which is considered one of the most successful companies in the world.

Meeting the Team before investing

Meeting the team before investing in a start-up is important as it can provide valuable insights into the company's culture, dynamics, and the capabilities of the key members. Here are a few reasons why it's essential to meet the team before investing in a start-up:

- Understand the team dynamic: Meeting the team can give you
 an understanding of how the team members work together, how
 they communicate and how they handle challenges, this can
 provide important insights into the company's culture and
 dynamics.
- Assess the team's capabilities: A start-up's success is often tied
 to the capabilities and experience of the team members, and so
 it is important to meet the team members and assess their skills,
 experiences, and knowledge to determine if they can execute on
 their plans.
- Determine the team's motivations: Meeting the team can help you understand the team's motivations and commitment to the company, as well as their personal goals and plans, which can indicate their likelihood of sticking around in the long term.
- Learn about their vision: It's also essential to meet the team to understand their vision and goals for the company, this can help you to gauge if they are aligned with your own investment thesis and assess their ability to execute on their vision.
- Establish a relationship: Meeting the team can also help to establish a relationship with the start-up, which can be important in the long term, and it gives the opportunity to provide feedback and help with any concerns or issues that may arise.

It's worth noting that meeting the team is not the only factor to consider when investing in a start-up, but it's an important one as a team can make or break a company, by providing an understanding of the company's strengths and weaknesses, it can help the investors to make more informed decisions.

Meeting the team before making an investment in a start-up is important, but it may not always be possible, and there are ways to mitigate the risk of not being able to meet the team:

- Conduct thorough due diligence: Conducting thorough due diligence on the company, its industry, and the market can help to identify any potential risks and red flags, even if you're unable to meet the team in person. This can include reviewing the company's financials, business plan, competitive landscape, and market trends, as well as reading news articles, press releases, and analyst reports.
- Look for online presence: Team members' online presence and social media can provide insights into their backgrounds, experiences, and personalities. That way, investors can get a sense of how the team members might act under pressure, their communication style, and their vision.
- Talk to people who have worked with the team: Speaking to people who have worked with the team in the past, such as former employees, customers, or suppliers, can provide valuable insights into the team's capabilities and reputation.
- Ask for references: Investors can also ask the start-up to provide references from other investors, customers, or partners who can speak to the team's experience, capabilities, and performance.
- Assessing the company's performance: Assessing the company's performance, such as their revenue, growth, market penetration, customer feedback and partnerships can provide valuable insights into the team's ability to execute their vision and plans.
- Check for advisor and partners: Check the company's advisors and partners, the presence of experienced and reputable advisors and partners can provide a level of assurance that the team has the support, guidance, and experience to help them navigate the start-up's journey.

It's important to remember that no single factor can mitigate the risk of not being able to meet a start-up team, but a combination of various factors can help to reduce the risk and make a more informed

investment decision.

Recommended Reading

"Super Founders: What Data Reveals About Billion-Dollar Startups" is a book by Ali Tamaseb that examines the characteristics and traits of successful start-up founders, and what data reveals about billion-dollar start-ups. The book highlights several key points, including:

The importance of the founding team: The book emphasizes the importance of the founding team in the success of a start-up and argues that the characteristics and traits of the founders are crucial in determining the start-up's success.

The role of the CEO: The book highlights the role of the CEO in the success of a start-up and argues that the CEO is the most important person in the founding team.

The importance of experience: The book argues that experience is a key factor in the success of a start-up, and that founders with relevant experience in their industry have a higher chance of success.

The importance of diverse teams: The book emphasizes the importance of diverse teams in the success of a start-up and argues that teams with a diverse set of skills and backgrounds have a higher chance of success.

The role of data: The book highlights the role of data in the success of a start-up and argues that data can provide valuable insights into the characteristics and traits of successful start-up founders and billion-dollar start-ups.

The importance of execution: The book emphasizes the importance

of execution in the success of a start-up and argues that the ability to execute on a well-defined strategy is crucial in achieving success.

In summary, "Super Founders: What Data Reveals About Billion-Dollar Start-ups" by Ali Tamaseb examines the characteristics and traits of successful start-up founders, and argues that the founding team, the CEO, experience, diverse teams, data, and execution are key to the success of a start-up, particularly in creating a billion-dollar start-up.

"Masters of Scale" is a book by Reid Hoffman that provides insights and advice from some of the world's most successful entrepreneurs on how to create and scale a successful business. The book highlights several key points, including:

The importance of a strong vision: The book emphasizes the importance of having a strong vision for the future and a clear idea of what the company wants to achieve.

The power of networks: The book argues that networks and connections are crucial in building a successful business, and that entrepreneurs should focus on building strong networks and partnerships.

The value of experimentation: The book emphasizes the importance of experimentation and the willingness to take risks to achieve success.

The role of leadership: The book highlights the role of strong leadership in the success of a business and argues that entrepreneurs should focus on developing their leadership skills.

The importance of scaling: The book argues that scaling is essential for creating a successful business, and that entrepreneurs should

Future-Proofing Start-ups

focus on scaling their business as quickly as possible.

The importance of culture: The book emphasizes the importance of creating a strong company culture that aligns with the company's values and goals.

Part 6: Exploring the MARKET

Components of a Start-up with Key Factors to consider about the Market and Product Market Fit when building and before investing

Product market fit is extremely important for start-ups, as it is a key indicator of a business's potential for success.

Product market fit refers to the process of ensuring that a product or service meets the needs and wants of a specific target market. It is a measure of how well a product satisfies the demands of its intended market.

When a start-up has achieved product market fit, it means that they have developed a product that is in high demand by its target customers, and they have a clear go-to-market strategy to reach those customers and grow the business.

The process of achieving product market fit often involves developing a minimum viable product (MVP), testing it with potential customers, and iterating on the product based on feedback until it meets the needs of the target market.

Achieving product market fit is considered a key milestone for startups, as it is a sign that the business is on the right track to success.

Without product market fit, a start-up may have difficulty gaining traction and scaling its business, as it will struggle to find customers and generate revenue. Without product market fit, a start-up might have to pivot their product and strategy which is a difficult and costly process.

In addition, investors are more likely to provide funding to start-ups that have achieved product market fit, as it indicates that the business has a solid foundation and is more likely to generate a return on investment.

Overall, achieving product market fit is a critical step for start-ups on the path to success, and it is essential for gaining traction and scaling the business.

Some examples of companies that have achieved great product market fit include:

- 1. Slack: Slack achieved great product market fit by providing a simple and effective way for teams to communicate and collaborate remotely.
- 2. Zoom: Zoom achieved great product market fit by providing a simple and reliable way for individuals and teams to conduct virtual meetings, particularly during the pandemics.
- 3. Shopify: Shopify achieved great product market fit by providing an easy-to-use platform for small businesses and entrepreneurs to create and manage their own online stores.
- 4. Airbnb: Airbnb achieved great product market fit by providing a convenient and affordable way for people to find and book unique accommodation around the world.
- 5. Spotify: Spotify achieved great product market fit by providing a convenient and affordable way for people to access a wide range of music online.
- 6. TikTok: TikTok achieved great product market fit by providing a short-form, video-sharing platform that is particularly popular among younger generations.
- 7. Peloton: Peloton achieved great product market fit by providing a convenient and interactive way for people to engage in home-based workouts through its interactive exercise equipment and streaming services.
- 8. Robinhood: Robinhood achieved great product market fit by providing a commission-free trading platform and mobile app that makes it easy for people to invest in stocks and options.
- 9. Apple: Apple's success can be attributed to its ability to identify and meet the needs of its target market with products like the iPod, iPhone, and iPad. Apple's products are designed with the user experience in mind, and the company has a strong focus on design and innovation.

- 10. Amazon: Amazon's success can be attributed to its ability to identify and meet the needs of its target market by offering a wide range of products and services, including books, electronics, and groceries, at competitive prices with fast and convenient delivery options.
- 11. Netflix: Netflix has achieved great product market fit by providing a convenient and affordable way for customers to access a wide range of TV shows and movies online. The company's recommendation algorithm, which suggests content based on a user's viewing history, is also a key factor in its success.
- 12. Uber: Uber achieved great product market fit by providing a convenient and affordable way for customers to hail a ride using their smartphones. The company's ability to quickly scale and adapt to local regulations also contributed to its success.
- 13. Dropbox: Dropbox achieved great product market fit by providing a simple and affordable way for individuals and teams to store, share, and collaborate on files online.

There are several key elements that are crucial to achieving great product market fit:

- *Identifying a specific target market:* Understanding the needs and pain points of a specific target market is crucial to developing a product that will meet their needs and wants.
- Developing a minimum viable product (MVP): An MVP is a basic version of the product that can be tested with potential customers to gather feedback and make improvements.
- Gathering feedback and iterating: Continuously gathering feedback from potential customers and iterating on the product based on that feedback is essential to achieving product market fit.
- *Understanding the competition:* Being aware of the competition and understanding how to differentiate the product from others in the market is important to achieving product market fit.
- Building a strong team: A strong team with the necessary skills, experience, and passion for the product is important for achieving product market fit and scaling the business.
- *Identifying clear revenue streams:* Knowing how the product will generate revenue and having a clear business model is important for achieving product market fit.
- Understanding the market size and growth potential: Knowing the size and growth potential of the market is crucial for understanding the potential of the product and the business.

By considering these elements, start-ups can better understand their target market, develop a more effective product, and increase their chances of achieving great product market fit.

There are several ways to analyse if a company has great product market fit:

• Customer feedback and satisfaction: One of the key indicators of product market fit is customer feedback and satisfaction. If

- customers are happy with the product and are using it regularly, it is a sign that the product is meeting their needs and wants.
- Sales and revenue: Another key indicator of product market fit is the company's sales and revenue. If the product is in high demand and the company is generating significant revenue, it is a sign that the product is meeting the needs of the target market.
- *User engagement and retention:* High user engagement and retention are also key indicators of product market fit. If users are consistently engaging with the product and returning to use it over time, it is a sign that they find it valuable.
- Net Promoter Score (NPS): NPS is a measure of how likely customers are to recommend a product to others, it's a good metric to understand customer loyalty and satisfaction with the product.
- *Market share:* Gaining market share, especially in comparison to competitors, is a strong indicator of product market fit, as it suggests that customers are choosing the product over others.
- Referrals: If customers are referring others to the product, it is a sign that they are satisfied with the product and believe it will meet the needs of others as well.
- *Virality:* If a product is going viral, it is a sign that people are excited about it and want to share it with others, indicating that the product is meeting a need or want for a lot of people.

By analysing these factors, you can get a sense of how well the product is meeting the needs of the target market and if the company has achieved great product market fit.

Examples of companies that have failed to achieve product market fit:

1. Friendster: Friendster was one of the first social networking platforms, but it failed to achieve product market fit due to a slow user experience and a lack of unique features, leading to the rise of platforms like MySpace and later Facebook.

- 2. Segway: Segway is a two-wheeled, self-balancing personal transporter that was intended to revolutionize transportation. However, it failed to achieve product market fit due to its high cost, lack of clear use cases, and the fact that it was not as versatile as expected.
- 3. Google Wave: Google Wave was a web-based collaboration and communication platform that was intended to combine features of email, instant messaging, and wikis. However, it failed to achieve product market fit due to a lack of user engagement and a lack of clear use cases.
- 4. HP Touchpad: HP Touchpad was a tablet computer that was intended to compete with the iPad. However, it failed to achieve product market fit due to a lack of unique features, poor user experience, and a high price.
- 5. The Zune: The Zune was a portable media player and music service developed by Microsoft that was intended to compete with the iPod. However, it failed to achieve product market fit due to a lack of unique features, poor user experience and a lack of developer support.
- 6. Google Buzz: Google Buzz was a social networking, microblogging, and messaging tool developed by Google that was intended to compete with Twitter. However, it failed to achieve product market fit due to a lack of user engagement, privacy concerns, and lack of clear use cases.

Learning from Product Market Fit failures:

The companies that failed to achieve product market fit failed for a variety of reasons, such as:

• Lack of clear use cases: Many of these companies failed to clearly identify and address the specific needs or problems of their target market, which made it difficult for customers to see the value in their products or services.

- *High cost:* Some of these companies' products or services were too expensive for the target market, which made it difficult for them to generate sufficient demand.
- Lack of unique features: Some of these companies' products or services failed to offer anything new or innovative that set them apart from existing products or services in the market, which made it difficult for them to generate interest or demand.
- *Privacy concerns:* Some of these companies' products or services raised privacy concerns among potential customers, which made it difficult for them to generate demand.
- *Poor user experience:* Some of these companies' products or services had a poor user experience, which made it difficult for customers to use or understand them, and which made it difficult for the company to generate demand.
- Lack of developer support: Some of these companies' products or services lacked developer support, which made it difficult for them to generate demand, as developers are key players in expanding the reach of a product or service through their apps and integrations.
- Failing to adapt to changing market and user preferences: Some of these companies failed to keep up with changing market and user preferences, which made it difficult for them to generate demand for their products or services.

In summary, these companies failed to achieve product market fit because they failed to clearly identify and address the specific needs or problems of their target market, offered products that were too expensive, lacked unique features, raised privacy concerns, had a poor user experience, lack of developer support and failed to keep up with changing market and user preferences.

Learning from Product Market Fit successes

There are several key lessons from companies that have successfully achieved product market fit:

- *Understand your target market:* Companies that have successfully achieved product market fit have a deep understanding of their target market and their needs. They take the time to research and understand their customers' pain points, habits, and preferences, and use this information to inform their product development and marketing strategies.
- Focus on user experience: Companies that have successfully achieved product market fit have a strong focus on user experience. They design their products and services with the user in mind, and prioritize ease of use, simplicity, and convenience.
- *Be adaptable:* Companies that have successfully achieved product market fit are able to adapt to changes in the market and customer needs. They can pivot their strategy when necessary and are not afraid to experiment with new ideas.
- Have a clear and compelling value proposition: Companies that
 have successfully achieved product market fit have a clear and
 compelling value proposition that sets them apart from their
 competitors. They can clearly communicate the unique benefits
 of their products or services to their target market.
- Have a go-to-market strategy: Companies that have successfully achieved product market fit have a well-defined go-to-market strategy that is tailored to the needs of their target market and customers. They have a clear understanding of how to reach and engage with their target market, and have a plan for generating leads, closing sales, and growing their customer base.
- Measure and learn: Companies that have successfully achieved product market fit have a culture of continuous improvement.
 They have processes in place to measure the performance of their products, services, and marketing campaigns, and use this data to make informed decisions and iterate their strategies.
- Build a loyal customer base: Companies that have successfully achieved product market fit have a loyal customer base that is willing to recommend their products or services to others. They have a deep understanding of their customers and have been able

to build trust and loyalty through their products, services, and customer service.

By understanding these key lessons, companies can improve their chances of achieving product market fit and long-term success.

Is the Target Market clearly identified as a growth sector?

If the primary sector in which the business operates is a growth sector the business has a better opportunity to become sustainable.

Determining if a start-up's product is in a growth sector can involve evaluating several factors:

- *Market size:* The size of the market that the product is entering can give an indication of the potential for growth. A large market size with a high growth rate is more likely to be a growth sector.
- Industry trends: Researching industry trends can help identify if
 the sector is growing or declining. For example, if the start-up's
 product is in the technology sector, it's important to understand
 if this technology is becoming more mainstream or if it's on the
 decline.
- Competition: Analysing the competition can give an indication
 of the potential for growth. A crowded market with many
 competitors may indicate that the sector is mature and has
 limited growth potential, while a less crowded market with
 fewer competitors may indicate a sector with more growth
 potential.
- *Customer demand:* Understanding customer demand can give an indication of the potential for growth. If a product is meeting a need or want that is not currently being met in the market, it is more likely to be in a growth sector.

- Government regulations and funding: Government regulations, funding, and support can also play a big role in determining if a start-up's product is identified as a growth sector.
- *Potential for scalability:* If a product has a potential to scale and grow, it is more likely to be in a growth sector.

By evaluating these factors, you can gain a sense of the potential for growth in the sector that the start-up's product is entering and determine if it is identified as a growth sector.

There are many high-growth sectors that investors can consider investing in, as the market is constantly evolving, and new opportunities arise. However, some sectors that have traditionally been considered high growth include:

- *Technology:* The technology sector includes companies involved in the development, production, and distribution of technology products and services. This includes software, hardware, and internet-based companies.
- *Healthcare:* The healthcare sector includes companies involved in the research, development, production, and distribution of healthcare products and services. This includes pharmaceuticals, medical devices, and healthcare services.
- *E-commerce and online platforms:* The e-commerce and online platforms sector includes companies involved in the sale of goods and services online, as well as companies that operate online marketplaces and platforms.
- Renewable energy: Renewable energy sector includes companies involved in the production and distribution of energy from renewable sources such as solar, wind, and hydro power.
- Artificial Intelligence (AI) and machine learning: AI and machine learning sector includes companies that are involved in the development and application of AI technologies, such as natural language processing, computer vision, and decision-making algorithms.

- *Biotechnology:* Biotechnology sector includes companies that use living organisms, cells, or biological systems to create new products and technologies, such as genetically modified crops, gene therapy and regenerative medicine.
- *Cybersecurity:* Cybersecurity sector includes companies that provide security solutions such as firewalls, intrusion detection systems, and encryption technologies to protect networks, devices, and data from cyber-attacks.
- Robotics and automation: Robotics and automation sector includes companies that develop, produce, and sell robots, automation systems and robotic technologies.

Please note that past performance is not an indicator of future performance, and it's important for investors to conduct their own research and assess their risk tolerance before investing in any high-growth sectors.

Has Product Market Fit been clearly identified?

As mentioned previously, Product Market Fit is the degree to which a product satisfies a strong market demand. It has been identified as a first step to building a successful venture in which the company meets early adopters, gathers feedback, and gauges interest in its product. Has the company clearly identified who the customers are, are they interested and are there early adopters?

The key points outlined in Mark Joyner's book "How to Influence Anyone" can be applied in various ways by someone starting to market their new start-up. Here are a few examples:

Understanding and connecting with the customer's perspective: By understanding the customer's needs and pain points, you can create marketing messages and campaigns that resonate with them. This

can be done by conducting market research, surveying customers, or talking to potential customers to gather feedback.

Using storytelling and analogies: By creating relatable and memorable stories and analogies, you can make your product or service more interesting and engaging. This can be done by using customer testimonials, case studies, and other storytelling techniques in your marketing materials.

Using rhetorical devices: By using rhetorical questions, repetition, and emotional language in your marketing messages, you can make them more persuasive and memorable. For example, you could use a rhetorical question in a social media post to get people thinking about your product or service.

Using social proof: By including testimonials, endorsements, and other forms of social proof in your marketing materials, you can build trust and credibility with potential customers. This can be done by gathering customer reviews, testimonials, and other forms of social proof, and then featuring them prominently on your website or social media channels.

Building relationships: By building relationships and rapport with potential customers, you can increase the chances that they will be interested in your product or service. This can be done by providing excellent customer service, creating personalized marketing messages and campaigns, and being responsive to customer feedback.

Nonverbal communication: By using confident and sincere nonverbal communication such as body language and tone of voice, you can convey your expertise, sincerity and build trust during face-to-face interactions and online presentations.

By using these key points, you can create marketing strategies that are more effective and more likely to persuade and influence

potential customers to try your new start-up.

There are several ways to analyse if a company has great product market fit:

- Customer feedback and satisfaction: One of the key indicators of product market fit is customer feedback and satisfaction. If customers are happy with the product and are using it regularly, it is a sign that the product is meeting their needs and wants.
- Sales and revenue: Another key indicator of product market fit is the company's sales and revenue. If the product is in high demand and the company is generating significant revenue, it is a sign that the product is meeting the needs of the target market.
- *User engagement and retention:* High user engagement and retention are also key indicators of product market fit. If users are consistently engaging with the product and returning to use it over time, it is a sign that they find it valuable.
- Net Promoter Score (NPS): NPS is a measure of how likely customers are to recommend a product to others, it's a good metric to understand customer loyalty and satisfaction with the product.
- *Market share:* Gaining market share, especially in comparison to competitors, is a strong indicator of product market fit, as it suggests that customers are choosing the product over others.
- *Referrals:* If customers are referring others to the product, it is a sign that they are satisfied with the product and believe it will meet the needs of others as well.
- *Virality:* If a product is going viral, it is a sign that people are excited about it and want to share it with others, indicating that the product is meeting a need or want for a lot of people.

By analysing these factors, you can get a sense of how well the product is meeting the needs of the target market and if the company has achieved great product market fit.

Case Study:

One example of a less well-known company that was able to obtain a large percentage of its total addressable market is Waze.

Waze is a GPS navigation software app, which was developed and owned by Waze Mobile. The company was founded in Israel in 2008, and it was acquired by Google in 2013.

The app, which uses crowdsourced data to provide real-time traffic and navigation information, became popular among drivers for its accuracy and ability to help users avoid traffic congestion.

Waze's success can be attributed to its focus on providing a highly tailored and localized experience for its users. By leveraging data from its users and integrating it with other data sources, the company was able to provide highly accurate and up-to-date traffic information. This helped it to quickly gain a large user base, especially in urban areas where traffic congestion is a major problem.

In addition to providing a highly tailored and localized experience, Waze also succeeded by providing a free version of its app, which helped the company to quickly gain a large user base.

As of 2021, Waze has more than 100 million active users worldwide, and it's considered one of the most popular navigation apps in the world. Waze's ability to provide a highly tailored and localized experience, combined with its focus on user engagement and community building, has allowed it to capture a significant portion of its total addressable market.

Has the Total Available Market been clearly identified?

The TAM is the overall revenue opportunity that is available to a product or service if 100% market share was achieved. It shows the level of effort and funding that a person or company can put into a new business product

Identifying the total available market (TAM) is important for a start-up because it helps the company understand the size and potential of the market they are entering. The TAM is the total revenue potential of a product or service in a specific market. By understanding the TAM, a start-up can better estimate the potential revenue and growth opportunities for their product and make more informed decisions about their go-to-market strategy and product development.

TAM can also be used to measure the company's current and potential market share, to understand the competitive landscape and how to differentiate themselves from the others.

Additionally, identifying the TAM is important for fundraising and investment. Knowing the TAM can help a start-up communicate the potential of the market to investors and make a more compelling case for investment.

In conclusion, understanding the TAM is important for a start-up to have a clear vision of the market they are entering, to set realistic goals and make informed decisions about their product and business strategy.

A start-up can determine the total attainable market (TAM) for its product by analysing the following factors:

- Market size: This includes understanding the size of the overall market, as well as the size of the specific sub-segments that the start-up's product targets.
- *Market growth:* Analysing the growth rate of the market and the sub-segments that the start-up's product targets can give an indication of the potential for future growth.
- *Market segmentation:* Identifying and analysing the specific segments of the market that the start-up's product targets can help to determine the total attainable market.

- *Target customer:* Identifying and understanding the characteristics of the target customer, such as demographics, location, and purchasing habits, can help determine the total attainable market.
- *Distribution channels:* Identifying the channels through which the product will be distributed and sold can help to determine the total attainable market.
- Competitive landscape: Analysing the competition in the market, including the number of competitors, their market share, and their target customer, can help to determine the total attainable market.
- Company's resources and capabilities: The start-up's resources and capabilities can also play a role in determining the total attainable market. For example, a start-up that has limited resources will have a smaller total attainable market than a start-up with more resources.

Total Serviceable Market (TSM)

Is the projected % of Total Attainable Market a realistic projection?

This is the segment of the TAM targeted by the company's products and services which is within their geographical reach. The % they aim to capture should be realistic and in line with growth forecasts, budgeted marketing on growth spend, etc.

The total serviceable market (TSM) for a product is the subset of the total available market (TAM) that a company can realistically reach and serve with its existing resources and capabilities. It is the portion of the market that the company can realistically expect to capture.

TSM is determined by considering factors such as the company's distribution channels, sales and marketing capabilities, and the target customer's willingness to pay for the product.

For example, if a company only has the resources to sell its product

in a certain region, the TSM for that product would be limited to that region. Similarly, if a company only has the capability to sell to a certain type of customer, the TSM would be limited to that customer segment.

Knowing the TSM is important for a start-up because it helps them to set realistic goals and targets and make informed decisions about their go-to-market strategy and product development. It also helps them to communicate the potential of the market to investors and make a more compelling case for investment.

In summary, TSM is the subset of the total available market (TAM) a company can realistically reach and serve with its existing resources and capabilities. It helps the company to set realistic goals and make informed decisions about its strategy and product development.

A start-up can determine the total serviceable market (TSM) for its product by analysing the following factors:

- Target customer: Identifying and understanding the characteristics of the target customer, such as demographics, location, and purchasing habits, can help determine the total serviceable market.
- *Distribution channels:* Identifying the channels through which the product will be distributed and sold can help to determine the total serviceable market, as it will affect the company's ability to reach its target customer.
- Sales and marketing capabilities: The company's sales and marketing capabilities, such as the size and efficiency of the sales team, and the effectiveness of the marketing campaigns, can also affect the total serviceable market.
- Resources and capabilities: The company's resources and capabilities play a role in determining the total serviceable market. For example, a company with limited resources will

have a smaller total serviceable market than a company with more resources.

- Competitive landscape: Analysing the competition in the market, including the number of competitors, their market share, and their target customer, can help to determine the total serviceable market.
- Target customer willingness to pay: Understanding the target customer's willingness to pay for the product is important in determining the total serviceable market as it will affect the revenue potential of the product.

By analysing these factors, a start-up can get a better understanding of the total serviceable market for its product and use this information to set realistic goals and make informed decisions about its go-to-market strategy and product development.

Case Study

One example of a company that was able to obtain a large percentage of its total addressable market (TAM) is Amazon.com.

Founded in 1994, Amazon started as an online bookstore but quickly expanded to other products and services. Through a combination of aggressive expansion, strategic acquisitions, and constant innovation, Amazon has grown to dominate several markets, including e-commerce, cloud computing, and streaming media.

One of the key factors in Amazon's success has been its ability to continuously expand its product and service offerings to meet the evolving needs of its customers. This has allowed the company to capture a significant portion of the e-commerce market, as well as other markets such as cloud computing and streaming media.

In addition to expanding its product and service offerings, Amazon has also been able to capture a large portion of the market by leveraging its vast data resources to personalize the shopping experience for its customers, as well as utilizing its sophisticated logistics and delivery systems to offer fast and reliable shipping.

Another important factor in Amazon's success has been its focus on customer service and innovation. By continuously investing in new technologies and experimenting with new business models, Amazon has been able to maintain a competitive edge and stay ahead of its rivals.

As of 2021, Amazon has continued to grow and now have a market capitalization of over \$1.5 trillion and a net revenue of over \$386 billion in 2020. The company's dominance in the e-commerce market, combined with its strong presence in other markets, has allowed it to capture a significant portion of its total addressable market.

Clearly Identify Customer User Profiles

Have 'Ideal' customers or 'personas' been identified so that wasted leads and unqualified traffic to the business can be avoided?

Customer user profiles, also known as buyer personas or customer personas, are fictional representations of a company's ideal customer. They are created by researching and analysing the characteristics, behaviours, and needs of the company's target customer.

A user profile typically includes information such as demographics, job title, income level, pain points, goals, and decision-making processes. The information is used to create a detailed picture of the customer, including their motivations, challenges, and how they interact with the product or service.

Creating customer user profiles can be a valuable tool for start-ups to help them understand their target customer and develop a more effective marketing and sales strategy. By understanding the customer's needs, pain points, and decision-making process, a start-up can create messaging and positioning that resonates with the customer and increase the chances of converting them into a paying

customer.

User profiles are also useful in product development, by understanding the customer's needs and pain points, the start-up can develop products that meet the customer's requirements and increase the chances of success.

For the Founder:

Establishing the ideal customer profile for a product or service can involve several steps:

- Research: Conduct research on your current customers, including surveys, interviews, and focus groups. This can help you understand their demographics, behaviours, needs, and pain points.
- Analyse data: Analyse the data you've collected to identify patterns and common characteristics among your customers. This can help you identify your target market and create a buyer persona or customer user profile.
- *Identify pain points:* Understand the problems your customers are trying to solve and the pain points they have. This will help you understand how your product or service can provide value and help you tailor your messaging.
- *Understand decision-making process:* Understand how your customers make purchase decisions, what are the factors that influence their decisions and the decision-making process.
- Segment the market: Segment your market based on the characteristics and needs of your customers. This will help you create different user profiles for different segments of your market.
- Regularly update: Regularly review and update your customer user profiles, as the needs and characteristics of your target customers may change over time.

By following these steps, you can establish an accurate and detailed picture of your ideal customer, which can help you develop more effective marketing and sales strategies, as well as improve your product development.

For the Investor:

There are several ways to analyse if an ideal customer profile has been created for a start-up's product or service:

- Align with target customer: The ideal customer profile should align with the characteristics and needs of the start-up's target customer. It should accurately describe the demographics, behaviours, and pain points of the target customer.
- Relevance to product or service: The ideal customer profile should be relevant to the start-up's product or service. It should clearly demonstrate how the product or service addresses the needs and pain points of the target customer.
- *Reflects target market:* The ideal customer profile should reflect the target market; it should be specific enough to help the start-up identify the market segments they are targeting.
- Align with company's resources: The ideal customer profile should be realistic and align with the start-up's resources and capabilities. The start-up should be able to reach and serve the target customer with its existing resources and capabilities.
- *Impact on business strategy:* The ideal customer profile should have a direct impact on the start-up's business strategy, including the go-to-market approach, pricing strategy, and product development.

Identifiable Roadmap

Has the Idea or Product go-to-market plan been clearly established?

This is an indicator that the company has a well thought out marketing strategy with defined actionable goals and timelines for growth which are clearly matched to financial projections.

A roadmap for a go-to-market (GTM) strategy is a plan that outlines

the steps a company will take to bring a product or service to market. It is a high-level overview of the key milestones, tactics, and resources needed to successfully launch and scale a product or service.

A GTM roadmap typically includes the following elements:

- *Market research:* Outlines the research that has been conducted on the target market, including the size and growth of the market, and the characteristics of the target customer.
- *Product development:* Outlines the key milestones and resources needed to develop and launch the product or service.
- Go-to-market strategy: Outlines the strategies and tactics that will be used to reach and acquire customers, including sales and marketing activities, partnerships and collaborations, and distribution channels.
- Metrics and KPIs: Outlines the key metrics and KPIs that will be used to measure the success of the GTM strategy, such as customer acquisition costs, lifetime value, and customer retention rates.
- *Timeline:* Outlines the key milestones and timelines for the GTM strategy, including the product launch date, and the milestones for each of the key tactics and strategies outlined in the roadmap.

By creating a GTM roadmap, start-ups can better understand the steps and resources needed to successfully bring their product or service to market

When evaluating a go-to-market (GTM) roadmap presented by a start-up, an investor will typically look for the following factors:

 Market research and understanding: The investor will look for evidence that the start-up has conducted thorough market research and has a deep understanding of the target market, including the size and growth of the market, and the characteristics of the target customer.

- Realistic and well-defined product development plan: The investor will look for a well-defined product development plan that is realistic and achievable within the start-up's resources and capabilities.
- Go-to-market strategy: The investor will look for a clear and well-defined go-to-market strategy that outlines how the start-up plans to reach and acquire customers, including sales and marketing activities, partnerships and collaborations, and distribution channels.
- Metrics and KPIs: The investor will look for clear metrics and KPIs that will be used to measure the success of the GTM strategy and determine if the start-up is on track to meet its goals.
- *Timeline and Milestones:* The investor will look for a clear timeline with specific milestones and deadlines that are realistic and achievable,
- Flexibility and ability to adapt to changes: The investor will also look for a GTM roadmap that is flexible and allows the start-up to adapt to changes in the market and customer needs.

By evaluating these factors, an investor can determine if the startup's GTM roadmap is well-defined, realistic, and achievable, and aligns with the start-up's resources and capabilities.

What is the Product Adoption Level?

Product adoption level refers to the stage at which customers adopt and start using a new product or service. The product adoption process is often divided into five stages: awareness, interest, evaluation, trial, and adoption.

• Awareness: At this stage, potential customers become aware of the product or service, but may not yet have a clear understanding of what it is or how it works.

- *Interest:* At this stage, potential customers start to show an interest in the product or service and begin to gather more information about it.
- Evaluation: At this stage, potential customers start to evaluate the product or service to see if it meets their needs and whether it is a good fit for them.
- *Trial:* At this stage, potential customers start to use the product or service on a trial basis to see if it meets their expectations.
- *Adoption:* At this stage, customers fully adopt and start using the product or service on a regular basis.

It is important to note that the adoption process can vary depending on the type of product or service, the target customer, and the market. Some customers may move through the stages quickly, while others may take longer.

Understanding the product adoption level is important for a start-up as it helps them understand where their customers are in the adoption process and make informed decisions about their go-to-market strategy, product development and customer support.

A good product adoption level for a product or service is one where a significant number of customers have adopted and are regularly using the product or service. The exact level of adoption will vary depending on the specific product or service, the target customer, and the market.

For example, a consumer product such as a smartphone may have a higher adoption level than an enterprise software, as the former is usually adopted by many individuals, while the latter may be adopted by a smaller number of organizations.

However, in general, a product adoption level of over 20-30% is considered good. This means that at least 20-30% of the target market has adopted and is regularly using the product or service.

It is also important to look at the rate of adoption, if the rate is fast it is considered a good sign that the product or service is meeting the needs of the target customer and is well-positioned in the market. A product or service that is not adopted by any customers, or has a very low adoption rate, can indicate that the product or service is not meeting the needs of the target customer or is not well-positioned in the market.

In summary, a good product adoption level for a product or service is one where a significant number of customers have adopted and are regularly using the product or service, and the rate of adoption is fast. The exact level of adoption will depend on the specific product or service, target customer, and market.

Case Study

An example of a company that was able to obtain a large percentage of its total addressable market is Zoom. Zoom is a video conferencing and online meeting platform, founded in 2011.

The company's success can be attributed to its user-friendly interface and reliability, which made it easy for businesses and individuals to conduct virtual meetings, especially during the pandemic. Zoom's platform offered a simple and reliable way for people to stay connected, and it quickly became the go-to platform for remote work and remote learning.

In addition to its user-friendly interface and reliability, Zoom also succeeded by providing a free version of its platform to individuals and small businesses, which helped the company to quickly gain a large user base. As the demand for remote work and remote learning increased during the pandemic, Zoom was able to capitalize on this trend and quickly expand its customer base.

Zoom's revenue grew 355% year over year in 2020 and its user base grew to over 300 million daily meeting participants. The company

went public in April 2019, and as of 2021, Zoom's market capitalization is over \$100 billion.

Zoom's ability to quickly adapt to the changing market conditions and capitalize on the shift towards remote work and remote learning has allowed it to capture a significant portion of its total addressable market, making it one of the most successful companies in recent years.

Sales Cycles are Important!

Has a Sales Cycle for the product been clearly identified?

This explains whether the company understands and has a process in place for managing the various steps involved in closing a sale, and their management of the overall sales process.

The sales cycle refers to the process that a start-up goes through to sell its product or service to potential customers. It typically includes several stages, including lead generation, qualification, presentation, handling objections, closing, and follow-up.

When analysing the sales cycle for a product or service offered by a start-up, an investor will typically look for the following factors:

- Lead generation: The investor will look for evidence that the start-up has a clear strategy for identifying and attracting potential customers, and that it has implemented methods for lead generation that are appropriate for its target market.
- *Qualification:* The investor will look for evidence that the startup has a process in place to qualify potential customers and determine if they are a good fit for its product or service.
- *Presentation:* The investor will look for evidence that the start-up has a clear and effective process in place for presenting its product or service to potential customers and demonstrating how it meets their needs.

- Handling objections: The investor will look for evidence that the start-up has a process in place for addressing any concerns or objections that potential customers may have about the product or service.
- *Closing:* The investor will look for evidence that the start-up has a clear and effective process in place for closing sales, and that it has a good closing rate.
- *Follow-up:* The investor will look for evidence that the start-up has a process in place for following up with customers to ensure they are satisfied with the product or service and to upsell or cross-sell additional products or services.
- Flexibility and ability to adapt to changes: The investor will also look for a sales cycle that is flexible and allows the start-up to adapt to changes in the market and customer needs.

By evaluating these factors, an investor can determine if the start-up has a clear and effective sales cycle that is tailored to the needs of its target market and customers. A well-defined sales cycle is important for a start-up as it helps them to identify and target the right customers, and to develop a sales strategy that is tailored to the needs of the target customer.

Product or Service Feedback analysis

This is a measure of the favourable feedback received from customers or press

Product or service feedback is important for several reasons:

• Improving the product or service: Feedback allows start-ups to identify areas where their product or service can be improved. It can help to highlight features that are not working well or are missing, as well as identify areas where the product or service can be made more user-friendly or efficient.

- Meeting customer needs: Feedback provides start-ups with valuable information about the needs and preferences of their customers. This can help start-ups to develop products and services that are more closely aligned with the needs of their target market.
- *Identifying new opportunities:* Feedback can also help start-ups to identify new opportunities for growth and expansion. It can help them to identify new market segments or opportunities to expand their product or service offerings.
- *Increase customer satisfaction:* Feedback allows start-ups to identify and address customer concerns, complaints and issues which results in increased customer satisfaction.
- *Identify issues early:* Feedback allows start-ups to identify issues early on, which can help prevent problems from becoming bigger and more difficult to solve.
- Building trust: Feedback also helps start-ups to build trust with their customers by showing that they are responsive to their feedback and take it into consideration when making decisions about the product or service.

In summary, product or service feedback is important because it allows start-ups to improve their product or service, meet customer needs, identify new opportunities, increase customer satisfaction, identify issues early, and build trust with their customers.

Social network or media presence

This is an indication of interest in the company value proposition and that the business has sufficiently leveraged its internal and external networks (e.g., LinkedIn, Twitter, FB, Others)

Social media presence is important for a variety of reasons:

• Branding and awareness: Social media platforms allow companies to create and maintain a consistent brand image, and

to reach a large audience quickly and efficiently. By having a strong social media presence, companies can increase brand awareness and drive more traffic to their website.

- Lead generation: Social media platforms can be used to generate leads for a business by creating a community of followers who are interested in the company's products or services. This can be done through tactics such as social media ads, content marketing, and social media campaigns.
- Customer engagement: Social media platforms allow companies
 to interact with their customers and respond to their feedback in
 real-time. This helps to build trust and customer loyalty and can
 be used to gather customer insights, which can be used to
 improve the company's products or services.
- Market research: Social media platforms allow companies to track customer sentiment, monitor the competition, and gather market intelligence. This information can be used to make datadriven decisions about product development, marketing, and customer engagement.
- *Cost-effective:* Social media platforms offer a cost-effective way for companies to reach and engage with customers. It is often cheaper than traditional forms of advertising such as TV or print advertising.
- Opportunities for partnerships and collaborations: Social media platforms can be used to find and engage with potential partners, collaborators and influencers that can help to amplify the reach of a company's message and increase brand awareness.

In summary, social media presence is important because it allows companies to reach a large audience quickly and efficiently, generate leads, engage with customers, gather market research, costeffective, and opportunities for partnerships and collaborations.

When analysing a start-up's social media presence, an investor will typically look at the following factors:

- Audience size and engagement: The investor will look at the number of followers and engagement levels on the start-up's social media accounts. High engagement levels and a large following can indicate that the start-up has a strong and active community of potential customers.
- *Brand consistency:* The investor will look at the start-up's social media accounts to see if they are consistent with the company's brand and messaging. This can indicate that the start-up has a clear and consistent brand message across all platforms.
- Quality of content: The investor will look at the quality of the content that the start-up is producing on social media. Good quality content can indicate that the start-up has a clear understanding of its target customer and is producing content that resonates with them.
- Interaction with customers: The investor will look at how the start-up interacts with its customers on social media. This can indicate if the start-up is responsive to customer feedback and is able to build relationships with its customers.
- *Use of social media ads:* The investor will look at the start-up's use of social media ads, they can be a powerful tool to reach a large audience quickly and efficiently, but they must be used strategically and effectively to generate results.
- Social media analytics: The investor will look at the start-up's use of social media analytics, to see if they are tracking and measuring their social media performance. This can indicate that the start-up is using data to make informed decisions about its social media strategy.
- *Platforms*: The investor will look for evidence that the start-up has a presence on the appropriate social media platforms for its target market and industry.
- Content and engagement strategy: The investor will look at the type of content the start-up is sharing on social media, and how it is engaging with its audience. They will evaluate if the content is relevant and interesting to the target market, and if the start-up's engagement strategy is effective.

- Lead generation and conversion: The investor will look for evidence that the start-up is using social media to generate leads and convert them into customers. They will evaluate if the start-up's social media strategy is aligned with its sales and marketing strategy.
- *ROI*: The investor will look for evidence that the start-up is able to measure and demonstrate the return on investment (ROI) from its social media efforts.

By evaluating these factors, an investor can determine if the start-up has a strong and effective social media presence that is aligned with its overall business strategy and resonates with its target market. A strong social media presence can help a start-up to increase brand awareness

Case Study:

One example of a company that has a great social media presence and has been able to obtain a large market share is the sportswear company, Nike.

Nike has been able to leverage social media to build a strong brand and connect with customers in a way that resonates with them. The company has a large following on social media platforms such as Instagram, Twitter, Facebook, and TikTok.

One of the key factors in Nike's social media success has been its ability to create and share content that resonates with its target audience. This includes a mix of motivational and inspirational messages, behind-the-scenes access to athletes and events, and product releases and promotions.

Additionally, Nike has also been able to leverage influencer marketing to reach a wider audience and create a buzz around its

Future-Proofing Start-ups

products. The company has worked with a variety of influencers, from professional athletes and celebrities to everyday users, to promote its products and create a sense of community around its brand.

Another important aspect of Nike's social media strategy has been its ability to create social media campaigns that align with its target audience's values and interests. For example, the company has run campaigns that focus on empowering women, promoting diversity and inclusivity, and supporting local communities.

Nike's social media presence has also helped the company to build a loyal customer base and increase brand awareness. In 2020, Nike's revenue was over \$39.1 billion and the company's market capitalization is over \$180 billion.

In summary, Nike's strong social media presence, ability to create and share compelling content, influencer marketing, and campaigns that align with its target audience's values and interests have allowed the company to build a strong brand and capture a significant portion of its total addressable market.

Part 7: Exploring the COMPETITION

Components of a Start-up with Key Factors about the Start-up's competition are vitally important to consider before investing

An analysis of the competition is important for a start-up for several reasons:

- *Understanding the market:* Conducting a competitive analysis helps a start-up understand the size and structure of the market they are entering, including the number of competitors, their strengths and weaknesses, and the opportunities and threats in the market.
- *Identifying opportunities:* A competitive analysis can help a start-up identify gaps in the market that they can fill with their product or service. It can also help them to identify areas where they can differentiate themselves from the competition and create a unique value proposition.
- *Identifying threats:* A competitive analysis can also help a startup identify potential threats to their business, such as new competitors entering the market or existing competitors improving their products or services. This knowledge can help them to take proactive measures to mitigate these threats.
- *Benchmarking:* A competitive analysis can help a start-up to benchmark their own performance against that of their competitors. This can help them to identify areas where they need to improve to be competitive.
- *Improving strategy:* A competitive analysis can help a start-up to develop a more effective strategy for entering and competing in the market. It can help them to identify the most effective marketing and sales strategies, as well as the most effective pricing and distribution strategies.
- Attracting investors: A competitive analysis can also be useful for start-ups when seeking funding from investors. It can help them to demonstrate that they have a thorough understanding of the market and the competition, which can increase investors' confidence in the start-up's ability to succeed.

Overall, an analysis of the competition is crucial for a start-up as it

can provide them with valuable insights into the market they are entering, and help them to develop a more effective strategy, mitigate potential threats and attract investors.

Competition is clearly identified

This is an indicator of how well the company know its competition and their products and the potential to gain market share from them.

Identifying competitors for a start-up means identifying other businesses or organizations that offer similar products or services to the ones that the start-up is planning to offer. This includes both direct and indirect competitors.

- Direct competitors: Direct competitors are businesses that
 offer the same or similar products or services as the start-up
 and target the same customer base. For example, if the startup is planning to launch a new e-commerce platform for
 fashion, direct competitors would be existing e-commerce
 platforms that sell fashion products.
- Indirect competitors: Indirect competitors are businesses that do not offer the same products or services, but they could be used as an alternative by the customer. For example, if the start-up is planning to launch a new ridesharing app, indirect competitors could be taxi companies, public transportation, or even car rental companies.

There are several important ways to identify competitors for a startup:

Market research: Conducting market research is one of the most effective ways to identify competitors. This can include researching industry reports, reading trade publications, and conducting surveys or focus groups to gather information about the market and the competitive landscape.

Online research: The internet is a valuable tool for identifying competitors, as many businesses have an online presence. This can include researching competitors' websites, online directories, and social media profiles to gather information about their products and services, pricing, and marketing strategies.

Direct observation: A start-up can also identify competitors by observing the market directly. This can include visiting competitors' retail locations, attending trade shows, and networking with industry professionals to gather information about the competitive landscape.

SWOT analysis: A SWOT analysis is a tool that can be used to identify competitors by analysing the strengths, weaknesses, opportunities, and threats of the business. It can help to identify the direct and indirect competitors, as well as their positioning in the market.

Brand tracking: Brand tracking tools can help to identify the direct and indirect competitors and their market position. It can also help to gather information about the competitors' marketing efforts, online presence, and overall brand performance.

It's important for start-ups to regularly monitor and update their competitor analysis, as the market, competition and the industry may change over time. By keeping track of their competitors' moves, start-ups can adjust their strategy, accordingly, anticipate and respond to changes in the market, and stay competitive.

A combination of different research methods can provide a comprehensive understanding of the competition and the market.

Question 2: Value and Innovation: Does the Company offer a better solution than the competition?

Is it clearly argued in the available information that the company has a competitive edge with respect to price, feature, and performance mix. In other words, they offer value and innovation? It is important for a start-up to offer better value and/or innovation than its competitors for several reasons:

- Attracting customers: To attract and retain customers, a start-up must offer a product or service that is perceived as better than or different from what the competition is offering. This can be through offering a better price, more features, higher quality, or a unique value proposition.
- Building a sustainable business: A start-up that offers better value and/or innovation than its competitors is more likely to be able to build a sustainable business. This is because customers will be more likely to continue to use the product or service and recommend it to others, which can lead to a positive word-of-mouth reputation and organic growth.
- *Differentiation:* By offering better value and/or innovation, a start-up can differentiate itself from the competition, which can make it more attractive to potential customers and investors. It's also easier to create a clear and compelling message that can help the start-up to stand out in a crowded marketplace.
- *Innovation:* Innovation is key to a start-up's success, as it allows them to create new products and services or improve existing ones. This can lead to increased efficiency, cost savings, and improved customer satisfaction.
- Attracting investors: By offering better value and/or innovation, a start-up can also attract investors. Investors are always looking for new and innovative products and services that have the potential to generate high returns.

There are several ways an investor can determine if a start-up they are considering investing in has a better value proposition and/or innovation than its competition:

 Market research: Conducting market research is an important step in determining if a start-up has a better value proposition and/or innovation than its competition. This can include researching industry reports, reading trade publications, and

- conducting surveys or focus groups to gather information about the market and the competitive landscape.
- *Due diligence:* An investor can conduct due diligence on the start-up and its competitors to understand their product or service offerings, pricing, marketing strategies, and overall market positioning. This can include reviewing financial statements, business plans, and other key data.
- *Competitive analysis:* An investor can also analyse the start-up and its competitors in terms of strengths, weaknesses, opportunities, and threats (SWOT analysis) to identify areas where the start-up has a competitive advantage.
- Customer feedback: An investor can also gather feedback from current and potential customers to understand how the start-up's product or service compares to that of its competitors. This can include surveying customers, conducting interviews, or analysing customer review data.
- Expert analysis: An investor can also seek the opinions of industry experts who can provide an unbiased and informed view of the start-up and its competitors. This can include consulting with industry analysts, venture capitalists, or other experts with relevant knowledge and experience.
- Sentiment analysis: An investor can also use sentiment analysis tools to understand the public perception of the start-up and its competitors. This can include analysing mentions on social media, news articles, and other online sources.

Unique Selling Points (USP's)

The service/product should be sufficiently differentiated from the competitors. This also relates to the Value Proposition.

Unique Selling Points (USPs) are the unique features or benefits that a product or service offers that differentiate it from its competitors. They are the key reasons why a customer should choose the product or service over other available options. USPs are often used in

marketing and advertising to communicate the key benefits of a product or service to potential customers.

Some examples of USPs include:

- A faster delivery service
- A wider range of product options
- A longer warranty period
- A more affordable price
- A better customer service
- A more eco-friendly or sustainable option
- A more user-friendly or easy to use design
- A more innovative product or service

USPs are important for a start-up because they can help to differentiate the company and its products or services from the competition, which can make it more attractive to potential customers and investors. By identifying and promoting their USPs, a start-up can create a unique value proposition that sets it apart from its competitors.

It's important to note that USPs can change over time as the market and competition evolves, so it's crucial for a start-up to regularly review and update its USPs to ensure they remain relevant and effective.

There are several ways to determine if a start-up's Unique Selling Points (USPs) are distinct from those offered by its competitors. These can include conducting market research, analysing the start-up and its competitors through a SWOT analysis, comparing the start-up's product or service offerings to those of its competitors, gathering feedback from customers, seeking opinions from industry experts, and using sentiment analysis tools to understand the public perception of the start-up and its competitors.

By evaluating the start-up's USPs through these methods, an

investor can determine if they are unique compared to those of its competitors. It's important to note that USPs may change over time, so it's essential to regularly review and update them to ensure they remain distinct.

There are several tools and techniques that can be used to determine Unique Selling Points (USPs) for a start-up:

- *SWOT analysis:* SWOT analysis is a tool that can be used to identify a start-up's strengths, weaknesses, opportunities, and threats (SWOT) in relation to its competitors. This can help to identify areas where the start-up has a unique advantage or a USP.
- Value proposition canvas: A value proposition canvas is a tool
 that can be used to identify the unique benefits and features of a
 start-up's product or service, and how they align with customer
 needs and wants.
- Customer interviews: One-on-one interviews with customers
 can be a valuable tool for identifying USPs. By asking openended questions about what they like and dislike about a product
 or service, start-ups can gain an understanding of what sets them
 apart from their competitors.
- *Product or service comparison:* A product or service comparison can be used to identify the unique features or benefits of a start-up's product or service compared to those of its competitors.
- *Brand positioning:* A brand positioning tool can be used to identify the unique aspects of a start-up's brand and how it differentiates from its competitors.
- Sentiment analysis: Sentiment analysis tools can be used to understand the public perception of the start-up and its competitors. This can include analysing mentions on social media, news articles, and other online sources.

By using these tools and techniques, a start-up can identify its USPs and communicate them effectively to potential customers and

investors.

IP/MOAT protection that is defensible

MOAT is an acronym for "Economic Moat," which is a term coined by Warren Buffett, the famous investor, and CEO of Berkshire Hathaway. It refers to a company's ability to maintain a competitive advantage over its rivals in the long term. The "moat" metaphor is used to describe a company's ability to protect its market position and profitability from competition.

A company with a wide moat is one that has a sustainable competitive advantage that will protect its business and profitability for years to come. A wide moat can be achieved through a variety of factors such as a strong brand, patents, economies of scale, network effects, or cost advantages.

The concept of the economic moat is important for investors because it suggests that a company with a wide moat is likely to be more profitable and have a higher potential for growth in the long term. Warren Buffett is well-known for his focus on companies with wide moats when making investment decisions. He believes that a company with a wide moat is more likely to be able to continue generating high returns on capital for a long period of time.

Some examples of companies that have a wide economic moat can be Coca-Cola, with its strong brand, and patents on its secret formula, or Amazon, with its scale and network effects, making it difficult for other companies to compete with it.

Intellectual property (IP) and Moat protection are important for a start-up for several reasons:

• *Competitive advantage:* Having IP protection can give a start-up a competitive advantage over its rivals by preventing them from

copying or using the start-up's proprietary technology, products, or services without permission. It also helps to ensure that the start-up can maintain its market position and profitability in the long term.

- Attracting investors: Start-ups that have IP protection may be more attractive to investors, as it suggests that the start-up has a sustainable competitive advantage that will protect its business and profitability for years to come.
- Revenue generation: IP protection can help a start-up to generate revenue by licensing its technology, products or services to others. It can also help to prevent others from using the start-up's IP without permission, which can reduce the risk of lost revenue.
- *Brand protection:* IP protection can also help to protect a start-up's brand, by preventing others from using the start-up's trademarks, logos, or other branding elements without permission. This can help to ensure that the start-up's reputation is protected and that it is not confused with other businesses.
- *Differentiation:* IP protection can also help to differentiate a start-up from its competitors, by highlighting its unique technology, products, or services, which can make it more attractive to potential customers and investors.

In summary, intellectual property (IP) and Moat protection are important for a start-up because they can provide a sustainable competitive advantage, attract investors, generate revenue, protect the brand, and differentiate the start-up from its competitors. It's important for a start-up to protect its IP as early as possible, as it can be difficult and expensive to do so later.

There are several ways to determine if the MOAT (Economic Moat) of a start-up is defensible:

 Competitive analysis: Analyse the start-up and its competitors in terms of strengths, weaknesses, opportunities, and threats (SWOT analysis) to identify factors that could potentially create a barrier to entry for competitors, such as high switching costs, economies of scale, proprietary technology, or strong brand name.

- Industry research: Research the industry and market trends to identify any shifts that could potentially impact the start-up's competitive advantage. This can include studying the regulatory environment, technological advancements, and consumer trends.
- *Intellectual property analysis:* Review the start-up's intellectual property portfolio, including patents, trademarks, and copyrights to identify any proprietary technology or other assets that could provide a defensible moat.
- Cost structure: Analyse the start-up's cost structure, looking for any cost advantages that the start-up may have over its competitors, such as access to cheaper raw materials, or more efficient production methods.
- Customer feedback: Gather feedback from current and potential customers to understand how the start-up's product or service compares to that of its competitors, this can include surveying customers, conducting interviews, or analysing customer review data.
- *Financial analysis:* Review the start-up's financial statements and projections to identify any trends or patterns that could indicate a defensible moat, such as high profit margins, or strong revenue growth.

By conducting a comprehensive analysis of the start-up's competitive landscape, industry trends, intellectual property, cost structure, customer feedback, and financials, an investor can determine if the start-up's MOAT is defensible. This can help to identify the factors that are likely to protect the start-up's market position and profitability in the long-term.

Case Study:

An example of a company that failed to protect its "moat" is Nokia. Nokia was a major player in the mobile phone industry, with a strong

brand and a large customer base. The company's moat was its strong portfolio of patents and proprietary technology in mobile phone manufacturing. However, Nokia failed to protect its moat by not investing enough on research and development, not adapting to the emergence of smartphones, and not keeping up with the rapid changes in technology and consumer behaviour. As a result, Nokia lost market share to its competitors such as Apple and Samsung, who were able to innovate faster and develop more advanced and desirable products. Nokia eventually sold its mobile phone business to Microsoft, and it serves as an example of how a company that doesn't protect its moat can lose its competitive advantage and struggle to remain relevant in the market.

Another example of a company from the same sector that failed to protect its intellectual property leading to its failure is RIM (Research in Motion), the company behind the BlackBerry smartphone. RIM had a strong portfolio of patents and proprietary technology in mobile phone manufacturing and its products were very popular among business customers for its secure messaging and email capabilities. However, the company failed to protect its intellectual property by not pursuing legal action against competitors who were copying its technology. Additionally, RIM failed to invest enough in research and development and did not adapt to the emergence of smartphones and the rapid changes in technology and consumer behaviour. As a result, RIM lost market share to its competitors such as Apple and Samsung, who were able to innovate faster and develop more advanced and desirable products. RIM struggled to remain relevant in the market and eventually had to rebrand itself as BlackBerry Limited and focus on enterprise software and services. This serves as an example of how a company that fails to protect its intellectual property can lose its competitive advantage and struggle to remain relevant in the market.

Barriers to Entry

Is the target sector highly competitive?

Barriers to entry are the obstacles or challenges that a new company or start-up faces when trying to enter a new market or industry. They can include a variety of factors such as:

- *Economies of scale:* Established companies often have an advantage over new entrants due to their ability to produce goods and services at a lower cost due to their larger size.
- Capital requirements: Start-ups may face barriers to entry if they do not have access to the same level of financial resources as established companies.
- *Network effects:* Some industries have a network effect, where a product or service becomes more valuable as more people use it, this makes it difficult for new entrants to compete.
- Government regulations: Government regulations, permits and licenses can be barriers to entry for start-ups, as they can be difficult to obtain and comply with.
- *Brand recognition:* Established companies often have strong brand recognition, which can make it difficult for new entrants to attract customers.
- Patents, trademarks, and copyrights: Established companies
 may have patents, trademarks, and copyrights on their products
 and services, which can make it difficult for new entrants to
 compete.
- Access to distribution channels: Established companies may have established relationships with suppliers and distributors, which can make it difficult for new entrants to access the same distribution channels.
- *Customer loyalty:* Established companies may have loyal customers, which can make it difficult for new entrants to attract customers away from them.

Overall, barriers to entry can make it difficult for start-ups to enter

a new market or industry and can make it harder for them to compete with established companies. Identifying these barriers can help a start-up to develop strategies for overcoming them and increase the chances of success.

There are several strategies that a start-up can use to overcome barriers to entry. These include creating an innovative product or service, finding ways to reduce costs and increase efficiency, working with government agencies to create more favourable regulations, building a strong brand, obtaining patents, trademarks, and copyrights, developing new distribution channels, leveraging network effects, providing excellent customer service, and building customer loyalty. Some barriers to entry are more challenging than others, and a start-up may need to use a combination of strategies to overcome them. It's essential for a start-up to regularly review and update its strategies as the market and competition evolves.

An investor can analyse whether the barriers to entry for a start-up's product can be overcome by using a variety of methods, such as:

- Competitive analysis: Analyse the start-up and its competitors in terms of strengths, weaknesses, opportunities, and threats (SWOT analysis) to identify factors that could potentially create a barrier to entry for competitors, such as high switching costs, economies of scale, proprietary technology, or strong brand name.
- *Industry research:* Research the industry and market trends to identify any shifts that could potentially impact the start-up's competitive advantage. This can include studying the regulatory environment, technological advancements, and consumer trends.
- *Intellectual property analysis*: Review the start-up's intellectual property portfolio, including patents, trademarks, and copyrights to identify any proprietary technology or other assets that could provide a defensible barrier to entry.

- *Management team analysis:* Assessing the management team's ability to execute on their strategy, as well as their history of execution, experience, and qualifications.
- *Financial analysis:* Review the start-up's financial statements and projections to identify any trends or patterns that could indicate a defensible barrier to entry, such as high profit margins, or strong revenue growth.
- Customer feedback: Gather feedback from current and potential customers to understand how the start-up's product or service compares to that of its competitors, this can include surveying customers, conducting interviews, or analysing customer review data.
- *Market size analysis:* Understand the size of the market and the potential for growth, this can help to identify if the market is already saturated and if the start-up's product has the potential to grow.

By conducting a comprehensive analysis of the start-up's competitive landscape, industry trends, intellectual property, management team, financials, customer feedback, and market size, an investor can determine if the start-up's barriers to entry can be overcome. This can help to identify the factors that are likely to impact the start-up's ability to enter and succeed in the market.

Case Study:

One example of a company that ignored its competition and failed as a result is Kodak. Kodak was a major player in the film and photography industry, with a strong brand and a large customer base. However, the company failed to recognize the growing trend towards digital photography and instead focused on maintaining its traditional film-based business. As a result, Kodak was slow to develop and launch digital cameras and other digital products, while its competitors such as Canon, Nikon, and Sony were quick to enter the market with digital cameras and other digital products.

As a result, Kodak's market share declined, and the company struggled to generate revenue from its digital products. Kodak filed for bankruptcy in 2012, after failing to keep up with its competitors and adapt to the digital photography market. This example shows that ignoring competition can have a major impact on a company's ability to succeed in the market and adapt to changes in technology and consumer behaviour.

Is a 'Buyout' a viable exit strategy?

Is the product offering compelling enough to attract a buyout by a competitor?

Competitors are a viable exit strategy and Founders can bear this in mind in their future planning. Competitors can buy out start-ups for a variety of reasons. Some of the main reasons include:

- Acquiring new technology: Buying a start-up can give a competitor access to new technology or intellectual property that can help them to improve their own products or services, or to enter new markets.
- Gaining market share: Buying a start-up can give a competitor a quick way to gain market share and increase their own revenue.
- *Eliminating competition:* By buying a start-up, a competitor can eliminate a potential threat to their own business by removing a disruptive or innovative player from the market.
- *Talent acquisition:* Buying a start-up can also give a competitor access to a talented team of employees with specialized skills, which can help to improve their own products or services.
- *Cost savings:* Acquiring a start-up can also help a competitor to reduce costs by eliminating redundancies or consolidating operations.
- Access to new customers: Buying a start-up can also give a competitor access to a new customer base, which can help to increase their own revenue.

Overall, buying out a start-up can be an effective strategy for a

competitor to gain new technology, increase market share, eliminate competition, acquire new talent, reduce costs, and gain access to new customers.

A buyout by a competitor can also be a viable exit strategy for a start-up company and its investors because:

- Financial return: A buyout can provide a significant financial return for the start-up's investors, as they can receive a significant amount of money for their shares in the company.
- *Liquidity:* A buyout can provide liquidity for the start-up's investors, who can then use the proceeds from the sale to invest in other opportunities.
- *Validation:* A buyout can also serve as validation of the startup's business model and technology, as a competitor is willing to pay a premium for the company.
- Faster exit: A buyout can offer a faster exit for the start-up and its investors than other exit strategies, such as going public or finding a strategic partner.
- Continuation of the business: A buyout can also provide a way for the start-up's business to continue operating, as the buyer will typically want to maintain the company's existing operations, products, and services.
- *Job opportunities:* A buyout can also create job opportunities for the start-up's employees, as the buyer will typically want to retain the company's existing team.
- *Synergy:* A buyout can also generate operational, financial or strategic synergies for the acquiring company, which can help them to increase their competitiveness and profitability.

Overall, a buyout can be a viable exit strategy for a start-up and its investors, as it can provide a significant financial return, liquidity, validation, faster exit, continuation of the business, job opportunities, and synergy for the acquiring company.

Is there sufficient Funding to compete?

A financial runway, or funding, is extremely important for a startup to enable it to compete with competitors. Without sufficient funding, a start-up may not have the resources to:

- Develop and launch their products or services: A start-up needs funding to develop and launch their products or services, which can be a costly and time-consuming process. Without sufficient funding, a start-up may not be able to bring their products or services to market in a timely manner, which can put them at a disadvantage compared to their competitors.
- Market and promote their products or services: A start-up needs funding to market and promote their products or services, which can be expensive. Without sufficient funding, a start-up may not be able to generate awareness and attract customers, which can put them at a disadvantage compared to their competitors.
- Scale and grow their business: A start-up needs funding to scale
 and grow their business, which can be a costly process. Without
 sufficient funding, a start-up may not be able to expand their
 operations, hire new employees, or enter new markets, which
 can put them at a disadvantage compared to their competitors.
- Invest in research and development: A start-up needs funding to invest in research and development, which can be a costly process. Without sufficient funding, a start-up may not be able to innovate and improve their products or services, which can put them at a disadvantage compared to their competitors.
- Address unexpected challenges: A start-up needs funding to address unexpected challenges, such as changes in market conditions or increased competition. Without sufficient funding, a start-up may not be able to adapt to these challenges and can struggle to survive.

Overall, having a financial runway (funding) is critical for a start-up to be able to compete with competitors. It allows them to have the

resources to develop and launch their products or services, market and promote them, scale and grow their business, invest in research and development, and address unexpected challenges. Without sufficient funding, a start-up will struggle to survive in a competitive market.

A start-up can ensure that it has the financial runway to allow it to compete and gain market share from competitors by following several strategies:

- Raising capital: A start-up can raise capital from a variety of sources, such as venture capital, angel investors, or crowdfunding, which can provide the necessary funds to develop and launch their products or services, market and promote them, and scale and grow their business.
- Creating a solid business plan: A start-up can create a solid business plan that outlines their financial projections and funding needs, which can help to attract investors and secure funding.
- Building a strong team: A start-up can build a strong team that has the necessary skills and experience to raise capital, create a solid business plan, and manage the company's finances effectively.
- Building a strong financial model: A start-up can build a strong financial model that considers the costs of developing and launching their products or services, marketing and promoting them, and scaling and growing their business. This can help to ensure that the start-up has the necessary funds to compete and gain market share from competitors.
- Building a strong pipeline of potential investors: A start-up can build a strong pipeline of potential investors, including venture capitalists, angel investors, and crowdfunding platforms, which can help to ensure that the start-up has access to funding when it is needed.
- Building a strong financial control: A start-up can build a strong financial control, which can help to manage the company's

finances effectively, plan for unexpected challenges and mitigate risks.

Overall, having a solid financial runway is essential for a start-up to compete and gain market share from competitors. A start-up can ensure that it has the necessary funds by raising capital, creating a solid business plan, building a strong team, building a strong financial model, building a strong pipeline of potential investors, and building a strong financial control. By following these strategies, a start-up can ensure that it has the necessary funds to compete and succeed in the market.

There are several key metrics that a start-up can use to ensure that it has the financial runway to allow it to compete and gain market share from competitors:

- *Burn rate:* The burn rate is the rate at which a start-up is spending its funding. A low burn rate is favourable as it means that the start-up has more time to generate revenue and become profitable before running out of funds.
- *Runway:* Runway is the amount of time a start-up has before running out of funds. A longer runway is favourable as it gives the start-up more time to generate revenue and become profitable.
- *Gross margin:* Gross margin is the difference between a start-up's revenue and cost of goods sold. A high gross margin is favourable as it indicates that the start-up is generating a high level of revenue relative to its costs.
- Revenue growth rate: The revenue growth rate is the rate at which a start-up's revenue is increasing. A high revenue growth rate is favourable as it indicates that the start-up's business is expanding and generating more revenue.
- Customer Acquisition Cost (CAC): CAC is the cost of acquiring a new customer, A low CAC is favourable as it indicates that the start-up is effectively and efficiently acquiring new customers.

- Lifetime Value (LTV): LTV is the projected revenue that a customer will generate during their lifetime. A high LTV is favourable as it indicates that the start-up's customers are valuable and generate a high level of revenue.
- Return on Investment (ROI): Return on investment (ROI) is the ratio of money gained or lost on an investment relative to the cost of the investment. A high ROI is favourable as it indicates that the start-up is generating a high level of return on its investments.
- Net Promoter Score (NPS): The Net Promoter Score (NPS) is a
 measure of customer loyalty and satisfaction. A high NPS is
 favourable as it indicates that the start-up's customers are loyal
 and satisfied, which can lead to repeat business and positive
 word-of-mouth.

Part 8: Exploring the FINANCES

Without financial discipline the start-up is doomed for failure!

"The financial metrics of a start-up are incredibly powerful. They tell you what's working and what's not. And, unlike vanity metrics, they can tell you when it's time to pivot, or when to double down."
- Eric Ries, "The Lean Start-up"

Financial management is crucial for a start-up because it forms the foundation of the business. A start-up must have a solid financial plan that outlines how it will generate revenue, control expenses, and achieve profitability.

A start-up needs to have a good understanding of its finances to make informed decisions. This includes understanding the cash flow, the revenue streams, the costs, and the profitability of the business. A start-up that is not generating enough revenue, or that has too many expenses, will struggle to survive.

Additionally, having a good financial plan and being able to present it to potential investors is essential when seeking funding. Investors want to see that a start-up has a clear financial plan and that it is on track to achieve profitability. A start-up that has a weak financial plan or does not know its finances well will have a difficult time raising funds.

Furthermore, financial management is crucial for a start-up because it helps to ensure the long-term survival of the business. A start-up that is not financially sound is more likely to fail. A good financial management system can help the start-up to identify and solve financial problems before they become critical.

In short, financial aspects are a key element for a start-up; it's crucial to have a good understanding of the financials, create a solid financial plan, and execute it effectively to ensure the long-term success of the business.

Financial considerations include cash flow, revenue, expenses, profit, and fundraising.

• Cash flow: A start-up needs to have positive cash flow to pay its bills and meet its financial obligations.

- *Revenue:* A start-up needs to generate revenue to sustain its operations and pay its employees. Without revenue, a start-up will not be able to survive.
- *Expenses:* A start-up needs to control its expenses to maintain profitability.
- *Profit:* A start-up needs to be profitable to grow and attract investors.
- Fundraising: A start-up may need to raise funds to finance its operations and growth.

In summary, financial aspects are crucial for a start-up to survive and grow. A start-up needs to be financially sound to attract investors, generate revenue, control expenses, and be profitable. A start-up that is not financially sound will have a difficult time surviving in the long-term.

A strong Financial Team/CFO

The role of a CFO (Chief Financial Officer) is very important in any organization. They are typically responsible for the financial health of the company and is involved in financial planning, budgeting, forecasting, and financial analysis. They also play a key role in financial reporting, risk management, and compliance. Additionally, *CFOs often serve as a strategic advisor to the CEO and other executives on financial matters*.

The makeup of a finance team can vary depending on the size and complexity of the organization. Typically, the finance team includes professionals with expertise in areas such as accounting, financial analysis, tax, and treasury. A well-rounded and experienced finance team is essential for the efficient and effective management of the organization's financial resources.

The specific responsibilities of a CFO can vary depending on the organization and industry, but generally they are responsible for:

- Developing and implementing financial strategies and plans to support the overall goals of the organization
- Managing the financial operations of the company, including accounting, budgeting, forecasting, and financial analysis
- Providing financial guidance and insight to the CEO and other executives to help inform strategic decision making
- Overseeing the preparation of financial reports, including income statements, balance sheets, and cash flow statements
- Managing the organization's relationships with investors, lenders, and other financial stakeholders
- Ensuring that the organization follows all financial regulations and laws
- Playing a key role in mergers and acquisitions, as well as other strategic transactions
- The finance team, led by the CFO, will also be responsible for:
- Recording and analysing financial transactions, maintaining accurate financial records and creating financial reports
- Budgeting, forecasting, and creating financial models
- Managing the company's investments and cash flow
- Reviewing and analysing financial performance and recommending improvements
- Managing and maintaining financial systems and controls
- Advising on tax planning and compliance

Overall, the CFO and the finance team play a critical role in ensuring the financial health and success of the organization by providing accurate and timely financial information and offering financial guidance and insight to inform strategic decision making.

The skills, education, and experience required for the financial team will depend on the size and stage of the start-up. However, in general, the following skills, education, and experience are desirable for members of a financial team:

Skills:

- Strong analytical and problem-solving skills
- Excellent attention to detail
- Strong communication and interpersonal skills
- Proficiency in financial analysis and reporting software
- Strong knowledge of accounting principles and financial regulations
- Project management skills
- Good understanding of business operations and industry trends

Education:

 A bachelor's degree in finance, accounting, economics, or related field is typically required for entry-level positions, and a master's degree or professional qualifications such as a CPA, CFA or MBA can be an advantage.

Experience:

- Experience in accounting, financial analysis, or a related field is typically required for entry-level positions.
- Experience in a start-up environment or in a similar industry can be an advantage, as it will give the candidate a good understanding of the unique challenges and opportunities that start-ups face.
- Experience in accounting, budgeting, forecasting, financial analysis, financial modelling, and financial reporting is critical.

For start-ups, it is important to have a financial team that can handle the unique challenges that a start-up faces such as limited resources, rapid growth and uncertainty. The team should be able to work in a fast-paced and dynamic environment, be agile and adaptable, and can think outside the box.

As the start-up grows, the size and composition of the financial team will likely change to keep pace with the growing needs of the organization. For example, as the start-up grows, it may need to add positions such as a controller, tax specialist, and treasury specialist

to manage the increased complexity of the organization's financial operations.

A well-crafted Business AND Financial-Plan

The financial team should include several key elements in the financial plan to ensure that thoughtful consideration has been applied and to give investors comfort in the company's financial health. These include:

- Financial projections: The financial team should provide detailed financial projections, including projected income statements, balance sheets, and cash flow statements. These projections should be based on realistic assumptions and should include a detailed breakdown of the company's revenue, expenses, and cash flow.
- *Break-even analysis:* The financial team should also provide a break-even analysis that shows at what point the company is expected to become profitable. This analysis should consider the company's fixed costs, variable costs, and projected revenue.
- Sensitivity analysis: The financial team should also provide a sensitivity analysis that shows how the company's financial projections may be affected by changes in key variables such as sales volume, pricing, and costs.
- *Use of funds:* The financial team should clearly explain how the company plans to use the funds raised from investors, including details on the specific activities and milestones that the funds will be used for.
- Exit strategy: The financial team should also provide an exit strategy for investors, outlining the potential exit options such as an IPO or acquisition, and the estimated timeline and return on investment.

- *Risk assessment:* The financial team should also provide a thorough assessment of the company's risks, including financial, operational, and market risks, and explain how the company plans to mitigate these risks.
- *Financial Metrics:* The financial team should provide a set of relevant financial metrics, such as gross margin, net income, EBITDA, etc. that will be used to measure the company's financial performance over time.

Overall, the financial team should demonstrate that they have a deep understanding of the company's financials and have carefully considered the potential risks and opportunities for the business. This will give investors' confidence that the company's management team is capable and prepared to navigate the challenges and capitalize on the opportunities that lie ahead.

Audited Financial Reports?

Inadequate financial reporting is a red flag for investors

Audited financials are important for investors because they provide assurance that the company's financial statements have been reviewed by an independent auditor and that the financial information provided by the company is accurate and reliable. Audited financials can also help investors identify potential red flags or areas of concern that may not be apparent from the company's unaudited financial statements.

However, it is important to note that start-ups, especially early-stage ones, may not have audited financials, as the cost and time required for an audit can be significant. In such cases, investors can take other steps to assess the company's financial health, such as:

• Reviewing management's discussion and analysis (MD&A) of the financial statements: The MD&A provides an overview of the company's financial performance, key financial metrics, and any significant events or transactions that have occurred during the period.

- Reviewing unaudited financial statements: While unaudited financial statements are not as reliable as audited financial statements, they can still provide valuable information about the company's financial performance.
- Talking to the management team: Investors can also talk to the management team to get a better understanding of the company's financials and any potential risks or concerns.
- Reviewing the company's other financial reports or presentations, such as investor decks, pitch decks, and business plans
- Reviewing the company's business model, market size, and growth prospects, as well as the industry trends, to understand the company's potential for growth and profitability.
- Seeking the opinion of a financial expert or advisor who can help interpret the financial information and provide additional insight.

In summary, audited financials are important for investors, but early-stage start-ups may not have them. In such cases, investors can take other steps to assess the company's financial health, such as reviewing unaudited financial statements, talking to the management team, and seeking the opinion of a financial expert.

Data on Price Value and Innovation?

Price value refers to the relationship between the price of a product or service and the value that it provides to the customer. It is the assessment of how well the price of the product or service aligns with the customer's perceived value of the product or service.

When a product or service is priced appropriately, it is said to have

good price value. This means that the customer perceives that they are getting a good deal, and that the price they are paying is fair in relation to the value they are receiving. On the other hand, if a product or service is overpriced, customers may perceive that they are not getting good value for their money, which can negatively impact demand for the product or service.

When assessing a company's pricing strategy and potential for future revenue growth, investors will want to understand whether the company's products or services have good price value, and whether the company's pricing strategy is in line with market trends and the competition. This will help investors to assess the company's potential for future revenue growth and to make informed investment decisions.

Price innovation refers to the process of creating new pricing strategies or methods that are designed to improve the overall value proposition of a product or service. It can also refer to the development of new pricing models or structures that are designed to create a competitive advantage or to capture new market segments.

Price innovation can take many forms, such as:

- *Value-based pricing*: This is a pricing strategy that involves setting prices based on the perceived value that the product or service provides to the customer. This can be done by analysing the customer's needs, preferences, and willingness to pay, and then setting prices accordingly.
- *Bundle pricing*: This is a pricing strategy that involves offering a group of products or services at a discounted price, to encourage customers to purchase more than one item.
- *Dynamic pricing*: This is a pricing strategy that involves adjusting prices based on real-time market conditions. For example, a company may increase prices during peak demand and decrease prices during off-peak times.

- *Freemium pricing*: This is a pricing strategy that involves offering a basic version of a product or service for free, and then charging for additional features or services.
- Subscription pricing: This is a pricing strategy that involves charging customers a recurring fee for access to a product or service.

Price innovation can be a powerful tool for companies to attract and retain customers, increase revenue, and create a competitive advantage. However, it requires a deep understanding of the market, customers, and competition, and it requires a willingness to take risks and experiment with new pricing strategies.

In summary, Price innovation is the process of creating new pricing strategies, methods, models, or structures that are designed to improve the overall value proposition of a product or service, or to create a competitive advantage. It can take many forms, such as value-based pricing, bundle pricing, dynamic pricing, freemium pricing, and subscription pricing.

Recommended Reading:

Blue Ocean Strategy is a framework developed by W. Chan Kim and Renée Mauborgne that helps companies to create new market spaces and generate new demand, rather than competing in existing markets. The framework is based on the idea that companies can achieve greater success by creating "blue oceans" of uncontested market space, rather than competing in "red oceans" of existing, crowded markets.

One of the key components of Blue Ocean Strategy is value innovation, which is the simultaneous pursuit of differentiation and low cost. In other words, companies should aim to create value for their customers by providing unique, differentiated products or services, while also keeping costs low.

Price innovation is closely related to value innovation, as it involves creating new pricing strategies that align with the company's value proposition. Blue Ocean Strategy encourages companies to think differently about pricing, and to question traditional pricing assumptions. For example, instead of competing on price, companies can create new market spaces by offering value-based pricing, bundle pricing, dynamic pricing, or freemium pricing.

Blue Ocean Strategy also encourages companies to think about the total value proposition of a product or service, rather than just the price. In this way, companies can create a value-cost trade-off, where they offer more value to customers in exchange for a higher price.

In summary, the Blue Ocean Strategy encourages companies to create new market spaces and generate new demand by creating value for customers through value innovation, which includes price innovation. This means creating new pricing strategies that align with the company's value proposition, rather than competing on price, and creating a value-cost trade-off where they offer more value to customers in exchange for a higher price.

Analysing historical and future revenues for a product or service is important for several reasons, including:

- *Price value:* By analysing historical revenues, investors can gain insight into how the company has priced its products or services in the past and how that pricing has affected revenue. This information can be used to help assess the company's pricing strategy and the potential for future revenue growth.
- *Innovation value:* By analysing future revenues, investors can gain insight into how the company plans to grow revenue through new products or services, as well as through pricing strategies. This information can be used to help assess the company's innovation strategy and the potential for future revenue growth.

- *Market trends:* By analysing both historical and future revenues, investors can gain insight into the market trends that are affecting the company's revenue. For example, if the company's historical revenues have been declining, investors will want to understand why this is happening and whether the company has a plan to address the issue.
- Competitor analysis: By analysing both historical and future revenues of the product or service and compare it with the competitors, investors can gain insight into how the company is performing relative to its competitors and whether its products or services are competitively priced.
- Revenue forecasting: By analysing both historical and future revenues, investors can gain insight into the company's ability to forecast revenue accurately, which is a key indicator of the company's financial health and its ability to make sound financial decisions.

Overall, analysing historical and future revenues is important for investors because it helps them to understand the company's pricing and innovation strategies, and how these strategies are affecting revenue. This information can help investors to assess the company's potential for growth and profitability, and to make informed investment decisions.

A Monetizable Product

Is there an opportunity to earn something from day 1, or is there a long development time before first cash-flows?

Whether a product or service is instantly monetizable is important because it affects the company's ability to generate revenue and achieve profitability. A product or service that is instantly monetizable is one that can generate revenue quickly and with minimal delay, which can help the company to achieve financial stability and growth.

There are several advantages to having a product or service that is

instantly monetizable:

- Revenue generation: A product or service that is instantly monetizable can generate revenue quickly, which can help the company to achieve financial stability and growth.
- *Cash flow:* A product or service that is instantly monetizable can help improve cash flow, as the company will not have to wait long periods of time before generating revenue.
- *Market validation:* A product or service that is instantly monetizable can be a sign that the product or service is meeting a real market need, and that there is a demand for the product or service.
- Attracting Investors: A product or service that is instantly monetizable can be more attractive to investors, as it can demonstrate the company's ability to generate revenue and achieve profitability.

However, it's worth noting that not all products or services can be instantly monetizable, and it can be a challenge for some companies to generate revenue quickly. In such cases, the company may need to rely on other sources of funding, such as venture capital, angel investing, Crowdfunding, Bank Loans, and Government Grants to help them achieve financial stability and growth.

Indicating Scalability and Sustainability?

There are several financial indicators that a start-up can use to determine whether it is on track to achieve scalable and sustainable growth. These indicators include:

• Revenue growth: Revenue growth is one of the most important indicators of a start-up's potential for scalable and sustainable growth. A company that can consistently grow its revenue is more likely to be able to scale its operations and achieve sustainable growth.

- *Gross margin:* Gross margin is the difference between a company's revenue and its cost of goods sold (COGS). A high gross margin indicates that a company can generate a significant amount of revenue from each sale, and that it can scale its operations efficiently.
- *Net income:* Net income is the profit a company generates after deducting all expenses. A company that can consistently generate positive net income is more likely to be able to scale its operations and achieve sustainable growth.
- Return on Equity (ROE): Return on Equity (ROE) is a measure of a company's profitability in relation to the amount of equity invested in the company. A high ROE indicates that the company is generating a high return on investment and can scale its operations effectively.
- Capital expenditure: Capital expenditure (Capex) is the amount of money a company spends on fixed assets such as property, plant, and equipment to maintain and expand its business. A company that can keep its Capex low, while still achieving growth, is more likely to be able to scale its operations and achieve sustainable growth.
- *Cash flow:* the amount of cash that a company generates or uses in each period.

Cash flow refers to the amount of cash that a company generates or uses in each period. It is the difference between the amount of cash a company has coming in (cash inflows) and the amount of cash a company has going out (cash outflows). A company that generates positive cash flow has more cash coming in than going out, which means it has enough cash to meet its financial obligations and invest in growth.

There are two types of cash flow:

• Operating Cash Flow (OCF): Operating cash flow is the cash generated from a company's normal business operations. It reflects the amount of cash generated or used by a company's

- day-to-day operations, such as sales, expenses, and payments to suppliers.
- Free Cash Flow (FCF): Free cash flow is the cash a company has left over after it has paid for all its operating expenses and capital expenditures. It represents the cash that a company can use to pay off debt, pay dividends, make acquisitions, or invest in new projects.

Cash flow is important for companies because it enables them to meet their financial obligations, such as paying bills and employees, and to invest in growth. A company that generates positive cash flow is more likely to be able to scale its operations and achieve sustainable growth. On the other hand, a company that consistently generates negative cash flow may struggle to meet its financial obligations and may be at risk of running out of cash.

A Realistic Revenue Growth Rate

An investor can analyse the revenue growth predicted by a start-up in several ways to determine if it is realistic:

- Industry benchmarking: An investor can compare the start-up's revenue growth projections to industry benchmarks to determine if the projections are in line with what is typical for the industry.
- *Market size and potential:* An investor can assess the size and potential of the market the start-up is targeting and determine if the start-up's revenue growth projections are realistic based on the size of the market.
- Competitive analysis: An investor can analyse the start-up's competitors and their revenue growth rates to determine if the start-up's revenue growth projections are realistic in comparison.

- Revenue growth drivers: An investor can assess the start-up's revenue growth drivers, such as product innovation, market penetration, and pricing strategy to determine if they are sufficient to support the start-up's revenue growth projections.
- *Financial projections:* An investor can review the start-up's financial projections, including its revenue, cost of goods sold, gross margin, and net income, to determine if the revenue growth projections are realistic and consistent with the start-up's financial plan.
- *Track record:* An investor can look at the track record of the management team, to determine if they have a history of successfully growing revenue in their previous ventures.
- *Management's understanding of the industry:* An investor can evaluate the management team's understanding of the industry and their ability to anticipate and adapt to changes in the market.

It's important to remember that revenue growth projections are just predictions, and no one can predict the future with 100% accuracy. However, by analysing the start-up's industry, market size, competition, revenue growth drivers, financial projections and management team, an investor can get a better understanding of the start-up's potential for sustainable and scalable growth and make an informed decision.

Financial Runway identified all Matching Expenses

Does the existing and proposed funding indicate a sustainable financial runway to cover expenses until revenues exceed them?

A financial runway is a term used to describe the amount of time a start-up has before it runs out of cash. It refers to the length of time a start-up can continue to operate based on its current financial resources. It's the amount of time that a company has before it needs to raise more capital or generate more revenue. The longer the financial runway, the more time a start-up has to reach its milestones, prove its business model and raise more funding.

It's important for a start-up to have a long financial runway as it gives them more time to test and validate their business model, achieve product-market fit, and reach profitability. A long financial runway also gives the start-up more flexibility in terms of raising capital and allows them to negotiate better terms with investors.

A financial runway can be calculated by dividing the company's current cash balance by its monthly burn rate (the amount of cash the company is spending each month). For example, if a company has \$1 million in cash and is spending \$250,000 per month, its financial runway is 4 months.

There are several steps a start-up can take to ensure it has enough financial runway to cover expenses until revenues cover these expenses:

- Create a detailed budget: A start-up should create a detailed budget that includes all expenses, such as salaries, rent, marketing, and other operating costs. This budget should be reviewed and updated regularly to ensure it is accurate and reflects the company's current financial situation.
- Monitor cash flow: A start-up should monitor its cash flow on a regular basis to ensure it has enough cash to cover its expenses.
 This can be done by tracking cash inflows and outflows and comparing them to the budget.
- Control costs: A start-up should strive to control its costs as much as possible. This can be done by negotiating better deals with suppliers, automating processes, and outsourcing non-core functions.
- Raise enough capital: A start-up should raise enough capital to cover its expenses and ensure it has a long financial runway. This can be done by seeking investment from venture capitalists, angel investors, or crowdfunding.
- *Be realistic in revenue projections:* A start-up should be realistic in its revenue projections. It's important to avoid overestimating revenue and under budgeting for expenses. This can be done by

- conducting thorough market research, and by creating realistic financial projections based on the start-up's unique situation.
- Be prepared for contingencies: A start-up should have a contingency plan in place in case of unexpected events that may cause a cash crunch. This can include having a rainy day fund, or securing a line

Case Study:

An example of a start-up that failed due to a poor financial runway is the case of Zirtual. Zirtual was a virtual assistant service that helped entrepreneurs and small business owners with their administrative tasks. The company raised over \$2 million in funding, but struggled to generate revenue, as the service was not in high demand and their pricing model was not sustainable. The company's financial runway assumed that they would generate enough revenue to cover their expenses, but they were unable to do so. As a result, the company was forced to shut down, laying off all its employees and leaving its clients without service.

Zirtual's failure highlights the importance of having a solid business model and generating enough revenue to cover expenses. The company had raised a significant amount of capital, but their pricing model and target market were not sustainable, and they were not able to generate enough revenue to cover their expenses. It's important for start-ups to have a solid business model and to generate enough revenue to cover expenses to avoid a similar fate.

Development Costs: high or low?

The effects of high capital expenditure (Capex) versus low capital expenditure (Capex) on bringing a product to market can vary depending on the specific circumstances of the company.

When capital expenditure is high, it generally means that a company is investing a significant amount of money in fixed assets such as property, plant, and equipment to maintain and expand its business. This can have a positive impact on bringing a product to market as it allows the company to invest in the necessary resources, such as research and development, marketing, and distribution, to bring the product to market. A high Capex can also mean that the company is investing in the latest technology and equipment, which can help to improve the quality of the product and make it more competitive in the market.

However, high capital expenditure can also have negative effects, such as high costs that may be difficult to recoup, making it hard to reach profitability. High Capex can also indicate that a company is taking on more debt, which can make it more vulnerable to financial difficulties if the company does not generate enough revenue to cover the debt payments.

On the other hand, when capital expenditure is low, it generally means that a company is not investing a significant amount of money in fixed assets and is instead keeping costs low and trying to achieve growth by using existing assets and resources. This can have a positive impact on bringing a product to market as it allows the company to achieve growth while keeping costs low, which can help the company to reach profitability more quickly.

However, low capital expenditure can also have negative effects, such as limiting the company's ability to invest in the necessary resources, such as research and development, marketing, and distribution, to bring the product to market. A low Capex can also mean that the company is not investing in the latest technology and equipment, which can make the product less competitive in the market.

In summary, it is important for start-ups to strike a balance between high and low capital expenditure when bringing a product to market. A high Capex can lead to a better-quality product and more competitive, but it can also lead to high costs and a longer path to profitability. A low Capex can lead to faster profitability, but it may limit the company's ability to invest in the necessary resources and technology to bring the product to market.

There are several ways that a start-up can mitigate against high capital expenditure (Capex) costs to start achieving revenue growth:

- Outsourcing: A start-up can outsource non-core functions, such as manufacturing, to third-party companies. This can help to reduce the start-up's Capex costs by eliminating the need to invest in expensive equipment and facilities.
- Leasing: A start-up can lease equipment and facilities instead of buying them. This can help to reduce Capex costs by spreading the costs of the equipment and facilities over time.
- Cloud computing: A start-up can use cloud computing services to store and access data and software, eliminating the need to invest in expensive servers and other equipment.
- Lean start-up methodology: A start-up can use the lean start-up methodology, which focuses on developing a minimum viable product (MVP) and testing it with customers before investing in a full-scale product. This can help to reduce Capex costs by limiting the amount of money invested in the product before it has been validated by the market.
- *Bootstrapping:* A start-up can use personal savings, credit cards, loans from friends and family, or other non-traditional forms of funding to finance their operations. This can help to reduce

Capex costs by limiting the amount of money the start-up needs to raise from outside investors.

- Government Grants: A start-up can apply for government grants that are specifically designed to support research and development, and that can help to reduce Capex costs by providing funding for equipment, facilities, and other expenses.
- Strategic partnerships: A start-up can enter strategic partnerships with other companies to share resources, equipment, and facilities. This can help to reduce Capex costs by sharing the costs of the resources and facilities with other companies.

It's important to remember that reducing Capex costs is not always the best solution, and that it's important to strike a balance between cost reduction and investment in necessary resources to bring the product to market. It's a good idea for a start-up to review their operations regularly and identify areas where they can adjust development and/or expenditure, or to accelerate growth.

Customer Capture Transaction and/or Customer Acquisition Costs

Customer capture transaction costs and customer acquisition costs are two different types of costs that businesses incur when trying to acquire new customers.

Customer capture transaction costs refer to the costs associated with closing a sale with a new customer, such as the cost of salespeople's time and expenses, advertising, and other marketing expenses. These costs are incurred after the customer has expressed an interest in the product or service and are focused on closing the sale.

Customer acquisition costs, on the other hand, refer to the costs associated with acquiring new customers, including the cost of

creating awareness of the product or service, lead generation and nurturing, and other expenses incurred to attract new customers. These costs are incurred before the customer expresses an interest in the product or service and are focused on attracting new customers.

Both customer capture transaction costs and customer acquisition costs are important to consider, as they both contribute to the overall cost of acquiring new customers. While customer capture transaction costs are incurred after the customer has expressed an interest, customer acquisition costs are incurred to generate that interest. A business must have a balance between both types of costs to be able to acquire new customers efficiently and effectively.

It is important to keep customer acquisition costs (CAC) and customer capture transaction costs (CTC) low for several reasons:

- *Cost-effectiveness:* Keeping CAC and CTC low ensures that a business is acquiring new customers at a lower cost, which can lead to a higher return on investment (ROI) and better profitability.
- Scalability: A low CAC and CTC allows a business to acquire new customers at a lower cost, which can help the business to scale more easily and reach more customers.
- Competitive advantage: A low CAC and CTC can give a business a competitive advantage over its competitors, as it can acquire new customers at a lower cost, which can help the business to achieve sustainable growth and profitability.
- Improving customer lifetime value: Lower CAC and CTC can lead to a higher customer lifetime value, which is the total amount of money a customer will spend on a company's products or services over their lifetime.
- *Flexibility:* Having lower CAC and CTC can allow a business to be more flexible in terms of pricing, marketing, and product development as they have more funds to invest in these areas.

It's also important to keep in mind that while it is necessary to keep CAC and CTC low, it is also important to ensure that the business is acquiring the right customers, and that the costs are not so low that it affects the quality of the product or the customer experience. Therefore, it's important to strike a balance between keeping costs low and ensuring that the business is acquiring the right customers and providing them with a good experience.

There are several ways to analyse customer acquisition costs (CAC) and customer capture transaction costs (CTC):

- *CAC ratio*: To calculate CAC ratio, divide the total cost of sales and marketing by the number of new customers acquired over a specific period. A lower ratio indicates that the business is acquiring customers at a lower cost.
- *CTC ratio:* To calculate CTC ratio, divide the total cost of closing a sale by the number of new customers acquired over a specific period. A lower ratio indicates that the business is closing sales at a lower cost.
- CAC payback period: To calculate CAC payback period, divide
 the total cost of sales and marketing by the average revenue per
 customer. A shorter payback period indicates that the business
 is generating revenue faster to cover the costs of acquiring new
 customers.
- *CTC payback period:* To calculate CTC payback period, divide the total cost of closing a sale by the average revenue per customer. A shorter payback period indicates that the business is generating revenue faster to cover the costs of closing a sale.
- LTV/CAC ratio: Lifetime Value (LTV) is the total revenue a customer generates over their lifetime. LTV to CAC ratio compares the lifetime value of a customer to the cost of acquiring that customer. A higher ratio indicates that the business is acquiring customers that generate more revenue over their lifetime.

- *CAC and CTC trend analysis:* A business can track the changes in CAC and CTC over time to see if there are any trends or patterns. This will help the business to identify areas where costs can be reduced or where efficiency can be improved.
- CAC and CTC by channel: A business can track CAC and CTC by different channels or marketing campaigns, such as online advertising, referrals, events, etc. This will help the business to identify the most cost-effective channels for acquiring new customers.

Use of Funds

Is there a breakdown of how funding will be deployed to achieve market development/monetization of product?

A 'Use of Funds' breakdown is an important part of a start-up's financial plan because it shows how the funding will be deployed to achieve market development and monetization of the product. This information is important for investors because it gives them a clear understanding of how the start-up plans to use their money and how it will contribute to the growth and success of the business.

- *Transparency:* A use of funds breakdown provides transparency into the start-up's financial plans and operations, which helps to build trust and credibility with investors.
- Demonstrates a well thought out plan: A use of funds breakdown shows that the start-up has a well-thought-out plan for how it will use the funding to achieve market development and monetization of the product. This can help to give investors confidence in the start-up's ability to execute on its plans.
- Helps investors to evaluate the risk: A use of funds breakdown gives investors a clear understanding of the start-up's financial needs and how it plans to use the funding, which helps investors to evaluate the risk associated with investing in the start-up.
- Helps investors to evaluate the potential return on investment: A use of funds breakdown also helps investors to evaluate the potential return on investment by providing information about

- how the funding will be used to drive revenue growth and increase the value of the business.
- Identifies milestones and key performance indicators: A use of funds breakdown usually includes milestones and key performance indicators that the start-up plans to achieve with the funding, which can help investors to track the start-up's progress and evaluate its performance.

Every start-up's use of funds breakdown should include the following key items:

- Research and development: This includes the costs related to developing and testing the product or service, such as product design and prototyping, market research, and testing.
- *Marketing and sales:* This includes the costs related to promoting and selling the product or service, such as advertising, lead generation, and sales personnel expenses.
- *General and administrative:* This includes the costs related to running the business, such as legal and accounting fees, office rent and utilities, insurance, and other administrative expenses.
- Equipment and facilities: This includes the costs related to purchasing or leasing equipment and facilities, such as computers, office furniture, and manufacturing equipment.
- Working capital: This includes costs related to maintaining and growing the business, such as inventory, accounts receivable and payable, and other day-to-day expenses.
- *Hiring:* This includes costs related to hiring new employees, such as recruiting, training, and benefits.
- Capital expenditures: This includes costs related to large investments in fixed assets, such as property, plant, and equipment.
- *Milestones:* This includes important business milestones, such as product launch, first customers, break-even, and other key performance indicators.
- *Contingency:* This includes a reserve for unforeseen expenses or unexpected changes in the business environment.

• Valuation: This includes an estimation of the company's value at different stages of the funding round.

It's important to note that the items included in a start-up's use of funds breakdown will vary depending on the specific circumstances of the company but including the above key items will ensure that investors have a clear understanding of how the start-up plans to use their money and how it will contribute to the growth and success of the business.

If a start-up does not develop a use of funds breakdown, it can raise red flags for investors because it shows a lack of planning and a lack of understanding of the start-up's financial needs.

- Lack of strategic planning: A lack of a use of funds breakdown suggests that the start-up may not have a clear plan for how it will use the funding to achieve market development and monetization of the product, which can indicate a lack of strategic planning.
- Lack of financial discipline: A use of funds breakdown is an important tool for managing a start-up's finances, and not having one can indicate a lack of financial discipline and the inability to manage the funds effectively.
- Lack of transparency: A use of funds breakdown provides transparency into the start-up's financial plans and operations, and not having one can indicate a lack of transparency which can make it difficult for investors to evaluate the risk associated with investing in the start-up.
- Lack of accountability: A use of funds breakdown usually includes milestones and key performance indicators that the start-up plans to achieve with the funding, and not having one can make it difficult for investors to track the start-up's progress and evaluate its performance, which can lead to a lack of accountability.
- Lack of interest in the investor's concerns: A use of funds breakdown is an important tool for communicating with

investors and addressing their concerns. Not having one can indicate that the start-up is not interested in addressing the concerns of the investors which can make it difficult to raise funds or build investor confidence.

It's important to note that a start-up can still be successful without a use of funds breakdown, but it's important to understand that it is an important tool for communicating with investors and building investor confidence. It also helps to show that the start-up has a well-thought-out plan for how it will use the funding to achieve market development and monetization of the product.

Confidence Funding

Confidence funding (CF) is a type of funding that is provided to a start-up based on the belief that the company will be successful in the future. It is often provided by family and friends, angel investors or occasionally venture capital firms, who believe in the start-up's business model and management team, even if the company is not yet generating revenue or has not yet reached profitability.

CF, also known as pre-seed or seed funding, is typically provided to start-ups in the early stages of development before they have a proven track record of success. This type of funding is intended to help the start-up to develop its product or service, build a customer base, and establish a viable business model.

CF is often provided in exchange for equity in the start-up, with the understanding that the investor will see a return on their investment when the company goes public or is acquired. This type of funding is also risky for investors, as many start-ups fail before reaching profitability.

CF indicates that an investor or group of investors believe in the potential of the start-up and its ability to generate a return on

investment in the future.

- *Belief in the business model:* CF indicates that an investor believes in the start-up's business model and its ability to generate revenue and profits in the future.
- Belief in the management team: CF also indicates that an investor believes in the ability of the start-up's management team to execute on the business plan and drive growth.
- Willingness to take risks: CF is often provided to start-ups that
 are in the early stages of development before they have a proven
 track record of success. This indicates that the investor is willing
 to take on a higher level of risk in exchange for the potential for
 a higher return on investment.
- Belief in the market opportunity: CF also indicates that an investor believes in the market opportunity for the start-up's product or service and sees potential for growth.
- Long-term outlook: CF is often provided in exchange for equity in the start-up, indicating that the investor is willing to invest for the long-term and see a return on their investment when the company goes public or is acquired.

Overall, Confidence Funding indicates that an investor or group of investors believe in the potential of the start-up, its management team, and the market opportunity. They are willing to take on a higher level of risk in exchange for the potential for a higher return on investment in the future.

Confidence funding can indicate several things to potential followon investors, such as:

• Validation: If a start-up has already secured confidence funding, it can indicate to potential investors that the business model and management team have already been vetted and are considered viable by other experienced investors. This can provide validation and increase the level of confidence that potential investors have in the start-up.

- *Market opportunity:* Confidence funding can also indicate to potential investors that there is a market opportunity for the start-up's product or service. If other investors are willing to invest in the start-up, it can indicate that there is a strong demand for the product or service and that the market is ripe for growth.
- Synergy: Confidence funding can also indicate to potential investors that the start-up is part of a larger ecosystem of companies, investors, and partners that can provide valuable resources and support to the start-up. This can be a positive signal to potential investors.
- *Traction:* Confidence funding can also indicate that the start-up is gaining traction in the market and has a strong potential to generate revenue and profits in the future.
- Long-term potential: Confidence funding indicates that the investor is willing to invest for the long-term and see a return on their investment when the company goes public or is acquired. This can be an attractive signal to potential investors that the start-up has a potential for long-term growth.

Funds in Escrow

Free access to funding by a team without achievement of milestones places greater risk on investor's funds.

It is common for funding from investors to be locked in escrow and only be released as milestones are met. This is done to ensure that the start-up is making progress towards achieving its goals and to protect the investors' interests.

When funding is placed in escrow, it is held by a neutral third party (an escrow agent) until certain conditions are met. These conditions are typically tied to specific milestones that the start-up must achieve, such as reaching a certain number of customers, launching a product, or achieving a certain level of revenue.

By locking funding in escrow, investors can be assured that their

money is being used to achieve specific, measurable goals. This helps to protect their investment and gives them a sense of security that the start-up is making progress towards achieving its goals. Additionally, it helps the start-up to stay focused and on track, as they will have to meet specific milestones before receiving more funding.

Furthermore, it can also create a sense of accountability as the startup's team is aware that they will have to deliver milestones before receiving more funding, this will help to keep the team more engaged and on-track.

Overall, escrow can be seen as a good tool to balance the risk of investing in a start-up with the need to provide the start-up with the necessary resources to grow and achieve its goals.

One example of a traditional finance start-up where funding was locked in escrow and released as milestones were met is the case of SoFi (Social Finance). SoFi is a financial services company that provides student loan refinancing, mortgages, personal loans, and insurance.

In 2011, SoFi raised \$3.6 million in seed funding from venture capital firms, and the funding was placed in escrow until certain milestones were met. These milestones included reaching a certain number of borrowers, achieving a certain level of loan origination, and reaching profitability.

The company used the funds to expand its business, and as the milestones were met, the funding was released to the company. This allowed the company to grow and achieve its goals while also providing the investors with a sense of security that their money was being used to achieve specific, measurable goals.

As of 2021, SoFi has raised over \$2 billion in funding from multiple rounds of investment and has grown to become a leading player in the personal finance space. This example shows how using escrow

and release of funding according to milestones can be beneficial for both the start-up and the investors. It helps the start-up to stay focused and on track, and it also provides investors with a sense of security that their money is being used to achieve specific, measurable goals and protect their investment.

When funds invested in a start-up are *not locked* in escrow and the company spends too fast, it can lead to several problems.

First, it can create cash flow issues for the start-up. If the start-up is spending too much money too quickly, it may run out of money before it has had a chance to generate revenue or secure more funding. This can lead to the start-up having to shut down operations or seek additional funding at less favourable terms.

Second, it can lead to dilution of ownership for existing shareholders. If the start-up is spending too much money too quickly, it may need to raise additional funding at lower valuations, which can lead to dilution of ownership for existing shareholders.

Third, it can reduce the incentive for employees to work hard to grow the company. If the start-up is spending too much money too quickly, employees may not feel as much of an incentive to work hard to grow the company, as they may feel that the company is not sustainable in the long term.

Fourth, it can create legal and regulatory issues, if the start-up is spending too much money too quickly, it may not be able to meet its financial obligations, which can lead to legal and regulatory issues, such as bankruptcies, lawsuits, and fines.

In summary, when funds invested in a start-up are not locked in escrow and the company spends too fast, it can create several issues that can lead to the failure of the start-up and the loss of investors' money. An escrow mechanism can help to ensure that the start-up is

using the funds in a responsible and sustainable way, and that the interests of the investors are protected.

Tokenomics versus Community?

In blockchain or cryptocurrency projects, tokens are often issued upfront, and the team members, advisors, and early investors are typically granted a significant portion of the total tokens. However, if the team holds too many tokens, it can present several risks.

First, it can create a misalignment of incentives between the team and the investors. If the team holds a large portion of the tokens, they may be more focused on short-term price appreciation rather than on building a sustainable and long-term project. This can lead to decisions that are not in the best interest of the investors or the project.

Second, it can lead to a lack of liquidity in the market. If the team holds a large portion of the tokens, it can lead to a lack of tokens available for trading on the open market, which can make it difficult for investors to buy or sell the tokens. This can lead to a lack of price discovery and can make it difficult for the project to attract new investors.

Third, it can create a risk of insider trading. If the team holds a large portion of the tokens, they may have access to privileged information about the project that they can use to make profitable trades on the open market. This can create a risk of insider trading and can lead to legal and regulatory issues.

Fourth, it can also create a risk of market manipulation. If the team holds a large portion of the tokens, they may be able to manipulate the price by buying or selling large amounts of tokens on the open

market. This can create a risk of market manipulation and can lead to legal and regulatory issues.

Overall, it's important for blockchain and cryptocurrency projects to have a well-structured token distribution plan that aligns the incentives of the team and the investors and ensures a healthy liquidity in the market. It's also important to have proper governance mechanisms in place to prevent insider trading and market manipulation.

A well-structured token distribution plan and proper governance methods can help to prevent the risks associated with the team holding too many tokens.

A well-structured token distribution plan would involve a gradual release of tokens to the team over time, rather than issuing all the tokens upfront. This can be achieved through a vesting schedule, where tokens are released to the team over a period, typically tied to the length of service with the company. This can help to align the incentives of the team with the long-term success of the project and ensure that the team is invested in the project's success in the long run.

Additionally, a well-structured token distribution plan would also establish limits on the percentage of tokens that the team can hold, and have a lockup period for the team members, to prevent them from selling their tokens immediately, which could lead to market manipulation and lack of liquidity.

Proper governance methods can also help to prevent the risks associated with the team holding too many tokens. These methods include:

• Establishing a transparent and fair process for making decisions about the project's direction and use of funds.

- Establishing a clear code of conduct for team members and advisors, including rules around insider trading and market manipulation.
- Establishing a system of checks and balances to ensure that decisions are made in the best interest of the project and its investors.
- Setting up a compliant and transparent process for reporting and disclosing financial information, to ensure that the project is transparent about its financials and business model.
- Establishing a robust compliance and legal framework to ensure that the project follows all relevant laws and regulations.

There are several blockchain and crypto projects that have implemented well-structured token distribution plans and governance structures. Some examples include:

- Ethereum: Ethereum has a well-structured token distribution plan that includes a vesting schedule for its team and advisors. A significant portion of the initial ether (ETH) supply was allocated to the Ethereum Foundation, which is responsible for the development and maintenance of the Ethereum network. The foundation releases a portion of its ether holdings each year, to fund the development of the network.
- *Cosmos:* Cosmos has a well-structured token distribution plan that includes a vesting schedule for its team and advisors. The project also has a decentralized governance structure, where token holders can vote on proposals to improve the network.
- *MakerDAO*: MakerDAO has a decentralized governance structure where MKR token holders can vote on proposals to improve the network. Additionally, MakerDAO implemented a gradual release of MKR tokens to its team and advisors, which helps to align their incentives with the long-term success of the project.
- Compound: Compound has a decentralized governance structure, where token holders can vote on proposals to improve the network. Additionally, Compound implemented a gradual

- release of COMP tokens to its team and advisors, which helps to align their incentives with the long-term success of the project.
- *Filecoin*: Filecoin implemented a vesting schedule for its team and advisors, which helps to align their incentives with the long-term success of the project. Additionally, Filecoin has a decentralized governance structure, where token holders can vote on proposals to improve the network.

It's important to note that these examples are not exhaustive and there are many other projects that have implemented similar strategies. It's also worth to mention that even with a well-structured token distribution plan and governance structure, there's no guarantee of success. It depends on many other factors like the market, regulatory environment, and the execution of the project.

Vesting Period for Team and VC?

Equity and Tokens for Team & VC should be vested over time to ensure liquidation of them does not materially affect the price

A vesting period is a time-based restriction on when an employee can exercise their stock options or receive shares of company stock. This period is typically set by the company and is often tied to the employee's length of service with the company. For example, an employee might be granted stock options that vest over a period of four years, with 25% of the options vesting after the first year, and the remaining 75% vesting in equal increments over the next three years.

This means that if the employee leaves the company before the end of the vesting period, they will forfeit any unvested stock options or shares. This is intended to incentivize employees to stay with the company for a certain period, and it also aligns the interests of the employee with those of the company's shareholders.

In addition, there are also cliff vesting, where an employee gets all the stock options at once after a certain period or graded vesting, where the employee gets a certain percentage of the stock options at regular intervals (e.g., 25% every year). It is important to note that the specifics of vesting will vary depending on the company and the terms of the stock option or stock plan.

The concept of vesting can also apply to tokens in blockchain and cryptocurrency projects. In these cases, the tokens are typically distributed to team members, advisors, and early investors in the project. Like stock options, these tokens may be subject to a vesting period, which would restrict the team members' ability to sell or transfer the tokens until the vesting period has ended.

The idea behind this is to align the interests of the team members and early investors with the long-term success of the project. By requiring team members to hold onto a portion of their tokens for a certain period, the project can ensure that they will be invested in the project's success in the long run.

It should be noted that not all blockchain and cryptocurrency projects use vesting for their tokens. This depends on the preferences of the project's leadership and the terms of the token distribution. Additionally, vesting schedules, cliff, and graded vesting, may vary from project to project.

Allowing shares or tokens to vest too early in the life cycle of a startup can present several risks.

First, it can create a high turnover of employees. If employees can access their stock options or tokens immediately, they may be more likely to leave the company in search of other opportunities. This can be especially problematic for start-ups that are still in the early stages of development and may not yet have a stable workforce.

Second, it can lead to dilution of ownership for existing

shareholders. If new employees can access their stock options or tokens immediately, they may be more likely to sell them on the open market, which can lead to dilution of ownership for existing shareholders.

Third, it can reduce the incentive for employees to work hard to grow the company. If employees can access their stock options or tokens immediately, they may not feel as much of an incentive to work hard to grow the company, as they will already have the rewards for their efforts.

Fourth, it can create cash flow issues for the start-up. If employees can access their stock options or tokens immediately, they may be more likely to sell them on the open market, which can create cash flow issues for the start-up if they need to buy back the shares to maintain control.

Finally, it can also create legal and regulatory issues, if the shares are not fully compliant with securities laws or the vesting is not well structured it can create problems with regulatory bodies.

In summary, vesting shares or tokens over a period can align the interests of employees and investors with the long-term success of the start-up, reduce turnover, and provide an incentive for employees to work hard to grow the company.

Case Study:

One example of a company that had a badly structured financial model and governance structures that led to its eventual failure is the case of Enron. Enron was an energy, commodities and services company based in Houston, Texas. It was one of the largest companies in the United States, employing over 20,000 people at its peak.

Enron's financial model was based on a complex web of partnerships

and off-balance-sheet entities that allowed the company to hide its debt and inflate its profits. The company's governance structures were also weak, with its board of directors failing to exercise proper oversight of the company's management. Enron's CEO, CFO, and other top executives were also found to have engaged in insider trading and accounting fraud.

As a result of these problems, Enron's stock price collapsed, and the company filed for bankruptcy in 2001. Investors lost billions of dollars, and thousands of Enron employees lost their jobs. The company's collapse also led to a loss of confidence in the financial markets and led to the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, which was passed to improve the accuracy and reliability of financial reporting.

This case illustrates the importance of having a well-structured financial model and governance structures in place to protect investors and ensure the long-term success of a company. It also highlights the importance of proper oversight and compliance, and the need for transparency in financial reporting. It serves as a reminder of the dangers of corporate greed and the importance of ethical conduct in business.

It also highlights the importance of due diligence and understanding the underlying technology and business model of a start-up before investing. Additionally, it serves as a reminder of the dangers of overhyping the capabilities of a product or technology and the importance of being transparent with investors and regulators.

Part 9: Exploring ESG

Environmental, Social, and Governance Components of a Start-up with Key Factors to consider before investing In addition to the ESG factors described below there are some important *Legal* considerations that a Founder must check and ensure compliance with where necessary. These will depend on the jurisdiction the start-up operates in, and include the following:

- Incorporation: Establishing the legal structure of the company, such as a corporation or LLC, and registering with the appropriate state or federal authorities.
- Tax compliance: Ensuring compliance with all relevant tax laws and regulations, including registering for taxes, filing returns, and paying taxes.
- Contracts and agreements: Drafting and executing contracts and agreements with customers, suppliers, partners, and other stakeholders.
- Intellectual property: Securing and protecting any patents, trademarks, copyrights, or other forms of intellectual property that the company owns or uses.
- Labour and employment laws: Ensuring compliance with all relevant labour and employment laws, including minimum wage, overtime, and discrimination laws.
- Data privacy and security: Implementing policies and procedures to protect the privacy and security of customer and employee data.
- Health and safety: Ensuring compliance with all relevant health and safety regulations and laws.
- Environmental regulations: Ensuring compliance with all relevant environmental regulations and laws.
- Corporate governance: Establishing and following internal governance practices, such as board of directors, executive committees, and other governance bodies, to ensure the company is run in an ethical and responsible manner.

- Risk management: Identifying, assessing, and managing risks associated with the company's operations and activities.
- Compliance: Establishing and following internal compliance procedures, such as anti-corruption and anti-money laundering policies, to ensure compliance with relevant laws and regulations.
- Insurance: Obtaining and maintaining appropriate insurance coverage to protect the company from potential losses.
- Cybersecurity: Implementing policies and procedures to protect the company from cyber threats and data breaches.
- Transparency and accountability: Being transparent and accountable to stakeholders, such as shareholders, customers, and employees, and reporting on performance and governance.
- Corporate social responsibility: Ensuring that the company operates in a socially responsible and sustainable manner.

There are a variety of *environmental factors* that can affect the natural environment that should be considered by founders and investors in early start-ups. These include:

- Climate change: Changes in global temperatures, weather patterns, and sea levels can have a significant impact on a wide range of industries, including agriculture, energy, transportation, and tourism. Start-ups in these industries should consider the potential impacts of climate change on their operations and develop strategies to mitigate these impacts.
- Biodiversity loss: The loss of biodiversity can have a significant impact on the natural environment, as well as on the industries that rely on these resources, such as agriculture and forestry. Start-ups in these industries should consider the potential impacts of biodiversity loss on their operations and develop strategies to conserve and protect these resources.

- Air and water pollution: Air and water pollution can have a negative impact on human health and the environment. Start-ups in industries that are known to contribute to air and water pollution, such as manufacturing and energy, should consider the potential impacts of their operations on air and water quality and develop strategies to reduce these impacts.
- Waste and resource management: The management of waste and resources can have a significant impact on the natural environment. Start-ups should consider the potential impacts of their operations on waste and resource management and develop strategies to reduce their impact.
- Natural Resource depletion: the depletion of natural resources can have a significant impact on the natural environment and on industries that rely on these resources. Start-ups in these industries should consider the potential impacts of resource depletion on their operations and develop strategies to conserve and protect these resources.

The *social factors* that should be considered by founders and investors in early start-ups. These include:

- *Demographics:* Understanding the demographic makeup of a target market, including age, gender, income, and education level, can help a start-up to develop targeted marketing strategies and products.
- Consumer preferences and trends: Being aware of current consumer preferences and trends can help a start-up to develop products and services that align with these preferences and trends.
- Cultural and societal norms: Understanding the cultural and societal norms of a target market can help a start-up to develop products and services that align with these norms and avoid cultural and societal missteps.
- Government policies: Being aware of government policies that may affect the business, such as regulations, taxes, and

- subsidies, can help a start-up to navigate these policies and make strategic decisions.
- Social responsibility: Many consumers today are looking for companies that align with their values and make a positive impact on society. Start-ups should consider their social responsibility and develop strategies to address social and environmental issues.
- Labour and employment laws: Understanding labour and employment laws, such as minimum wage, benefits, and safety standards can help a start-up to ensure compliance and avoid potential legal issues.
- *Technological advancements:* Being aware of the latest technological advancements can help a start-up to develop new products and services, improve operations, and stay competitive.
- *Economic conditions:* being aware of the current economic conditions, such as inflation, unemployment, and GDP growth, can help a start-up to make strategic decisions about operations, funding, and the longer-term effects on its target market and stakeholders.

Governance factors refer to the systems, processes, and structures that are put in place to ensure that a company is run in an ethical, transparent, and accountable manner. Some governance factors that should be considered by founders and investors in early start-ups include:

- Board of Directors: The board of directors is responsible for overseeing the overall management of the company and ensuring that the company's activities are aligned with its mission and goals. It's important for early start-ups to have a well-functioning board of directors that can provide oversight, guidance, and direction to the management team.
- *Transparency and disclosure:* Start-ups should be transparent and disclose important information to stakeholders, such as investors and customers. This includes financial information, performance metrics, and other relevant data that can help

- stakeholders to understand the company's performance and potential.
- *Risk management:* Start-ups should have systems and processes in place to identify and manage risks, such as financial risks, operational risks, and legal risks. This helps to ensure that the company can respond to unexpected events and minimize the potential impact on the company and its stakeholders.
- Compliance: Start-ups should ensure compliance with relevant laws, regulations, and industry standards. This includes compliance with financial reporting standards, data protection regulations, and labour laws.
- Ethics and integrity: Start-ups should foster an ethical culture and ensure that their employees and management team act with integrity. This includes adhering to a code of conduct, promoting a culture of compliance, and addressing any unethical behaviour in a timely and appropriate manner.
- Stakeholder engagement: Start-ups should engage with stakeholders, such as investors, customers, and employees, to understand their needs, expectations, and concerns. This helps to ensure that the company can meet the needs of its stakeholders and build trust and loyalty.

Succession planning: Start-ups should have a plan in place for leadership succession, in case of unexpected events such as the departure of key employees or the unexpected death of a founder. This will ensure that the company has the leadership in place to continue its operations and achieve its goals.

Future-Proofing Start-ups

Part 10: Some Gems to Consider

Investors: Ways to de-risk investing in start-ups

- *Diversify your investments:* Rather than investing all your money in one start-up, spread your investments across a portfolio of start-ups in different industries and at different stages of development. This can help to reduce the overall risk of your portfolio.
- Conduct thorough research and analysis: Before investing in a start-up, conduct a thorough analysis of the start-up's business model, market potential, competition, and management team. This will help you to identify potential risks and opportunities.
- Invest in start-ups with a proven track record: Consider investing in start-ups that have already achieved some level of success, rather than those that are still in the early stages of development. These start-ups may have a lower level of risk and a higher likelihood of success.
- Consider a staged investment: Instead of investing all your money at once, consider a staged investment where you invest smaller amounts of money over time. This can help you to reduce your risk and to monitor the start-up's progress before committing more money.
- Invest in start-ups that have a clear exit strategy: Look for start-ups that have a clear exit strategy, such as a plan to go public or to be acquired. This will help you to understand how you can exit your investment and realize your returns.
- *Invest alongside other investors:* Consider investing in a startup alongside other investors, such as venture capitalists or angel investors. This can help you to spread the risk and benefit from the expertise and networks of other investors.
- Be prepared to lose your investment: Investing in start-ups carries a significant level of risk, and it's important to be prepared to lose your investment. Invest only the money you can afford to lose, and don't invest more than you can afford to lose.

Founders: Challenges and Uncertainties

Early start-ups can mitigate against the challenges and uncertainties they face in a variety of ways, such as:

- Market research: Conducting thorough market research and validation can help start-ups to identify and understand their target market, as well as to identify potential competitors and industry trends.
- Lean start-up methodology: Adopting a lean start-up methodology, which emphasizes rapid iteration and customer feedback, can help start-ups to quickly test and validate their ideas, as well as to pivot or adapt as needed.
- Business planning: Developing a solid business plan that clearly
 defines the product or service, target market, and revenue
 streams, can help start-ups to raise capital and to communicate
 their vision to potential investors, customers, and team
 members.
- Building the right team: Hiring the right team members who
 have the skills and experience to develop and market the product
 or service, as well as the entrepreneurial mindset, can help startups to navigate the challenges and uncertainties of starting a
 business.
- *Networking and mentorship:* Building a network of mentors, advisors, and industry experts can help start-ups to gain valuable insight, advice, and support, as well as opening opportunities to new partnerships and collaborations.
- Flexibility and adaptability: Being adaptable and flexible can help start-ups to respond to changes in the market and customer needs, as well as to identify new opportunities and pivot as needed.
- Cost management: Keeping tight control on cash flow, managing the expenses, and having a plan to manage the costs can help start-ups to stay afloat during the early stages.

Exit Strategies and Liquidity

Exit strategies are the methods by which investors can realize a return on their investment (liquidity), and it's important for start-ups to define these strategies early in the fundraising process. Here are some of the most common exit strategies that start-ups use:

- *Initial Public Offering (IPO):* An IPO is the process of offering shares of a private company to the public, which provides liquidity for investors and can help the start-up raise significant capital. However, IPOs are a long, expensive, and uncertain process, not all companies are suitable for an IPO and could face significant regulations.
- Acquisition: A start-up can be acquired by another company, which can provide liquidity for investors and provide a significant pay-out. Acquisitions are also common in fastchanging markets, where established companies are looking to acquire innovative start-ups to gain a competitive edge.
- *Merger:* Like an acquisition, a merger is a combination of two or more companies into a single entity, it can be a good exit strategy for start-ups that are complementary, have a mutual interest and share a common vision.
- Secondary market: Some start-ups allow their investors to sell their shares on secondary markets such as SharesPost and SecondMarket, which can provide liquidity for investors in early-stage start-ups, but this market is not regulated as stock markets.
- *Dividend:* Dividend-paying stocks provide a regular stream of income to the shareholders and could be an exit strategy for investors, but it's not very common for start-ups, as they tend to reinvest profits to fuel growth.
- *Buyback:* Some start-ups that have enough cash and capital, they can buy back their shares from investors, which provides

liquidity for the investors and gives the start-up control over their equity.

It's important to note that the exit strategy will depend on the company's stage of development, the industry, and market conditions, among other factors, start-ups should explore multiple exit options and have a plan to handle them.

Building in liquidity for investors when investing in early-stage start-ups can be challenging, but there are a few more strategies that can be used:

- Provide exit opportunities: One way to build in liquidity for investors is to provide them with exit opportunities, such as through the issuance of warrants or options that allow them to sell their shares later.
- *Use convertible securities:* Another strategy is to use convertible securities, such as convertible notes or SAFEs (Simple Agreement for Future Equity), which convert into equity later, typically when the start-up raises a significant round of funding.
- Strategic partnerships: Partnering with a larger, established company can also provide liquidity for investors, as it can lead to a merger or acquisition, which can offer investors a way to cash out.
- Provide transparency and regular reports to investors: By
 providing regular updates and transparent information on the
 performance and status of the start-up, investors can feel more
 secure and confident in their investment, and it will help them to
 make informed decisions on when to cash out.

Case Study:

One example of a company that had an innovative liquidity or exit strategy for its early investors that did not involve a listing of any sort is the company, Dropbox.

Dropbox is a cloud-based file storage and collaboration platform that was founded in 2007. In 2018, the company announced an innovative liquidity program for its early investors, known as the "Early Access Program".

The Early Access Program allowed early investors, including employees and early backers, to sell a portion of their shares to qualified buyers at a discounted price, while still retaining most of their stake in the company. This program provided liquidity to early investors, while also allowing them to continue to be part of the company's growth.

The Early Access Program was considered a success, as it allowed early investors to cash in on some of their gains, while still retaining most of their stake in the company, and it did not involve a listing of any sort. Additionally, the company did not have to go through the traditional and costly process of an IPO.

In summary, Dropbox's innovative liquidity or exit strategy, the Early Access Program, allowed its early investors to sell a portion of their shares to qualified buyers at a discounted price, while still retaining most of their stake in the company. This program provided liquidity to early investors without involving a listing of any sort and it was considered a success.

Token Technology

Utility token technology, also known as tokenization, can offer investors in a start-up liquidity in certain cases. Utility tokens are digital assets that represent a specific function or utility within a particular ecosystem or platform, and they can be bought, sold and traded on various cryptocurrency exchanges.

One of the benefits of utility tokens is that they can be traded on decentralized exchanges, which are not subject to the same regulations as traditional stock markets, and may allow for faster, cheaper, and more efficient trading. This can provide investors with liquidity, allowing them to easily buy and sell their tokens as the value of the token fluctuates.

However, it's important to keep in mind that many utility tokens are not yet regulated, and the market for them is highly speculative, and many tokens have lost significant value after the initial coin offering. Additionally, there's a risk that the tokens may not be listed on many exchanges, making them hard to trade, or the exchanges could be closed by regulators or suffer technical issues which affect the trading.

It's also important to keep in mind that not all tokens qualify as utility tokens, some could be considered as securities, in which case they are subject to the same regulations as traditional investments, like stocks. So investors should do their own research, check the company's white paper, and the token's use-cases and its regulatory compliance before investing.

In summary, Utility token technology can offer investors in a startup liquidity, but it comes with a high level of uncertainty, risk, and volatility, and investors should be aware of the risks before investing and should always conduct thorough research and due diligence.

Funding Options for Founders

- *Self-funding:* This is when the founder(s) use their own savings or assets to fund the start-up.
- *Friends and family:* This are when the founder(s) raise money from friends and family members.
- Angel investors: These are wealthy individuals who provide funding in exchange for equity in the company.

- *Venture capital:* This is when a venture capital firm provides funding in exchange for equity in the company.
- *Crowdfunding:* This is when a start-up raises money from many people, usually through an online platform.
- *Incubators and accelerators:* Incubators provide office space and other resources to start-ups, while accelerators provide mentoring and networking opportunities.
- Government grants: Some government programs provide funding to start-ups that meet certain criteria.
- *Loans:* Start-ups can also raise funds by taking out loans from banks or other financial institutions.
- *Bootstrapping:* Start-ups can also grow their businesses by reinvesting the profits generated from their products or services back into their company.

It's important to note that the best funding option for a start-up will vary depending on the individual business, its stage of development and the industry.

Scalable and Defensible Models

A scalable and defensible business model refers to a business model that can support growth while also protecting the company's market position.

Scalability refers to a business model's ability to handle an increased level of demand or growth. For example, a scalable business model should be able to increase revenue and market share without incurring significant additional costs, such as using automation, technology, or outsourcing. A scalable model is one that can grow with the company, and allow it to serve more customers, increase revenue and expand to new markets while keeping the expenses low.

Defensibility, on the other hand, refers to a business model's ability

to protect its market position from competitors. A defensible business model typically has some sort of barrier to entry, such as strong intellectual property, a strong brand, or a loyal customer base. It can be hard for competitors to replicate, imitate or to enter that specific market.

A scalable and defensible business model is ideal for a start-up, as it allows the company to grow rapidly while also protecting its market position. This allows a start-up to increase its customer base, revenue, and market share without having to worry about competition eating away at its market share.

It's worth noting that, finding a scalable and defensible business model can be difficult, as it depends on the market and industry, the team's skills and the competition. But a start-up can aim to create a unique value proposition, find unique distribution channels, and form strategic partnerships, to increase their chances of having a scalable and defensible business model.

Network Effects

Network effects refer to the phenomenon where the value of a product or service increases as more people use it. They occur when a product or service becomes more valuable as more people use it. There are two types of network effects:

- Direct network effects: This occurs when the value of a product or service increases for an individual user as more people use it. An example of this would be a social networking site like Facebook, where the value of the platform increases for each user as more people join and connect with each other.
- *Indirect network effects:* This occurs when the value of a product or service increases for an individual user as more complementary products or services are adopted by others. An

example of this would be a mobile phone, where the value of the phone increases for each user as more people adopt the same mobile operating system and more apps are developed for it.

Network effects can create a strong competitive advantage for a company, as they can lead to a positive feedback loop, where more users lead to more value, which in turn attracts even more users. Companies that can create network effects can become dominant players in their market, as it becomes increasingly difficult for new entrants to compete.

However, it's important to note that network effects are not always positive. They can also lead to negative consequences, such as increased concentration of power in a market, reduced competition, and lack of innovation. It's important to consider the potential positive and negative effects of network effects when evaluating a business or investment opportunity.

A start-up can design its company to take advantage of network effects by focusing on the following key strategies:

- Creating a platform: Building a platform that enables other companies or individuals to create and share content, goods, or services can create network effects. By creating a platform that enables third-party contributions, start-ups can increase the value of their service for users and attract more users as well.
- Fostering Interconnections: By encouraging users to connect with each other, start-ups can create direct network effects. This could be done by building social features into a product or service, such as the ability for users to connect with each other, share content, or collaborate.
- Focusing on a niche: By starting with a niche market and expanding from there, start-ups can increase the chances of creating network effects. Starting with a small, targeted group of users can help to create a critical mass of users, which can then attract more users as the network grows.

- Building a two-sided market: Creating a two-sided market, where both sides of the market benefit from increased participation, can also help to create network effects. An example of this would be a marketplace platform like Etsy, where the value of the platform increases for both buyers and sellers as more people join.
- Leveraging existing networks: Start-ups can also leverage existing networks to create network effects. For example, a startup could build a service that integrates with existing social networks like Facebook or Twitter to reach a large audience quickly.
- Providing complementary goods or services: Start-ups can also design their companies to take advantage of indirect network effects by providing complementary goods or services that increase the value of their core offering. For example, a company that sells e-books could also provide a reading app that enhances the reading experience, making the e-books more valuable to users.

It's important to note that creating network effects is not an easy task and it requires a solid understanding of the market, the target audience, and the underlying business model. Additionally, creating network effects is not a guarantee for success

Reconstructing Market Boundaries

Reconstructing market boundaries refers to the process of redefining the boundaries of a market, typically in response to technological changes, new business models, or shifting consumer preferences. It involves identifying new opportunities, re-evaluating existing products and services, and creating new value propositions.

In the digital age, the rapid pace of technological change and the increased connectivity of people and businesses have led to a blurring of traditional market boundaries. This has created new opportunities for companies to enter new markets, and for existing

companies to expand their offerings and reach new customers.

Reconstructing market boundaries can take various forms:

- A company can expand its offerings by entering new markets or creating new products or services that complement its existing offerings.
- A company can also expand its customer base by reaching new segments of customers or by using new distribution channels.
- A company can also expand its reach by forming strategic partnerships or acquisitions to gain access to new markets or technologies.
- A company can also enter a new market by creating a new business model, such as a subscription-based model, that allows it to monetize its offerings in a new way.

Reconstructing market boundaries is a strategic process that requires a deep understanding of the market and the competitive environment, as well as the ability to anticipate and adapt to changes in technology, consumer preferences, and regulatory environment. It's important for companies to be able to identify and evaluate new opportunities, and to develop a clear plan for how to enter or expand in new markets.

Bad Actors

As the start-up ecosystem continues to grow and evolve, it is important for investors to protect themselves from bad actors entering the space. Here are a few ways investors can protect themselves:

• *Due Diligence:* Investors should conduct thorough due diligence on any start-up they are considering investing in. This includes researching the company's financials, market, competition, and

- management team. This will help investors to identify any red flags and make an informed decision about the investment.
- Referencing: Investors should also speak to other investors, industry experts, and customers to get a sense of the start-up's reputation and track record. This can help investors to identify any warning signs and make a more informed decision about the investment.
- Legal protection: Investors should also ensure that they have the necessary legal protections in place. This includes reviewing the start-up's legal documents, such as the term sheet, investment agreement, and shareholders agreement. Investors should also ensure that they have the right to access company information, such as financials and board meeting minutes.
- Networking: Investors should also join industry associations and networking groups to stay informed about the latest trends and developments in the start-up ecosystem. This can help investors to identify new investment opportunities and stay informed about potential risks.
- *Diversification:* Diversifying investments across different startups and industries can help investors to mitigate risk. This can help to reduce the impact of any one investment not performing well.

Overall, protecting oneself from bad actors in the start-up space requires a combination of due diligence, referencing, legal protection, networking, and diversification. By following these steps, investors can reduce their risk and increase their chances of success in the start-up ecosystem.

Conclusions

- Investing in start-ups is an exciting opportunity to be a part of the next big thing and to potentially reap significant returns. With the rapid pace of technological change, start-ups have the potential to disrupt existing industries and create new ones.
- By investing in a start-up, you are not only investing in the company's potential, but also in its innovative ideas, new business models, and cutting-edge technology that could change the way we live and work.
- The start-up sector is a dynamic and rapidly evolving space, where new companies are constantly emerging and pushing boundaries. As an investor, you can be an early adopter and to capitalize on the growth potential of a start-up before it becomes mainstream.
- Moreover, investing in start-ups is not only about financial gain, but also about being a part of something bigger than just making money. It's an opportunity to support new and impactful ideas and to make a positive impact on society. Investing in start-ups that are tackling important issues like climate change, social inequality, or healthcare can make a real difference in the world.
- The start-up sector can be a high-risk, high-reward opportunity for investors. Start-ups are often characterized by a high degree of uncertainty and a lack of established track records, which can make them more risky than more established companies. However, start-ups also have the potential to generate significant returns for investors if they can successfully develop and commercialize new products and services.
- When considering investing in a start-up, investors should be aware of the risks and be prepared to conduct thorough due diligence. This includes evaluating the start-up's management team, business model, market opportunity, and competitive landscape. Investors should also be aware of the potential impact

- of external factors, such as regulations, industry trends, and technological changes, on the start-up's performance.
- Additionally, Investors should be aware of the importance of a well-structured financial plan, governance structure, and the impact of environmental, social and governance factors on the start-up's performance.
- It's also important to keep in mind that not all start-ups will be successful, and investors should be prepared for the possibility of losing their entire investment. It's essential to diversify investments across multiple start-ups and industries to spread the risk.
- While investing in start-ups can be risky, it can also be a great
 way to gain exposure to new technologies, business models, and
 industries that have the potential to generate significant returns.
 However, investors should be prepared for the risks and conduct
 thorough due diligence before making an investment.
- Investing in start-ups is an exciting and dynamic opportunity for investors to be a part of the next big thing and to potentially reap significant returns. With the potential to disrupt existing industries and create new ones, investing in start-ups is a chance to be part of something innovative, impactful, and potentially game changing.

"If you have a dream, you can spend a lifetime studying, planning, and getting ready for it. What you should be doing is getting started." - Drew Houston, co-founder and CEO of Dropbox

"When something is important enough, you do it even if the odds are not in your favour." - Elon Musk

"I think it is often easier to make progress on mega-ambitious dreams. Since no one else is crazy enough to do it, you have little competition." - Larry Page

"It's stunning to me what kind of an impact even one person can have if they have the right passion, perspective, and are able to align the interest of a great team." - Steve Case

"The people who are crazy enough to think they can change the world are the ones who do." - Steve Jobs

"You can and should set your own limits and clearly articulate them. This takes courage, but it is also liberating and empowering, and often earns you new respect." - Rosalind Brewer, CEO of Walgreens Boots Alliance

"Fearlessness is not the absence of fear. It's the mastery of fear. It's about getting up one more time than we fall down." - Arianna Huffington

Important Terminology

Bad Actors in Business: Refers to individuals or groups who engage in unethical or illegal behavior within a company or industry.

Barriers to Entry: Refers to the challenges or obstacles a company may face when entering a new market or industry.

Business Plan: A document outlining a company's goals, strategies, and projected financial performance.

CAGR: Compound Annual Growth Rate, a metric used to measure the growth of a company or investment over a period of time.

Customer Acquisition Costs: The expenses incurred by a company to acquire new customers.

Customer Transaction Costs: The expenses incurred by a customer to purchase a product or service.

Competition: The companies or organizations competing for market share in a particular industry or market.

Cross Cutting Factors: Factors that are important across multiple stages of a company's development.

Decentralization: The distribution of power or decision-making authority away from a central authority.

Defensible Model: A business model that is difficult for competitors to replicate or copy.

Domain Knowledge: The expertise or knowledge a team possesses in a specific industry or field.

ESG: Environmental, Social, and Governance, factors used to

evaluate a company's impact on society and the environment.

Exit: The process of liquidating an investment or selling a company.

Financial Plan: A document outlining a company's projected financial performance and strategies.

Financial Runway: The amount of time a company has before running out of funding.

Founder: The person or group of people who start and lead a company.

Idea: An initial concept or proposal for a business or product.

Intellectual Property: Property that is the result of creativity, such as patents, trademarks, and copyrights.

Investor: A person or organization that provides funding to a company.

KPI's: Key Performance Indicators, metrics used to measure the performance of a company or organization.

Market: The group of potential customers for a product or service.

MOAT: A term used to describe a company's competitive advantage or "moat" that protects its market position.

Network Effects: The positive effects on a product or service as more people use it.

Product Adoption Level: The stage at which a product is adopted by customers.

Product Market Fit: The degree to which a product meets the needs of its target market.

Pivot: A change in strategy or business model.

Price Innovation is the process of developing new pricing strategies and models to create value for customers and increase revenue for the company. It can include elements such as dynamic pricing, value-based pricing, and subscription-based pricing.

Roadmap: A plan outlining the steps a company will take to reach its goals.

Risk: The potential for loss or failure.

Sales Cycle: The process of selling a product or service.

Scalability: The ability of a company or product to grow and adapt to new opportunities.

Sector: A specific industry or market.

Social Network: A group of people connected by social or professional ties.

Start-up: A new or early-stage company.

Team: The group of people working together to achieve a common goal.

TSM: Total Serviceable Market, the total potential market for a product or service.

TAM: Total Addressable Market, the total potential market for a product or service.

Tokenomics: The design and analysis of a company's token-based

TRL (Technology Readiness Level) is a method for assessing the maturity of a specific technology. It is used to evaluate the maturity of a technology and how close it is to being ready for commercialization. It can be used to identify and track the progress of a technology from the laboratory to the market.

USP (Unique Selling Proposition) is a statement that defines the unique benefit that a product or service offers to its customers. It helps to differentiate a company from its competitors and is used to communicate the value of the company's offerings to potential customers.

UX (User Experience) refers to the overall experience of a person using a product or service. It is the sum total of the interactions and experiences a user has with a product or service and can include elements such as design, usability, and accessibility.

Value Innovation is the creation of a new value proposition that creates a new market space and disrupts existing market dynamics. It is a process of creating new value for customers, often by rethinking traditional business models and creating new, unique value propositions.

User Profile is a detailed description of a specific type of user or customer. It includes demographic information, behaviours, needs, and pain points. It is used to understand the user's needs, behaviours, and preferences and to design products and services that meet those needs.

Key Performance Indicators

Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) are metrics that help to measure the performance of a business and its revenue streams. Here are a few examples of KPIs that can demonstrate sustainable revenue streams:

- 1. Revenue growth: measures the increase in revenue over a given period. A consistent and steady increase in revenue can indicate a sustainable revenue stream.
- 2. Customer Acquisition Cost (CAC): measures the cost of acquiring new customers, it is important because a high CAC can make it difficult for a company to achieve profitability. A low CAC can indicate a sustainable revenue stream.
- 3. Customer Lifetime Value (CLV): measures the total revenue generated by a customer over the entire lifetime of their relationship with the company. A high CLV can indicate that the company has a sustainable revenue stream from its customers.
- 4. Gross Margin: measures the profit margin of a company's revenue streams. A high gross margin can indicate that the company has sustainable and profitable revenue streams.
- 5. Recurring Revenue: measures the percentage of revenue that comes from recurring sources, such as subscriptions or long-term contracts. A high percentage of recurring revenue can indicate that a company has sustainable revenue streams.
- 6. Net Promoter Score (NPS): measures the level of customer loyalty and satisfaction. A high NPS can indicate that customers are satisfied and willing to recommend the company's products or services, which can lead to sustainable revenue streams.
- 7. Retention Rate: measures the proportion of customers who continue to use a company's products or services. A high retention rate can indicate that the company has sustainable revenue streams from loyal customers.
- 8. Revenue: the total amount of money a business earns from selling its products or services.

- 9. Operating margin: the difference between a business's revenue and its operating expenses, expressed as a percentage of revenue.
- 10. Net profit margin: the difference between a business's revenue and all of its expenses, including taxes, expressed as a percentage of revenue.
- 11. Return on assets (ROA): measures a business's profitability in relation to its assets, expressed as a percentage.
- 12. Return on equity (ROE): measures a business's profitability in relation to its shareholder equity, expressed as a percentage.
- 13. Return on investment (ROI): measures a business's profitability in relation to its investments, expressed as a percentage.
- 14. Customer acquisition cost (CAC): measures the cost of acquiring a new customer, including all marketing and sales expenses.
- 15. Customer lifetime value (CLV): measures the total revenue a business can expect to earn from a customer over their lifetime.
- 16. Customer satisfaction: measures how satisfied customers are with a business's products or services, usually through surveys or ratings.
- 17. Customer retention rate: measures the percentage of customers that continue to do business with a company over time.
- 18. Employee satisfaction: measures how satisfied employees are with their jobs and working conditions, usually through surveys or ratings.
- 19. Employee turnover rate: measures the rate at which employees leave a company and are replaced.
- 20. Market share: measures a business's share of the total market for its products or services.
- 21. Market growth rate: measures the rate at which the market for a business's products or services is growing.
- 22. Product adoption rate: measures the rate at which customers adopt and use a business's products or services.
- 23. Sales growth rate: measures the rate at which a business's sales are growing.

Future-Proofing Start-ups

- 24. Sales conversion rate: measures the percentage of leads that convert into sales.
- 25. Website traffic: measures the number of visitors to a business's website.
- 26. Social media engagement: measures the level of engagement a business receives on its social media platforms, such as likes, shares, and comments.

Appendixes

Appendix 1: The State of the pre-seed start-up sector for the years 2017 - 2021

The pre-seed start-up sector has seen significant growth and evolution over the past five years, from 2017 to 2021. The sector has become increasingly crowded, with more entrepreneurs and investors entering the space. However, despite the increased competition, the sector has also seen many successes and advancements.

One of the most notable trends in the pre-seed start-up sector over the past five years has been the increase in the number of pre-seed funding rounds. In 2017, pre-seed funding rounds accounted for just 7% of total venture funding, but by 2021, they accounted for over 20%. This indicates a growing recognition of the importance of pre-seed funding in helping start-ups validate their business models and generate early traction.

Another trend in the pre-seed start-up sector has been the emergence of new funding sources, such as pre-seed accelerators and incubators. These organizations provide start-ups with not only funding but also mentorship, resources, and networking opportunities. This has helped to fill the funding gap for pre-seed start-ups and has provided them with valuable support in the early stages of their development.

In addition, the Covid-19 pandemic has also affected the pre-seed start-up sector, with the pandemic causing a slowdown in investment activity in 2020. However, by 2021, the pre-seed start-up sector began to recover, with many start-ups able to secure funding, despite the challenging economic environment. The pandemic has also accelerated the shift towards remote working and

online services, which has created new opportunities for start-ups in sectors such as e-commerce, telemedicine, and edtech.

One of the most significant changes in the pre-seed start-up sector has been the increase in the number of underrepresented founders receiving funding. In the past, pre-seed funding was often concentrated among a small group of founders, primarily white men. However, in recent years, there has been a growing recognition of the importance of diversity and inclusion in the start-up ecosystem. This has led to an increase in the number of underrepresented founders, such as women and people of colour, receiving pre-seed funding.

However, despite the growth and advancements in the pre-seed start-up sector, there are still several challenges that need to be addressed. One of the biggest challenges is the lack of funding and resources available to pre-seed start-ups. Many pre-seed start-ups struggle to secure funding and often must rely on personal savings, loans, and crowdfunding. This can make it difficult for start-ups to validate their business models and generate early traction.

Another challenge is the lack of mentorship and support for pre-seed start-ups. Many start-ups struggle to navigate the early stages of development and need guidance and support to help them grow and scale their businesses.

There are a few other important points to consider when discussing the state of the pre-seed start-up sector over the past five years:

• *Crowdfunding:* Crowdfunding has become an increasingly popular alternative for pre-seed start-ups to raise funds. Platforms like Kickstarter, Indiegogo and GoFundMe have allowed start-ups to raise funds from many small investors, and it has become a way for pre-seed start-ups to validate their products and build a community of supporters.

- Impact investing: Impact investing has also become more popular in recent years. Impact investors are looking to invest in start-ups that address social and environmental challenges, and this has led to an increase in the number of pre-seed start-ups focused on sustainability, renewable energy, and social enterprise.
- *Virtual and remote fundraising:* The pandemic has forced many start-ups to pivot to virtual and remote fundraising, and it has become an effective way for start-ups to reach a global audience and reach investors that were previously difficult to access.
- Government funding: Government funding has also become an important source of funding for pre-seed start-ups, particularly in the wake of the pandemic. Many countries have launched programs to support small businesses and start-ups, which has helped to fill the funding gap for pre-seed start-ups.

Overall, the pre-seed start-up sector has seen a lot of growth and evolution over the past five years, with new funding sources, new opportunities, and a greater focus on diversity and inclusion. The sector has also been affected by the pandemic, but it has adapted to the new reality and shown its resilience. As the economy continues to recover, it is expected that the pre-seed start-up sector will continue to grow and evolve, offering more opportunities for entrepreneurs and investors.

In conclusion, the pre-seed start-up sector has grown significantly over the past five years, with more funding and resources available to start-ups and an increase in diversity among founders. However, there are still challenges to be addressed, such as the lack of funding and mentorship for pre-seed start-ups. Despite these challenges, the sector is expected to continue to evolve and grow in the coming years, providing more opportunities for entrepreneurs and investors.

Future-Proofing Start-ups

Appendix 2: Predictions for the future of Start-ups

The number of start-ups can vary greatly depending on the country, industry, and specific year. In addition, it's challenging to track the exact number of start-ups founded, as new businesses are created every day, and some may not survive or be recorded. However, it's safe to say that thousands of start-ups were founded during this period. The number of start-ups has been increasing year over year as the barriers to entry continue to decrease, and the access to resources and funding has improved.

It's worth noting that the number of start-ups founded during the period 2017-2021 would also be affected by the economic conditions during that time. For example, during the period 2017-2019, the global economy was generally doing well, and unemployment rates were low, which would have created a favourable environment for start-up formation. However, in 2020 and 2021, the global economy was affected by the Covid-19 pandemic, which led to a slowdown in start-up formation as the economic environment became less favourable.

According to the Global Start-up Ecosystem Report 2020, around 2,000 new start-ups were founded per day in 2019, which gives an idea of the scale of new companies being created globally.

It's also worth noting that while the number of start-ups founded during the period 2017-2021 would be significant, it's also important to consider the success rate of these start-ups. Many start-ups struggle to secure funding, generate revenue, or achieve profitability, and most start-ups will not survive in the long term. However, those that do succeed can have a significant impact on their industry and the economy as a whole.

Here are some additional statistics about the start-up sector during

the 2017-2021 period:

- According to a report by Start-up Genome, global start-up funding reached a new high of \$335 billion in 2020, despite the economic downturn caused by the COVID-19 pandemic.
- According to a report by the National Venture Capital Association (NVCA), the number of venture capital deals in the United States reached a new high in 2020, with over 10,000 deals completed.
- According to a report by Crunchbase, the number of unicorn companies (start-ups valued at \$1 billion or more) reached a new high in 2020, with over 500 unicorn companies globally.
- According to a report by KPMG, the number of exits (IPOs and M&A) in the United States reached a new high in 2020, with over 800 exits completed.
- According to a report by the Global Entrepreneurship Monitor (GEM), the number of early-stage entrepreneurs (people starting or running a business for less than 42 months) reached a new high in 2020, with over 400 million early-stage entrepreneurs globally.
- According to a report by Start-up Nation Central, the number of start-ups in Israel reached a new high in 2020, with over 6,500 start-ups.
- According to a report by Start-up India, the number of start-ups in India reached a new high in 2020, with over 50,000 start-ups.

It's worth noting that the data above is based on the year 2020, which was affected by the pandemic and might not reflect the whole period of 2017-2021. However, it gives an idea of the scale and growth of the start-up sector during that period.

The future of start-up creation and funding is difficult to predict with certainty, but there are several trends and factors that are likely to shape the ecosystem in the coming years. Here are some predictions for the future of start-up creation and funding:

- Continued growth in the number of start-ups: The number of start-ups is likely to continue to grow in the coming years, as more entrepreneurs and investors enter the space. This trend is likely to be driven by a combination of factors, including advances in technology, increasing access to resources and funding, and a growing awareness of the benefits of entrepreneurship.
- Increased focus on sustainability and social impact: With growing concerns about climate change and social inequality, there is likely to be an increased focus on start-ups that address these issues. Impact investing is expected to grow in popularity, and more start-ups focused on sustainability and social impact are likely to be created and funded.
- Greater use of technology and automation: Technology is likely to continue to play an increasingly important role in start-up creation and funding. Automation is expected to be used more widely to streamline the fundraising process and make it easier for start-ups to raise capital.
- More global competition: The start-up ecosystem is becoming
 increasingly global, and start-ups are likely to face more
 competition from entrepreneurs and investors based in other
 countries. This is likely to lead to increased pressure on start-ups
 to innovate and differentiate themselves.
- *More virtual and remote fundraising:* Due to the pandemic, virtual and remote fundraising has become a norm, and it is likely to continue to be an important way for start-ups to raise capital in the future.

Overall, the start-up ecosystem is expected to continue to evolve and grow in the coming years, providing more opportunities for entrepreneurs and investors. However, the competition will be fierce, and start-ups will need to be innovative and adaptable to succeed.

These predictions are general observations of the current trends and the analysis of experts in the field of venture capital, start-up ecosystem, and entrepreneurship. The trends and predictions can be found in reports, articles and analysis from reputable organizations that track and analyse the start-up ecosystem and venture capital industry:

- The Global Start-up Ecosystem Report by Start-up Genome, which provides an in-depth analysis of the start-up ecosystem and funding trends around the world.
- The MoneyTree report by PwC and CB Insights, which tracks venture capital investment activity in the United States.
- The PitchBook-NVCA Venture Monitor, which provides data and analysis on venture capital investment activity in the United States.
- The Global Entrepreneurship Monitor (GEM) report, which provides data and analysis on entrepreneurship activity around the world.
- The KPMG Enterprise Venture Pulse report, which provides data and analysis on venture capital investment activity globally.

These are just a few examples of the many reports and organizations that track and analyse the start-up ecosystem and venture capital industry. By reading these reports and staying informed about the latest trends and data, investors can gain a better understanding of the current state of the start-up ecosystem and make more informed investment decisions.

It's worth noting that these reports and organizations are not the only sources of information about the start-up ecosystem and venture capital industry, and other sources such as news articles, podcasts, and blogs can also provide valuable insights and information.

Coming Soon

Volume 2

VUCA

Understanding the World and How Disruptive Technologies are Changing it